
NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 

 
Meeting of the 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

DECEMBER 15, 2008 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

   

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are suggested or 
requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible 
amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by department 
directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight 
and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
 
Identified below are outcome statements for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on course with 
these goals. 
 

Outcome Statements 

 
I. Troy enhances the health and safety of the community 

 
II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure 

and quality of life venues 

 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community 

in a changing and interconnected world 

 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your deliberations may 
require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 



NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  AGENDA 

December 15, 2008 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   Pastor Cliff Johnson – Woodside Bible 

Church 1 

ROLL CALL 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Presentation to the Public Works Department – Fleet Maintenance Division 
for Top 20 Fleets in the Nation Recognition and Hero Award .............................. 1 

b) Presentation of the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2008 – by Tom Darling of the Rehmann Robson Group ....................... 1 

c) Presentation of an Audit Recap by John M. Lamerato, Assistant City 
Manager/Finance & Administration ...................................................................... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Rezoning Application – Proposed Office Building, South Side of Wattles, East of 
Rochester Road (1100 and 1120 E. Wattles), Section 23 – R-1C to O-1 (File 
Number Z-732) 1 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

   

C-2 Rezoning Application – Proposed Maple Business Center, North Side of Maple, 
East of Castleton (2795 and 2797 E. Maple), Section 25 – R-1E to B-1 (File 
Number Z-733) 2 

C-3 Concept Development Plan Approval – BBK Mixed Use Project – Northeast 
Corner of Big Beaver and Kilmer, Section 22, Currently Zoned O-1 (Low Rise 
Office) and R-1E (One Family Residential) District 3 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 4 

D-1 Transit Center Cost Sharing Agreement 4 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 5 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 5 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Planning 
Commission b) City Council Appointments: No Appointments brought forward 5 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 
Nominations: None Scheduled (b) City Council Nominations: Advisory Committee 
for Persons with Disabilities; Board of Zoning Appeals; and Historic District Study 
Committee 6 

E-3 Bid Waiver – Global Positioning System (GPS) Tracking Devices 7 

E-4 Deficit Elimination Plans 7 

E-5 Agreement to Provide Inspection Services – City of Madison Heights 8 

E-6 Contract Ratification – Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA) 2008-2011 8 

E-7 Cost Participation Agreement with Clawson Main Street (Livernois), Broadacre 
Avenue to Maple Road – Project No. 07.102.5 and 07.502.5 8 

E-8 Proposal to Require Fees for Preliminary Breath Tests Administered at the Troy 
Police Desk 9 



 

 

   

E-9 Agreement of Understanding – The Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit 
Development (PUD 7), Southwest Corner of Big Beaver and John R – Section 26 10 

CONSENT AGENDA: 11 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 11 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 11 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 11 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 11 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 11 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution #10: Travel Authorization and Approval to 
Expend Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses – Michigan Municipal 
League’s Capital Conference 2009 .................................................................... 11 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution #1: Award to Low Bidders – Water System 
Materials ............................................................................................................. 12 

F-5 Traffic Committee Recommendations – November 19, 2008 12 

F-6 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – Wattles Road Improvements, 
Bristol to Worthington – Project No. 01.106.5 – Parcel #1 – Sidwell #88-20-15-
476-027 – Joan E. Facchini 13 

F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 
Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – 
Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #33 – Sidwell #88-20-22-276-056 – Douglas P. 
Blunden and Mary Ann Blunden 13 

F-8 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Adams Road Site Condominium, East 
Side of Adams, South of South Boulevard, Section 6 – R-1A 14 

F-9 Winter Maintenance Agreement, Road Commission for Oakland County 14 

F-10 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 
Public Utility Easement and Temporary Construction Permit – Rochester Road 
Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #42 – Sidwell 
#88-20-22-226-072 – Hi-Tech Investment Company 14 



 

 

   

F-11 Private Agreement for Andrew St. Sanitary Sewer Extension – Project No. 
06.405.3 15 

F-12 License Agreement with St. Joseph Catholic Chaldean Church 15 

F-13 Allocation of 2009 Tri-Party Program Funds 15 

F-14 Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions – Vanderpool 16 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 16 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 16 

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted 16 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 16 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 16 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 16 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 16 

REPORTS: 16 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 16 

a) Traffic Committee/Final – August 20, 2008 ........................................................ 16 
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – October 1, 2008 ........ 16 

c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – October 1, 2008 ........ 16 

d) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – November 5, 2008 .............................. 16 

e) Planning Commission/Final – November 11, 2008 ............................................ 16 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – November 25, 2008 ...................... 16 

J-2 Department Reports: 16 

a) Police Department – 2008 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report .......... 16 
b) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of November 2008 .... 16 



 

 

   

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 17 

a) Letter from St. Alan’s Church to Officer Andy Breidenich and the Troy Police 
Department Regarding Example and Assistance on Election Day ..................... 17 

b) Letter to Mayor Schilling from Resident Michelle Musial Applauding the City’s 
Efforts Regarding the Recycling Program .......................................................... 17 

c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from George Barahal Regarding the 
Services and Treatment Received from Officer Brian Jones .............................. 17 

d) Letter of Thanks to Carla Vaughan from Jo Giroux Regarding the Leaf Raking 
Assistance .......................................................................................................... 17 

e) Letter of Thanks to Carla Vaughan and Parks and Recreation from Emily 
Lambert Regarding the Leaf Raking Assistance ................................................ 17 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 17 

J-5 Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Final Minutes – October 16, 2008 17 

J-6  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Frank Lawrence v. 
City of Troy 17 

J-7  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding 
Community Development Block Grant Information 17 

J-8  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 
2008 Best in Aquatics Award 17 

J-9  Submittal of the 2008 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 17 

STUDY ITEMS: 17 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 17 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 17 

CLOSED SESSION: 18 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested 18 

RECESSED 18 



 

 

   

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 18 

Monday, January 5, 2009 Regular City Council .................................................... 18 
Monday, January 26, 2009 Regular City Council .................................................. 18 

Monday, February 2, 2009 Regular City Council ................................................... 18 
Wednesday, February 11, 2009 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council . 18 
Monday, February 16, 2009 Regular City Council ................................................. 18 
Wednesday, February 18, 2009 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council . 18 
Monday, March 2, 2009 Regular City Council ....................................................... 18 

Monday, March 23, 2009 Regular City Council ..................................................... 18 
Monday, March 30, 2009 Regular City Council ..................................................... 18 
Monday, April 6, 2009 Regular City Council .......................................................... 18 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 15, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   Pastor Cliff Johnson – Woodside 

Bible Church 

ROLL CALL  

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming 
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members 
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 

a) Presentation to the Public Works Department – Fleet Maintenance Division for Top 20 
Fleets in the Nation Recognition and Hero Award 

b) Presentation of the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
2008 – by Tom Darling of the Rehmann Robson Group  

c) Presentation of an Audit Recap by John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & 
Administration 

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Rezoning Application – Proposed Office Building, South Side of Wattles, East of 

Rochester Road (1100 and 1120 E. Wattles), Section 23 – R-1C to O-1 (File Number 

Z-732) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a rezoning request, from R-1C to O-1, File Number Z-732, 
as demonstrated by the Ordinance to amend Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy and as 
illustrated in the attached Certified Survey; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 15, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

WHEREAS, The applicant has provided a letter requesting postponement so that they can 
submit a conditional rezoning application; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the proposed 
rezoning from R-1C to O-1, to provide the applicant an opportunity to submit a conditional 
rezoning application to the Planning Commission for their consideration. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

C-2 Rezoning Application – Proposed Maple Business Center, North Side of Maple, 

East of Castleton (2795 and 2797 E. Maple), Section 25 – R-1E to B-1 (File Number 

Z-733) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

(a) Resolution to Approve 
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a rezoning request, from R-1E to B-1, File Number Z-733, 
as demonstrated by the Ordinance to amend Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy and as 
illustrated in the attached Certified Survey; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed 
rezoning from R-1E to B-1; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Zoning District Map. 
 

OR 
 

(b) Resolution to Deny 
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a rezoning request, from R-1E to B-1, File Number Z-733, 
as demonstrated by the Ordinance to amend Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy and as 
illustrated in the attached Certified Survey;  
 
WHEREAS, Rezoning this parcel to B-1 promotes poor access management due to its small 
size and narrow width;  
 
WHEREAS, Rezoning this parcel to B-1 is not consistent with the standards of Neighborhood 
Node B in the City of Troy Master Plan due to its small size and narrow width; and 
 
WHEREAS, The application is incompatible with single family uses and zoning districts to the 
north; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DENIES the proposed 
rezoning from R-1E to B-1. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 15, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

C-3 Concept Development Plan Approval – BBK Mixed Use Project – Northeast Corner 

of Big Beaver and Kilmer, Section 22, Currently Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) and 

R-1E (One Family Residential) District 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The petitioner Landus Development has requested Concept Development Plan 
approval, pursuant to article 35.50.01, for BBK Mixed-Use Planned Unit Development (PUD 
10), located on the northeast corner of Big Beaver and Kilmer, in Section 22, within the O-1 
and R-1E zoning districts, being approximately 2.546 acres in size;  
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommended approval of the Concept Development 
Plan on November 11, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The City’s Planning Consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, 
Inc. prepared a memorandum dated November 6, 2008 that recommends Concept 
Development Plan approval of BBK Mixed-Use Planned Unit Development;  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval set forth in Article 35.30.00; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Planned Unit Development, parcels 88-20-22-383-001, -002, -003 & 
-006 and 88-20-22-382-012, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on the 
attached boundary survey drawing:  
 

T2N, R11E, SW 1/4 of Section 22 
 
Commencing at the South ¼ corner of said Section 22;  thence along the South 
line of said Section 22, N 88°40'00" W 165.42 ft.;  thence N 01° 32' 14" E, 
102.00 ft. to the North line of Big Beaver Rd. (102 ft. half width) and the point of 
beginning;  thence along said North line, N 88°40’00” W, 272.73 ft. to the West 
line of "Replat of Out Lot A of Big Beaver Subdivision" (Liber 26, pg. 17, of 
Oakland County Records);  thence along said West line and the West line of 
"Burgess Bungalow Subdivision" (Liber 46, pg. 34, of Oakland County Records), 
said line also being the East line of Kilmer Rd. (50 ft. width), N 01° 32' 14" E, 
368.37 ft. to the North line of Lot 17 of Burgess Bungalow Subdivision;  thence 
along said North line S 88°40’00” E, 122.88 ft. to the East line of said Lot 17;  
thence along said East line S 01°32’14” W, 22.50 ft. to the North line of Lot 20 of 
Burgess Bungalow Subdivision;  thence along said North lines of Lots 20, 21 and 
22 of Burgess Bungalow Subdivision,  S 88°40’00” E, 149.85 ft. to the East line 
of the aforementioned subdivision, said line also being the West line of "Willow 
Centre" O. C. C. P. No. 1272, as recorded in Liber 21524, pg. 591 of Oakland 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 15, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

County Records;  thence along said lines S 01°32’14” W, 162.50 ft. to the South 
line of said condominium;  thence along said South line S 88°40’00” E, 75.20 ft. 
to the West line of said condominium;  thence along said West line, S 01°32’14” 
W, 183.37 ft. to the aforementioned North line of Big Beaver Rd.;  thence along 
said North line, N 88°40’00” W, 75.20 ft. to the Point of Beginning.  Containing 
2.546 acres more or less, subject to all easements and restrictions of record; 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Planning Director and 
City Clerk to take whatever actions are necessary pursuant to the City Ordinance to effect the 
rezoning of the subject parcel to PUD; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Zoning District Map 
of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance to delineate the subject parcel as PUD-010; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the attached 

Planned Unit Development Agreement and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute the Planned Unit Development Agreement for BBK Mixed-Use Planned Unit 

Development on behalf of the City, a copy shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the executed BBK Mixed-Use Planned Unit Development Agreement with the Oakland County 
Register of Deeds; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Concept 
Development Plan for BBK Mixed-Use Planned Unit Development and the petitioner is hereby 
permitted to submit Preliminary Development Plans pursuant to Article 35.50.02 of Chapter 39. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Transit Center Cost Sharing Agreement  

 
Pending Resolution 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Agreement between the 
City of Troy and the City of Birmingham, which equally divides the cost of a Project Manager for 
the proposed Troy/Birmingham Intermodal Transit Center; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the Interlocal Service Agreement on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 15, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 10“E” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 10 “E”.  
 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Planning 

Commission b) City Council Appointments: No Appointments brought forward   

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed Board and Committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit nominations for 
appointment at the meeting prior to consideration. Whenever the number of submitted names 
exceeds the number of vacancies, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required to 
confirm the nominee receiving the greatest number of votes in the Council polling process 
(current process of appointing). Remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the 
next Regular City Council Meeting Agenda for consideration.  
 

(a) Mayoral Appointments  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 15, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor  (9-Regular) – 3-Year Terms 
 
Donald  L. Edmunds Unexpired Term 12/31/2010 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

(b) City Council Appointments – No Appointments brought forward  

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 

Nominations: None Scheduled (b) City Council Nominations: Advisory Committee 

for Persons with Disabilities; Board of Zoning Appeals; and Historic District Study 

Committee    

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 

 

(a) Mayoral Nominations – None Scheduled  
 

(b) City Council Nominations  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 

 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council  hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) 3-Year Term 
  

Alternate Unexpired Term 11/01/2009 

 

Board of Zoning Appeals  
Appointed by Council (7 Regular) 3-Year Term 
 

Planning Commission Rep.* Term Expires 01/31/2009 

 
Planning Commission Alt. Rep.* Term Expires 01/31/2009 

*NOTE: Planning Commission to submit recommendations in January 2009. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 15, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

Historic District Study Committee  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) Ad Hoc; (2) Historic District Commission; (1) Local Historic 
Preservation Organization 
 Ad Hoc 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-3 Bid Waiver – Global Positioning System (GPS) Tracking Devices  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Global Positioning System (GPS) Tracking Devices are used by law enforcement 
to conduct covert investigations to monitor criminal activity;  
 
WHEREAS, A short list of companies offer law enforcement grade GPS tracking units, which 
differ in technology used and overall functionality; and  
 
WHEREAS, After an exhaustive search, the Troy Police Department has determined that 
Coleman Technologies offers the best system, which includes real “live” time tracking, three-
year all inclusive service and warranty plan, no activation fee, and 24/7 technical support;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 

procedures and hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase hardware, software, and services 
for the Platinum All In One Agent system from Coleman Technologies, Inc. of Orlando, FL, for 
an estimated total cost of $28,268.00, as detailed on quote #Q0073.0556.538.1, a copy of 

which is ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, plus ongoing license renewals, 
updates and technical support as needed.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-4 Deficit Elimination Plans 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES and ADOPTS the Downtown 
Development Authority, Aquatic Center and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Deficit Elimination 
Plans presented to this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 15, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

E-5 Agreement to Provide Inspection Services – City of Madison Heights 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Service Agreement for 
the City of Troy to provide inspection services to the City of Madison Heights and hereby 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-6 Contract Ratification – Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA) 2008-2011 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RATIFIES a collective bargaining agreement 
between the City of Troy and Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA) for the period July 1, 

2008 through June 30, 2011, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute 
the final agreement. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-7 Cost Participation Agreement with Clawson Main Street (Livernois), Broadacre 

Avenue to Maple Road – Project No. 07.102.5 and 07.502.5 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Cost Participation Agreement 
between the City of Troy and the City of Clawson for the reconstruction of Main Street 
(Livernois), from Broadacre to Maple, Project No. 07.102.5 and 07.502.5, and hereby 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 15, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

E-8 Proposal to Require Fees for Preliminary Breath Tests Administered at the Troy 

Police Desk 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

(a) Proposed Resolution A – Option for Emergency Ordinance Amendment to be 

Effective Immediately 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Police Department has administered Preliminary Breath Tests (PBTs) at 
the Troy Police Department for individuals who are required to submit to such tests as a 
condition of probation;    
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Police Department currently administers PBTs at no charge;   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Police Department has administered a significant number of 
PBTs to non-residents, which may be due to the fact that other communities charge for the 
administration of PBTs;    
 
WHEREAS, The free administration of PBTs has resulted in a significant cost in both personnel 
and materials to the City of Troy Police Department;   
 
WHEREAS, Based on past experience, there is a high demand for the administration of PBT 
testing during holiday periods or other college break periods of time;    
 
WHEREAS, This higher demand for PBT administration is likely to commence before 
December 25, 2008, the effective date of the amendment to Chapter 60, Section 3 (Fees);  
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Section 5.3 of the Troy City Charter, the effective date of ordinance 
amendments is ten days after enactment;  
 
WHEREAS, Section 5.3 of the Troy City Charter allows for an emergency ordinance which may 
be effective earlier than the normal ten day period for the preservation of public peace, health 
or safety;  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is operating in a deficit situation and is striving to reduce its 
budget deficit by assessing fees when appropriate to recover costs for services, and the 
immediate effective date will provide for the assessment of charges for PBT administration, 
which will further the public peace, health, and/or welfare; and  
 
WHEREAS, A charge of $5.00 to residents of the City of Troy and $10.00 to non-residents is 
designed to recoup the costs of administering PBTs at the Troy Police Department;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the Emergency 
Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 60, Section 3, Fee Schedule, effective immediately, to add a 
fee for PBT administration, as recommended by City Administration, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 15, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

 

OR 
 

(b) Proposed Resolution B – Option for Ordinance Amendment to be Effective in Ten 

Days 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Police Department has administered Preliminary Breath Tests (PBTs) at 
the Troy Police Department for individuals who are required to submit to such tests as a 
condition of probation;  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Police Department currently administers PBTs at no charge; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Police Department has administered a significant number of 
PBTs to non-residents, which may be due to the fact that other communities charge for the 
administration of PBTs;  
 
WHEREAS, The free administration of PBTs has resulted in a significant cost in both personnel 
and materials to the City of Troy Police Department;   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is operating in a deficit situation and is striving to reduce its 
budget deficit by assessing fees when appropriate to recover costs for services; and   
 
WHEREAS, A charge of $5.00 to residents of the City of Troy and $10.00 to non-residents is 
designed to recoup the costs of administering PBTs at the Troy Police Department; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the Ordinance 
Amendment to Chapter 60, Section 3, Fee Schedule, to add a fee for PBT administration, as 

recommended by City Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-9 Agreement of Understanding – The Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit 

Development (PUD 7), Southwest Corner of Big Beaver and John R – Section 26 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the attached proposed Agreement of 
Understanding for the Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development (PUD 7), located at the 
southwest corner of Big Beaver and John R, in Section 26; and 

 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 

Clerk to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 15, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

Yes: 
No: 
  

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 12 “F”.  

 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12-  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of December 1, 2008 as submitted. 
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 
   
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution #10: Travel Authorization and Approval to 

Expend Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses – Michigan Municipal 

League’s Capital Conference 2009                       
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 

campbellld
Text Box



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 15, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Council members to attend the 
Michigan Municipal League’s 2009 Capital Conference on March 3 – 4, 2009 in Lansing, 
Michigan, in accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution #1: Award to Low Bidders – Water System 

Materials                       
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide one-year 
requirements of Water System Materials to the following low bidders:  East Jordan Iron Works 
of Oak Park, MI, Gunners Meters & Parts of Pontiac, MI, SLC Meter Service, Inc. of Davisburg, 
MI, and HD Supply Waterworks of Shelby Township, MI; at unit prices contained in the bid 

tabulation opened November 12, 2008, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-5 Traffic Committee Recommendations – November 19, 2008 
 

(a) No Changes at Torpey Drive and Rochester Road 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That there be NO CHANGES at Torpey Drive and Rochester Road. 
 

(b) Traffic Control Order 08-07-MR be Rescinded 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
      

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order 08-07-MR be RESCINDED. 
 

(c) Replace Yield Signs on Ellenboro at Trombley with Stop Signs 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
      

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED to replace the 
YIELD signs on Ellenboro at Trombley with STOP signs. 
 

(d) Replace Yield Sign on Enterprise at Robinwood with Stop Sign 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
      



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 15, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED to replace the 
YIELD sign on Enterprise at Robinwood with a STOP sign. 

 

(e) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at 2477 West Maple 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the establishment of 
fire lanes/tow away zones at 2477 West Maple as recommended by the Fire Department. 
 

F-6 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – Wattles Road Improvements, 

Bristol to Worthington – Project No. 01.106.5 – Parcel #1 – Sidwell #88-20-15-476-

027 – Joan E. Facchini 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Joan E. Facchini, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-15-476-
027, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for Wattles Road Improvements, 
Bristol to Worthington in the amount of $40,000.00, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 

Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – 

Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #33 – Sidwell #88-20-22-276-056 – Douglas P. 

Blunden and Mary Ann Blunden 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Douglas P. Blunden and Mary Ann Blunden, owners of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-22-276-056, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for 
Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $72,100.00, plus closing 
costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 15, 2008 

 

- 14 - 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $4,700.00 from Douglas P. Blunden and Mary Ann Blunden, 
owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-22-276-056; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-8 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Adams Road Site Condominium, East 

Side of Adams, South of South Boulevard, Section 6 – R-1A 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the preliminary site condominium 
plan, as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family 
Residential Development) for the development of a One-Family Residential Site Condominium, 
One-Family Cluster Option, known as Adams Road Site Condominium, located on the east side 
of Adams, south of South Boulevard, in Section 6, including 5 home sites, within the R-1A 
zoning district, being 4.98 acres in size. 
 

F-9 Winter Maintenance Agreement, Road Commission for Oakland County 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Winter Maintenance Agreement 
between the Road Commission for Oakland County and the City of Troy for Snow and Ice 
Control of  certain primary and local roads, which are described and outlined in Exhibit A, and 

hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the necessary documents, a copy 
of which is authorized by the provisions of 1951 PA 51 (MCL 247.651 et seq.), shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 

F-10 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 

Public Utility Easement and Temporary Construction Permit – Rochester Road 

Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #42 – Sidwell 

#88-20-22-226-072 – Hi-Tech Investment Company 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Hi-Tech Investment Company, owner of property having Sidwell #88-
20-22-226-072, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for Rochester Road 
Improvements, Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $67,718.00, plus closing costs; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 15, 2008 

 

- 15 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $7,267.00; and the Regrading and Temporary Construction 
Permit in the amount of $80.00 from Hi-Tech Investment Company, owner of property having 
Sidwell #88-20-22-226-072; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-11 Private Agreement for Andrew St. Sanitary Sewer Extension – Project No. 06.405.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and George Thomas, 
for the installation of sanitary sewer, sidewalks, and soil erosion on the site and in the adjacent 

right of way, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-12 License Agreement with St. Joseph Catholic Chaldean Church 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the license agreement between St. 
Joseph Catholic Chaldean Church and the City of Troy for limited use of City property, 
described as:  
 

T2N, R11E, Sec 25 Part of the NE ¼ of the NW ¼ Beginning at a point S 00-
01-28 W, 968.66 FT & N 89-28-44 E, 1305.52 FT & N 00-13-40 W, 956.34 FT 
& S 89-38-09 E, 869.24 FT & S 00-12-46 E, 673.50 FT & N 89-31-04 E, 113.43 
FT from the NW Section Corner; Thence N 89-31-04 E, 325.00 FT; Thence S 
00-16-19 E, 700.00 FT; Thence S 89-31-04 W, 325.00 FT; Thence N 00-16-19 
W, 700.00 FT to the point of beginning (Property),  
 

for a period of three (3) years, beginning December 15, 2008 and ending December 15, 2011. 
 

F-13 Allocation of 2009 Tri-Party Program Funds 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2009 Tri-Party program funding 
allocation of $544,591.00 and the remaining 2008 Tri-Party program funds in the amount of 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 15, 2008 

 

- 16 - 

$50,585.00 be used, as required, for concrete slab replacements on County Roads, with 
$198,392.00 being the City’s share.   
 

F-14 Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions – Vanderpool 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES the no parking restrictions on Vanderpool 
Street near 865 Vanderpool on December 20, 2008, between the hours of 5:00 PM and 10:00 
PM. 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
    

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted   
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced  

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 
 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Traffic Committee/Final – August 20, 2008  

b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – October 1, 2008  

c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – October 1, 2008 

d) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – November 5, 2008 

e) Planning Commission/Final – November 11, 2008 

f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – November 25, 2008 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   

a) Police Department – 2008 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report  

b) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of November 2008   
 

  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 15, 2008 

 

- 17 - 

 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter from St. Alan’s Church to Officer Andy Breidenich and the Troy Police Department 
Regarding Example and Assistance on Election Day  

b) Letter to Mayor Schilling from Resident Michelle Musial Applauding the City’s Efforts 
Regarding the Recycling Program  

c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from George Barahal Regarding the Services and 
Treatment Received from Officer Brian Jones  

d) Letter of Thanks to Carla Vaughan from Jo Giroux Regarding the Leaf Raking 
Assistance  

e) Letter of Thanks to Carla Vaughan and Parks and Recreation from Emily Lambert 
Regarding the Leaf Raking Assistance 

    

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

J-5 Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Final Minutes – October 16, 2008 
 

J-6  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Frank Lawrence v. 

City of Troy 
 

J-7  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding 

Community Development Block Grant Information 
 

J-8  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 

2008 Best in Aquatics Award 
 

J-9  Submittal of the 2008 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 

    

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 

questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 15, 2008 

 

- 18 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested 
 

RECESSED 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, January 5, 2009 .......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, January 26, 2009 ........................................................ Regular City Council 

Monday, February 2, 2009 ........................................................ Regular City Council 

Wednesday, February 11, 2009 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ...... Regular City Council 

Monday, February 16, 2009 ...................................................... Regular City Council 

Wednesday, February 18, 2009 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ...... Regular City Council 

Monday, March 2, 2009 ............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, March 23, 2009 ........................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, March 30, 2009 ........................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, April 6, 2009................................................................ Regular City Council 

 



1 

 

 
 
DATE: December 8, 2008 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: City Council Public Hearing – Rezoning Application – Proposed Office Building, South 

side of Wattles, East of Rochester Rd. (1100 and 1120 E. Wattles), Section 23 – R-1C 
to O-1 (File Number Z-732) 

 
 
Background: 
 

 The applicant provided a letter requesting postponement so that they can submit a conditional 
rezoning application.   

 

 The Planning Commission recommended denial of the request to rezone the parcel to O-1 at 
the November 11, 2008 Regular meeting.   
 

 The Master Plan proposes a Neighborhood Node at the corner of Wattles and Rochester 
(Neighborhood Node G).  The node is described as “a careful blend of commercial uses and 
office uses, effectively transitioned into the adjoining residential neighborhoods”.  It must be 
determined whether the subject parcel lies within the Neighborhood Node and consistent with the 
standards.  

 

 The application is not consistent with the general character of the area and is incompatible with 
adjacent single family zoning districts and land uses. 
 

 The attached Planning Commission memo outlines the issues associated with this rezoning.  
 

 The Planning Commission recommended denial of the rezoning application because the request 
is incompatible with existing zoning and in conflict with the Master Plan’s conceptual idea of an 
economic node at this location. 
 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 

 There are no financial considerations for this item. 
  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



2 

 

Legal Considerations: 
 

 City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

 The application is not consistent with any of the “Outcome Statements” as established at the 
July 1 Special Council meeting. 

 
 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve or deny the rezoning application. 
 

 City Council can postpone the rezoning application for consideration of a conditional rezoning 
offered by the applicant. 

 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Minutes from the November 11, 2008 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
3. Planning Commission report dated November 5, 2008. 
4. Letter from applicant. 
5. Public comment. 
 

 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Z 732 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-732 Wattles Office Complex Sec 23\CC Public Hearing 12 15 08.docx 

 





JO
HN 

R

CO
OL

ID
GE

CR
OO

KS

RO
CH

ES
TE

R

DE
QU

IN
DR

E

LONG LAKE

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75
MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

AD
AM

S



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



KE
AT

S
RENEE

MA
RK

MAYA

W
OR

TH
IN

GT
ON

BRAHMS
GARWOOD

TWAIN CT

OGDEN

BURNS

JUDY

KIPLING
CT

ED
EN

DE
RR

Y

E WATTLES

COBBLESTONE

RO
CH

ES
TE

R

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED WATTLES OFFICE COMPLEX
FROM R-1C TO O-1
S SIDE OF WATTLES, E OF ROCHESTER RD.
SEC. 23  (Z-732) 

SUBJECT SITE

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³



KE
AT

S
RENEE

MA
RK

MAYA

W
OR

TH
IN

GT
ON

BRAHMS
GARWOOD

TWAIN CT

OGDEN

BURNS

JUDY

KIPLING
CT

ED
EN

DE
RR

Y

E WATTLES

COBBLESTONE

RO
CH

ES
TE

R

B-1

R-1C

B-3

R-1T

B-2 P-1

H-S

O-1

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED WATTLES OFFICE COMPLEX
FROM R-1C TO O-1
S SIDE OF WATTLES, E OF ROCHESTER RD.
SEC. 23  (Z-732) 

SUBJECT SITE

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³



LAPP

TROYWOOD

E WATTLES

VICTORIA

REILLY

DEERFIELD
RO

CH
ES

TE
R

BLOOMINGDALE

JUDY

RA
ND

AL
L 

CT

BR
IS

TO
L

GA
TW

IC
K

COBBLESTONE

TENNYSON

BARCLAY

LORENZO 
CT

HIDDENRIDGE

RO
OT

WA
KE

FIE
LD

BARCLAY 

CT

YA
NI

CH

REILL
Y CT

MI
LL

AY

MA
RK

GLENWOOD

JASON

HOLLY

BURNS

OAKCREST

STONETREE

KNOX 
CT

INVERNESS 
CT

OGDEN

HIDDENRIDGE

ISLAND

ED
EN

DE
RR

Y

GARWOOD

CA
RM

EL

KIPLING CT

TWAIN CT

W
OR

TH
IN

GT
ON

OX
LE

Y

MAYA

ABBEY

BISHOP

BRAHMS

W
ILL

OW 
CR

E E
K

SA
ND

BU
RG

HI
GH

LA
ND

LAMB

MERRIWEATHER

ROCKFIELD
JE

NN
IN

GS

EL
EA

NO
RRANDALL

HAW
T HORNE

GRAND VISTA 
CT

RAINTREE

KINGS POINT

NA
SH

SH
AD

RO
CK

RENEECY
PR

ES
S

KE
AT

S

CHARLEVOIS

Neighborhood
Nodes

Rochester Road

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED WATTLES OFFICE COMPLEX
FROM R-1C TO O-1
S SIDE OF WATTLES, E OF ROCHESTER RD.
SEC. 23  (Z-732)

0 500 1,000250
Feet ³

SUBJECT PARCEL





PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 11, 2008 
  

 
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 732) – Proposed Office 

Building, South side of Wattles Road, East of Rochester Road (1100 and 1120 
Wattles Road), Section 23, From R-1C (One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low 
Rise Office) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning request.  He addressed the newly adopted Master Plan as 
relates to neighborhood nodes, and briefly explained the charge of the Planning 
Commission in its interpretation of the neighborhood node in relation to the 
proposed rezoning request.  Mr. Miller apologized that the sketches of a potential 
office development, provided by the applicant, were not included in the meeting 
packet, but indicated they were distributed to members prior to the beginning of 
tonight’s meeting. 
 
It is the recommendation of City Management that if the Planning Commission 
determines that the subject parcel lies within the neighborhood node, the 
applicant consider submitting a conditional rezoning application that could 
potentially serve as an appropriate transition between residential and non-
residential uses. 
 
Mr. Forsyth emphasized the sketch of the potential office development would not 
play a part in deliberation of the rezoning request. 
 
The petitioner, Salvatore DiMercurio of Brentwood Land Development, 48705 
Hayes Road, Shelby Township, was present.  Stefano Mularoni was also 
present.  Mr. DiMercurio briefly addressed the proposed site, of which a 
conceptual drawing was displayed.  He indicated his willingness to commit to a 
conditional rezoning. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
A brief discussion followed relating to the interpretation of the neighborhood 
node, the proximity of the proposed rezoning to residential, and the application 
process for conditional rezoning. 
 
Mr. Miller suggested postponement of the traditional rezoning request if it is the 
intent of the Planning Commission to offer the petitioner the opportunity to go 
forward with a conditional rezoning application. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 11, 2008 
  

 
 

Resolution # PC-2008-11-130 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the rezoning request to deal with a conditional 
rezoning. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Chair Schultz addressed concerns with a conditional rezoning. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 

Yes: Sanzica, Strat, Tagle 
No: Hutson, Schultz, Ullmann 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck, Wright 
 

MOTION FAILED 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-11-131 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Ullmann 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to O-1 rezoning request, located on the south side of 
Wattles, east of Rochester Road, within Section 23, being approximately 2.39 
acres in size, be denied, for the following reason:  
 

1. The request is incompatible with existing zoning and in conflict with the 
Master Plan’s conceptual idea of an economic node at this location. 

 

Yes: Hutson, Schultz Ullmann 
No: Sanzica, Strat, Tagle 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck, Wright 
 

MOTION FAILED 
 
Mr. Forsyth clarified that a recommendation to deny the proposed rezoning request 
would go forward to City Council. 

 
 



 1 

DATE:  November 5, 2008 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 Ronald Figlan, Planner 
 Paula Preston Bratto, Planner 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING - REZONING APPLICATION – Proposed Office 

Building, South side of Wattles, East of Rochester Rd. (1100 and 1120 E. 
Wattles), Section 23 – R-1C to O-1 (Z-732) 

 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Salvatore DiMercurio of Brentwood Land Development. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the south side of Wattles Road, east of Rochester Road, in 
Section 23. 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The property is approximately 2.39 acres in size. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
Two single family residences presently sit on the property.  
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1C One Family Residential.   
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
O-1 Low Rise Office. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to develop a professional office building on the property. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1C One Family Residential.    
South: R-1C One Family Residential.    
East: R-1C One Family Residential.    
West: R-1C One Family Residential.    
  



 2 

Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
South: Single family residential. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Daycare center. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed O-1 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 

Office Buildings for any of the following occupations: executive, administrative; 
professional; accounting; writing; clerical stenographic; drafting; and sales. 

 

 Medical office, including clinics. 
 

Banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, and similar uses. Such uses 
may include drive-in facilities only as an accessory use. 

 

 Publicly owned buildings, exchanges, and public utility offices. 
 

 Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 

 
Uses customarily supporting or serving the Principal Uses permitted in this District, 
such as pharmacies or drug stores, optical services, copy services, office supplies, 
book stores, art galleries, or restaurants. 

 

Data processing and computer centers, including sales support, service and 
maintenance of electronic data processing equipment.   

 

Technical training uses. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 

 
Mortuary establishments. 

 

 Private service clubs, fraternal organizations and lodge halls. 
 

 Private ambulance facilities. 
 

Utility sub-stations, transformer stations or gas regulator stations (without 
storage yards). 

  



 3 

Mechanical or laboratory research involving testing and evaluation of products, or 
prototype or experimental product or process development. 

 
Child care centers, nursery schools, or day nurseries (not including dormitories).  

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel has frontage on Wattles. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will be required to provide on-site storm water detention and all other 
utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Compliance with Master Plan: 
The Master Plan calls for a Neighborhood Node at the corner of Wattles and Rochester 
(Neighborhood Node G).  The node is described as “a careful blend of commercial uses 
and office uses, effectively transitioned into the adjoining residential neighborhoods”.  The 
Planning Commission must determine whether the subject parcel lies within the 
Neighborhood Node.  
 
On the north side of Wattles, the eastern limits of the node seem to be defined by a strip of 
land zoned P-1 Vehicular Parking.  On the south side of Wattles, the parcel which abuts 
the subject parcel to the west is used as a daycare and serves as a transitional use 
between the commercial district and the single-family residential area to the east.  The 
western half of the daycare parcel is zoned B-1, the eastern half is zoned R-1C.   
 
The depth of the subject parcel lends itself to office development.  Office development is 
generally an appropriate transition between commercial and residential uses, provided it is 
designed appropriately.  The applicant provided a sketch plan showing potential office 
development on the subject site.   
 
Compliance with Section 24.40.13, Location Standards of the O-1 District:  
Section 24.40.13 states that the O-1 District may be applied when the application of such 
a classification is consistent with the intent of the Master Land Use Plan and policies 
related thereto, and therefore involves the following types of areas: 
 
24.40.13 Areas designated for commercial or other non-residential development, or 

higher intensity office development, when one or more of the following 
determinations are made: 

 
A. When the adjacent area and/or the total community would be more 

effectively served by the application of O-1 zoning than by the 
application of a commercial or other non-residential zoning District of 
a more intense office District. 

  



 4 

B. When development in accordance with O-1 zoning would serve as a 
transitional element and would thus be more compatible with 
adjacent properties than would development under commercial or 
other office classifications. 

 
The Planning Commission must determine whether the parcel lies within the 
Neighborhood Node located at the corner of Wattles and Rochester Road. 
 
 
CITY MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Master Plan calls for “a careful blend of commercial uses and office uses, effectively 
transitioned into the adjoining residential neighborhoods” in the Neighborhood Node at the 
intersection of Rochester and Wattles.  The sketch provided by the applicant shows a 
potential office development that is not designed to serve as an appropriate transition 
between residential and non-residential uses.  If rezoned to O-1, the applicant could 
develop the property as shown on the sketch plan.  City Management recommends that if 
the Planning Commission determines that the subject parcel lies within the node, the 
applicant consider submitting a conditional rezoning application so that the office 
development can be appropriately designed as a transitional use between Wattles Road 
and the single family residential neighborhood to the south. 
 
 
 
Applicant 
File / Z- 732 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-732 Wattles Office Complex Sec 23\PC Report Z-732 11-11-08.docx 
 









1 

 

 
 
DATE: December 8, 2008 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: City Council Public Hearing – Rezoning Application – Proposed Maple Business Center, 

North side of Maple, East of Castleton (2795 and 2797 E. Maple), Section 25 – R-1E to 
B-1 (File Number Z-733) 

 
 
Background: 
 

 The Planning Commission recommended denial of the request to rezone the parcel to B-1 at the 
November 11, 2008 Regular meeting, for the following reasons: 
 
1. The rezoning is incompatible with single family uses and zoning districts to the north. 
2. Developing this parcel in a way that is consistent with the standards of Neighborhood 

Node B in the City of Troy Master Plan would be difficult due to its small size and 
narrow width. 

3. Rezoning this small, narrow parcel promotes poor access management. 
 

 The Master Plan proposes Neighborhood Node B at the intersection of Maple and Dequindre.  
The characteristics of the node are described in the Neighborhood Node section of the Plan.  
Proposed uses include limited housing, service uses, or specialty retail and dining.  The 
Master Plan proposes Single Family Residential west of the node along both sides of Maple.  
To determine whether the application complies with the Master Plan, the western extent of the 
Neighborhood Node needs to be determined. 

 

 The application is not consistent with the general character of the area and is incompatible with 
adjacent single family zoning districts and land uses. 
 

 The attached Planning Commission memo outlines the issues associated with this rezoning.  
  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



2 

 

Financial Considerations: 
 

 There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

 City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

 The application is not consistent with any of the “Outcome Statements” as established at the 
July 1, 2008 Special Council meeting. 

 
 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve or deny the rezoning application. 
 

 City Council can postpone the rezoning application for consideration of a conditional rezoning 
offered by the applicant. 

 
 
 

Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Minutes from the November 11, 2008 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
3. Planning Commission report dated November 5, 2008. 
4. Public comment. 
 

 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Z 733 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-733 Maple Business Center Sec 25\CC Public Hearing 12 15 08.docx 

 





JO
HN 

R

CO
OL

ID
GE

CR
OO

KS

RO
CH

ES
TE

R

DE
QU

IN
DR

E

LONG LAKE

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75
MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

AD
AM

S



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



E MAPLE

WILLIAMS

CASTLETON

COVENTRY

HE
MP

ST
EA

D

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED RETAIL / BUSINESS BUILDING
FROM R-1E TO B-1
N SIDE OF MAPLE, E OF CASTLETON
SEC. 25 

SUBJECT SITE

0 100 200 30050
Feet ³



E MAPLE

WILLIAMS

CASTLETON

COVENTRY

HE
MP

ST
EA

D

O-1R-1E

B-2

B-3

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED RETAIL / BUSINESS BUILDING
FROM R-1E TO B-1
N SIDE OF MAPLE, E OF CASTLETON
SEC. 25 

SUBJECT SITE

0 100 200 30050
Feet ³



MI
LB

UR
N

AL
EX

AN
DE

R

DE
QU

IN
DR

E

LE
AF

GR
EE

N

LA
NG

FO
RD

SILCOT

CASE

BIRCHWOOD

WOODSLEE

HI
LL

MA
N

E MAPLE

GABRIEL 
CT

Ca
me

lot

GABRIEL

AL
GE

R

ADONIS

CR
AB

T R
EE

NORTHAMPTON

GULASON

DASHWOOD

TAYLOR

CHESTERFIELD

TEASDALE

WILLIAMS

ST
RA

TF
OR

D

NEWBURGH

RUSHMORE

CHOPIN

MI
NN

ES
OT

A

CAMELOT

TECHNOLOGY

RING

LARCHWOOD

ZENIA

CO
VE

NT
RY

SHERBOURNE

IOWA

WISCONSIN

VERMONT

VIRGINIA

JO
HN 

R

AT
LA

S

C A
ST

LE
TO

N

MI
LV

ER
TO

N

RE
VE

RE

HE
MP

ST
EA

D

SHAK ER

PRESCOTT

South
John

R Road

Smart
Zone

Neighborhood
Nodes

Neighborhood
Nodes

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED MAPLE BUSINESS CENTER
FROM R-1E TO B-1
N SIDE OF MAPLE, E OF CASTLETON
SEC. 25  (Z-733)

0 500 1,000250
Feet ³

SUBJECT PARCEL



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 11, 2008 
  

 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 733) – Proposed Maple 
Business Center, North side of Maple Road, East of Castleton (2795 E. Maple 
Road), Section 25, From R-1E (One Family Residential) to B-1 (Local Business) 
District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning request.  He addressed the newly adopted Master Plan as 
relates to neighborhood nodes and the proposed rezoning.  It is the 
recommendation of City Management to deny the rezoning request for reasons 
as specified in the Planning Department report.  Mr. Miller said City Management 
would support a conditional rezoning application if the applicant were to acquire 
the parcel to the west and combine it with the subject parcel. 
 
There was a brief discussion on the conditional rezoning application process. 
 
Arthur Kalajian, petitioner and project architect, 1871 Austin Drive, Troy, was 
present.  Visual boards of the potential development were displayed. 
 
Terrey Barash, property owner, 2795 E. Maple Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. 
Barash expressed his desire to expand his valet parking business and make site 
improvements. 
 
Mr. Kalajian addressed the potential development as relates to the transition to 
residential, proposed site improvements and the property across the street.  He 
indicated the adjacent property owner is not interested in selling his property.   
 
Brother of Terrey Barash [did not sign in] addressed the conditions of the site and 
encouraged going forward with the site improvements. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Robert Henkle of 1642 Castleton, Troy, was present.  He spoke in opposition of 
the proposed rezoning request. 
 
Randolph Grieser of 2775 E. Maple, Troy, was present.  He spoke in opposition 
of the proposed rezoning request as submitted. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was a brief discussion in which several members expressed opposition to 
the proposed rezoning because of its proximity to residential. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 11, 2008 
  

 
 

Resolution # PC-2008-11-132 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Ullmann 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1E to B-1 rezoning request, located on the north side of Maple 
Road, east of Castleton, within Section 25, being approximately 0.84 acres in 
size, be denied, for the following reasons: 
 

1. The rezoning is incompatible with single family uses and zoning districts to 
the north. 

2. Developing this parcel in a way that is consistent with the standards of 
Neighborhood Node B in the City of Troy Master Plan would be difficult 
due to its small size and narrow width. 

3. Rezoning this small, narrow parcel promotes poor access management. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



 1 

DATE: November 5, 2008 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 Ronald Figlan, Planner 
 Paula Preston Bratto, Planner 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION – Proposed Maple 

Business Center, North side of Maple, East of Castleton (2795 E. Maple), 
Section 25 – R-1E to B-1 (Z-733) 

 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner is Terrey Barash.  The applicant is Arthur E. Kalajian of Arthur E. Kalajian & 
Associates, Inc. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the north side of Maple Road, east of Castleton Drive in section 
25. 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The property is approximately 0.84 acres in size. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
A single family residence and non-conforming commercial building presently sit on the 
property.  
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1E One Family Residential.   
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
B-1 Local Business. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to develop a multi-tenant retail/business building on the 
parcel. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1E One Family Residential. 
South: O-1 Low Rise Office and B-3 General Business. 
East: B-2 Community Business. 
West: R-1E One Family Residential. 
  



 2 

Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
South: Vacant and Gordon Food Service. 
East: Skateworld. 
West: Single family residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed B-1 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 

 Local retail businesses which supply commodities on the premises, for persons 
residing in adjacent residential areas, such as but not limited to: Groceries, meats, 
dairy products, baked goods or other foods dispensed for consumption off the site, 
hardware, drugs and pharmaceuticals. 

 

 Specialty shops such as, but not limited to:  Antique shops, craft shops, and shops 
for the sale of gifts and notions. 

 

 Personal service establishments which perform services on the premises, such as, 
but not limited to: repair shops (watches, radio, television, shoe, etc.) beauty parlors 
and barber shops, and self-service laundries. 

 

 Dry cleaning establishments, or pick-up stations, dealing directly with the 
consumer.   

 

 Business establishments which perform services on the premises such as but not 
limited to: banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, loan companies, 
insurance companies, and real estate offices.  

 

 Professional services including the following: medical clinics (out-patient only) and 
offices of doctors, dentists, osteopaths and similar or allied professions. 

 

 Post office and similar governmental office buildings, serving persons living in the 
adjacent residential area.   

 

 Other uses similar to the above uses. 
  

 Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 

 City and School District buildings, public utility buildings, telephone exchange 
buildings, electric transformer stations and substations, gas regulator stations, and 
water and sewage pumping stations, without storage yards. 

 

 Nursery schools, day nurseries and child care centers (not including dormitories). 
 

 Incidental Customer Seating as an accessory to food sales establishments. 



 3 

Access Management: 
The parcel has frontage on Maple Road. 
 
Combining the subject parcel with the parcel to the west and developing them as one 
integrated development would be preferable to having two abutting smaller parcels be 
developed independently of each other, with adjacent entry drives placed relatively 
close to each other. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will be required to provide on-site storm water detention and all other 
utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Compliance with City of Troy Master Plan: 
The Master Plan proposes Neighborhood Node B at the intersection of Maple and 
Dequindre.  The characteristics of the node are described in the Neighborhood Node 
section of the Plan (page 93).  Proposed uses include limited housing, service uses, or 
specialty retail and dining.  The Master Plan proposes Single Family Residential west of 
the node along both sides of Maple.  To determine whether the application complies 
with the Master Plan, the western extent of the Neighborhood Node needs to be 
determined. 
 
A single family residence and non-conforming commercial building presently sit on the 
property.  The commercial building is small and has limited potential for re-use.   
 
The applicant provided a sketch showing how he intends to develop the property.  The 
sketch shows a strip commercial building with its front face being perpendicular to 
Maple Road.  Given the narrow width of the parcel (144 feet), a strip commercial 
building of this scale would need to be oriented this way to fit on the parcel.  This 
orientation would contribute little to the Maple Road streetscape.  Additionally, the long 
term economic viability of buildings that do not front on the street would be 
questionable.  The applicant indicates that a similar type commercial building could be 
developed opposite this building in the future, if the parcel to the west were to be 
rezoned and redeveloped.  However this may never happen. 
 
To improve the economic viability of the parcel and improve its relationship with the 
Maple Road corridor, the applicant should consider acquisition of the abutting parcel to 
the west.  This would expand the width of the parcel, improve its economic viability, and 
provide area for an appropriately screened parking area in front of and/or to the rear of 
the building. 
 
Residential parcels abut the subject parcel to the west and north.  If the property were to 
be rezoned, a 6-foot high zoning wall would be required along both property lines.  This 
relationship would need to be considered during the Preliminary Site Plan Review 
process to ensure that impacts on these residential parcels are minimal. 



 4 

Compliance with Location Standards of the B-1 District:  
The B-1 Local Business Zoning District does not have Location Standards to apply to 
rezoning requests. 
 
 
CITY MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Management recommends denial of the rezoning application for the following 
reasons: 
 

1. The rezoning is incompatible with single family uses and zoning districts to the 
north and west. 
 

2. Developing this parcel in a way that is consistent with the standards of 
Neighborhood Node B in the City of Troy Master Plan would be difficult due to its 
small size and narrow width. 
 

3. The proposed development shown on the sketch plan is “strip” development that 
is not economically viable.   
 

4. Rezoning this small, narrow parcel promotes poor access management. 
 
City Management would support a conditional rezoning application if the applicant were 
to acquire the parcel to the west and combine it with the subject parcel.  The expanded 
area would provide the following: 
 

1. Opportunities for Integrated development on one parcel. 
 

2. Opportunities for improved access management. 
 

3. Opportunities for appropriate buffering between residential and non-residential 
uses.  
 

4. Opportunities for development that complements the Maple Road Corridor. 
 

5. Opportunities for development that meets the standards of Neighborhood Node B 
of the City of Troy Master Plan. 

 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Letter from applicant. 
2. Maps. 

 
Applicant 
File / Z- 733 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-733 Maple Business Center Sec 25\PC Report Z-733 11 11 08.docx 
 













 
 
 
 
 

Additional documents 
are included with Council’s agenda packets 

and available for viewing at the 
City Clerk’s Office and the Troy Public Library 



1 
 

 
DATE: December 9, 2008 
 

TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 

SUBJECT: City Council Public Hearing – Concept Development Plan Approval – BBK Mixed Use 
Project – Northeast corner of Big Beaver and Kilmer, Section 22, Currently Zoned O-1 
(Low Rise Office) and R-1E (One Family Residential) District 

 
 
Background: 

 

 The applicant proposes a mixed-use development on the 2.553-acre parcel.  The project 
includes 14 residential units and 19,226 gross square feet of retail.  The applicant proposes 
sustainable elements such as a green roof system on the retail component. 

 

 The Planning Commission recommended Concept Development Plan Approval of PUD 10 at 
the November 11, 2008 Regular meeting.   

 

 Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., the City’s Planning Consultant, prepared 
a report summarizing the project and recommending Concept Development Plan Approval. 

 

 The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval of Section 35.30.00 of the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 

 The attached report was presented to the Planning Commission at the November 11, 2008 
Regular meeting.   

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

 There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

 City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 

 Concept Development Plan Approval will have the effect of rezoning the subject parcel to PUD 
10. 

  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-03



2 
 

Policy Considerations: 
 

 The application is consistent with the following “Outcome Statements” as established at the 
July 1, 2008 Special Council meeting: 

 

II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and 
quality of life venues. 

III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a 
changing and interconnected world. 

 
 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve the application for Concept Development Plan Approval. 
 

 City Council can approve the application for Concept Development Plan Approval with 
conditions. 

 

 City Council can deny the application for Concept Development Plan Approval. 
 

 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality: ________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., dated November 6, 2008. 
3. Traffic Impact Study Review prepared by OHM, dated November 5, 2008. 
4. Traffic Impact Study Review prepared by OHM, dated October 22, 2008. 
5. Planning Commission Minutes from the November 11, 2008 Regular meeting. 
6. BBK PUD Conceptual Development Plan. 
7. PUD Development Agreement. 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Applicant 
 Richard Carlisle/CWA 
 File /PUD 10 
 
G:\PUD's\PUD 010 Big Beaver Kilmer\CC Public Hearing 12 15 08.docx 







ROCHESTER

DEQUINDRE

LONG LAKE
JOHN

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPHENSON

COOLIDGE

CROOKS
MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ADAMS



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



TA
LB

OT

LANGSTON

KI
LM

ER

CH
AR

TE
R

E BIG BEAVER

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REQUEST
PROPOSED BIG BEAVER & KILMER DEVELOPMENT
NE CORNER F BIG BEAVER & KILMER
SEC. 22  (PUD 010) 

SUBJECT SITE

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³



TA
LB

OT

LANGSTON

KI
LM

ER

CH
AR

TE
R

E BIG BEAVER

O-1

R-1E

O-M

P-1

RM-1

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REQUEST
PROPOSED BIG BEAVER & KILMER DEVELOPMENT
NE CORNER F BIG BEAVER & KILMER
SEC. 22  (PUD 010) 

SUBJECT SITE

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³



S I75

HE
LE

NA

E BIG BEAVER

N I75

COACHMAN

ROCHESTER

NAUGHTON

ROCHESTER

ROCHESTER

FR
AN

KT
ON

W BIG BEAVER

BEACON HILL

ACACIA

BOYD

TORPEY

CHARRINGTON

KI
LM

ER

LANGSTON

HARTLAND

S I75 COLL

URBANCREST

LINDA

EL
LE

NB
OR

O

M I RAGE

CH
AR

TE
R

HENRIETTA

TR
OY

CENTURY

OWENDALE

LO
UI

S

N I75 OFRP

TOWN CENTER

N I75 COLL

N I75 ONRP

HARRIS

COLONY

VANDERPOOL

S I75 OFRP

RO
CH

ES
TE

R

LIV
ER

NO
IS

S I75 ONRP

TA
LB

OT

Civic
Center

21st
Century Industrial

Big Beaver

High
Density Residential

Big
Beaver

Rochester Road

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REQUEST
PROPOSED BIG BEAVER & KILMER DEVELOPMENT
NE CORNER OF BIG BEAVER & KILMER
SEC. 22  (PUD #10)

0 500 1,000250
Feet ³

SUBJECT PARCEL



 
 
  

 Date: September 18, 2008 
Rev.: October 27, 2008 

Rev.: November 6, 2008 
 

Planned Unit Development/Site Plan Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Applicant Landus Development 

Project Name: BBK Mixed Use Development PUD 

Plan Date: November 4, 2008 

Location: Northeast corner of Kilmer Road and Big Beaver Road 

Zoning: O-1, Low Rise Office and R1-E, Single Family Residential (a 
small section is a current right-of-way for Myrtle Avenue) 

Action Requested: Planning Commission review and recommendation to the City 
Council for approval of the Concept Development Plan.  The 
procedure for review and approval of a PUD is a three-step 
process:   

• The first step is an application for and approval of a 
Concept Development Plan, along with a Development 
Agreement.  The Concept Development Plan and 
Development Agreement are approved by the City Council 
following recommendation of the Planning Commission.  
Such action, if and when approved, shall confer upon the 
applicant approval of the Concept Development Plan and 
shall rezone the property to PUD in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the Concept Development Plan 
approval.   

• The second step of the review and approval process is 
application for and approval of a Preliminary Development 
Plan (preliminary site plan) for the entire project, or for any 
one or more phases of the project.  City Council shall have 



BBK Mixed Use Development PUD November 6, 2008 

2 

the final authority to approve and grant Preliminary 
Development Plan approvals, following a recommendation 
by the Planning Commission.   

• The third step of the review and approval process is the 
review and approval of a Final Development Plan (final site 
plan) for the entire project, or for any one or more phases 
of the project, and the issuance of building permits.  Final 
Development Plans for Planned Unit Developments are 
submitted to the Planning Department for administrative 
review, and the Planning Department, with the 
recommendation of other appropriate City Departments, 
has final authority for approval of such Final Development 
Plans. 

Required Information:         Provided. 

PROJECT, SITE DESCRIPTION, AND CONCEPT PLAN
We are in receipt of a revised application for a proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD) that 
includes 18,699 square feet of retail space in 3 buildings and 14 residential units of 
approximately 1,600 square feet in area.  The 2.553 acre site is currently occupied by a vacant 
single-family home.  The project is proposed in two phases, which are proposed for construction 
simultaneously. 

We have reviewed conceptual submittals for this project on four previous occasions; the most 
recent review was in a letter dated October 27, 2008.  Since that submittal, the applicant has met 
with the Planning Commission and City of Troy staff and consultants to resolve a series of 
remaining issues.  The revisions include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

• The south drive on Kilmer Road has been turned into an exit only driveway. 

• Outdoor seating between the retail buildings has been reconfigured and brought forward. 

• All sheets have been updated to ensure consistency throughout. 

• Eleven of the residential units have been revised in design to include 2-car garages, 
increasing the site’s overall parking by 11 spaces. 

• Clarification has been provided which ensures that the areas labeled “flex room” and 
optional office/retail spaces attached to units 11 and 12 will not be used for true public-
access live/work units. 

• Left turn only has been eliminated from both Kilmer driveways. 

• The “chicane” south of Retail Building C has been softened to allow for improved 
alignment. 

• The drive-through exit lane at Retail Building C has been altered to improve circulation. 

• The outdoor seating near Retail Building C has been reconfigured. 

 



BBK Mixed Use Development PUD November 6, 2008 

3 

The underlying zoning of the subject site would not permit the retail portion of the project or the 
attached residential portion of the project.  The project would also require a series of deviations 
from the dimensional and parking requirements of the underlying zoning.  Given these proposed 
use and dimensional deviations, the applicant has elected to pursue PUD approval for this 
project. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
NEIGHBORING ZONING AND LAND USE
 
The site is made up of a collection of parcels having two different zoning classifications.  The 
1.47 acres facing Big Beaver Road are zoned O-1, while the 0.77 acres along the north boundary 
of the site are zoned R-1E.  A 50-foot wide strip between these two portions of the site is 
reserved as right-of-way for Myrtle Avenue.  The residential area to the north is zoned R-1E, 
while property to the west and east are zoned O-1 and a mix of O-1 and R-1E.  To the south 
across Big Beaver Road are O-M, RM-1, and O-1 districts. 
 
Nearby land uses include a collection of office uses, retail establishments, and single family 
residential.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
MASTER PLAN 
 
The site is located at the northeast intersection of Big Beaver and is within the “Offices East” 
district of the Big Beaver Corridor Plan and is within the Big Beaver Corridor district in the Troy 
2008 Master Plan.   
 
In general, the primary focus of the Office East District with the Corridor Study is to promote 
general office uses along the frontage with residential uses transitioning to adjoining 
neighborhoods.  The other key aspects of the Corridor relevant to this area include building 
height of 2-3 stories, locating buildings closer to the street, and encouraging pedestrianism.   
 
The collection of uses that are proposed would be complementary to and would strengthen the 
overall office community in this area in that it would provide for a number of new housing types 
for potential workers who would like to live in a more urban situation, and would provide nearby 
restaurant and retail opportunities for workers. 
 
The uses and character of Big Beaver Corridor district in the Troy 2008 Master Plan are driven 
by the recommendations of the Big Beaver Corridor Study and subsequent efforts of the 
Planning Commission to create new zoning techniques to implement those recommendations.  
The mixed-use nature of this project and the attention the applicant has given to pedestrian 
amenities, outdoor dining, innovative architectural design, interaction between the retail units 
and the streetscape through large glazed areas are elements specific to this project that are 
directly mentioned as desirable elements within the Big Beaver Corridor district in the Master 
Plan. 
 



BBK Mixed Use Development PUD November 6, 2008 

4 

The applicant’s desire to build this development to a green standard is a further example of this 
project’s degree of compliance with the Troy 2008 Master Plan, which strongly encourages the 
incorporation of green design elements in new projects. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
PUD STANDARDS  
 
The PUD provisions of the Zoning Ordinance are found in article XXXV.  Criteria are set forth 
in Section 35.30.00 for consideration of a PUD project as a PUD.  The following are our 
comments: 
 
Section 35.30.00, A.  The proposed development shall be applied for by a person or entity that 
has the legal right to execute a binding agreement concerning all process on the development. 
 
The submittal states that Landus Development, the applicant, is the owner of the property. 
 
Section 35.30.00, B.:  The applicant shall demonstrate that through the use of the PUD option, 
the development will accomplish a sufficient number of the following objectives, as are 
reasonably applicable to the site, providing:  
 
1.  A mixture of land uses that would otherwise not be permitted without the use of the PUD 

provided that other objectives of this Article are also met.  

The project includes a mix of uses.  The existing O-1 zoning along the south portion of 
the site is “… designed to accommodate office uses, office sales uses, and certain basic 
personal services. These districts are mapped typically in major shopping center 
locations related to the activity of the larger establishments generating greater volumes 
of vehicular and pedestrian traffic.” The O-1 classification would permit some service-
oriented uses specifically selected to serve an office environment.  The proposed general 
retail and potential restaurant uses would not be permitted under the O-1 classification. 
 
The existing R-1E classification is intended to “…to be the most restrictive of the 
residential Districts as to use. The intent is to provide for environmentally sound areas of 
predominantly low-density, single family detached dwellings, through the varying of lot 
sizes and the development options which will accommodate a broad spectrum of house 
sizes and designs appealing to the widest spectrum of the population.” The existing 
classification would not permit the compact, attached single family residential dwellings 
at the density proposed by the applicant. 

 

2.  A public improvement or public facility (e.g. recreational, transportation, safety and 
security) which will enhance, add to or replace those provided by public entities, thereby 
furthering the public health, safety and welfare.  

The proposed project does not constitute a public facility dedicated towards recreation 
transportation, safety or security.  It does, however, integrate public spaces with outdoor 
cafes and water fountains that will allow users and residents of the property to gather in 
outdoor spaces which will enhance the health, safety, and welfare of those individuals. 



BBK Mixed Use Development PUD November 6, 2008 

5 

 

3. A recognizable and material benefit to the ultimate users of the project and to the 
community, where such benefit would otherwise be infeasible or unlikely to be achieved 
absent these regulations.   

This project includes a collection of restaurant uses, retail spaces, and an under-
represented type of residential unit in Troy.  This compact project with a mix of uses will 
allow for a higher density residential project to be served by adjacent retail uses. This is 
especially true given the project’s walkable design, easily access, and integrated public 
common areas.  Without the PUD option, this compact mix of compatible uses would not 
be possible. 

 

4. Long term protection and preservation of natural resources, natural features, and historic 
and cultural resources, of a significant quantity and/or quality in need of protection or 
preservation, and which would otherwise be unfeasible or unlikely to be achieved absent 
these regulations.  

The site is currently undeveloped, with the exception of an existing single family home.  
The site does not have rare or critical natural features.  Given the proposed density and 
sensitive green building approach, the development would improve site conditions, 
especially when contrasted against the likely conditions that would occur under 
conventional zoning. 

 

5. A compatible mixture of open space, landscaped areas, and/or pedestrian amenities.   

The project would improve on the existing conditions in this regard and does include 
small pockets of open space and landscaped areas. While it does not provide a great deal 
of open space, it does make effective use of the remaining open areas for stormwater 
management and for landscape features.   

The project does include a useful pedestrian network, and allows for effective, safe 
pedestrian access between the residential and retail components. 

 

6. Appropriate land use transitions between the PUD and surrounding properties.  

 The project would reside between the Big Beaver Road corridor and an existing single 
family residential area.  The project includes a mix of uses which are situated so as to 
separate the primary retail uses along Big Beaver from the single family neighborhood, 
locating a collection of townhomes in the transitional area.  Given the small size of this 
project and the proximity of the adjacent single family neighborhood, we feel this project 
successfully provides for an appropriate land use transition. 

 

7. Design features and techniques, such as green building and low impact design, which 
will promote and encourage energy conservation and sustainable development.  

The project narrative and conceptual plan indicates that the project intends to promote 



BBK Mixed Use Development PUD November 6, 2008 

6 

green building techniques and low impact design.  The narrative indicates that designers 
will seek LEED Certification or “sustainable design implementation or certification.” 
While it is unclear what other certification the project may choose to pursue, the limited 
detail provided in the conceptual building elevations and floor plan drawings reveal that 
the applicant intends to incorporate a series of green design elements which may 
contribute to towards LEED certification including: 

• Energy star roofing membrane 

• Operable clerestory windows 

• Rooftop gardens 

• Sun shading overhangs 

• Bioswales 

• “Green” paving in certain parking areas 

 

8. Innovative and creative site and building designs, solutions and materials.  

 The proposed PUD includes a compact, integrated collection of structures that 
maximizes the use of the property and allows for residents and visitors to access a series 
of goods or services within one project.  The walkable character and provision of 
outdoor seating and decorative fountains add to the character of the site.  The inclusion 
of contemporary townhomes in the project help to expand the housing types available in 
the City of Troy and will represent an alternative housing choice for new families, 
retirees, or homebuyers looking for entry-level or small-floor plan housing in a unique 
urban setting. 

 

9. The desirable qualities of a dynamic urban environment that is compact, designed to 
human scale, and exhibits contextual integration of buildings and city spaces.   

 This project does have a strong emphasis on street activity, mixed use, and pedestrians.  
It is designed to create an alternative living environment and expand the scope of 
traditional “strip” retail.  It includes a compact collection of uses with integrated public 
areas and extensive pedestrian amenities between the various project components. 

 

10.  The PUD will reasonably mitigate impacts to the transportation system and enhance non-
motorized facilities and amenities.   

Please refer to the section of this report entitled “Site Access and Circulation.”   

 

11.  For the appropriate assembly, use, redevelopment, replacement and/or improvement of 
existing sites that are occupied by obsolete uses and/or structures;  

 This project will be redeveloping what is mostly vacant with a single vacant structure.  
While the project does not necessarily allow for the positive redevelopment of an 
obsolete structure, it is appropriately using a small site along a major urban corridor.   



BBK Mixed Use Development PUD November 6, 2008 

7 

 

12.  A complementary variety of housing types that are in harmony with adjacent uses;  

While the proposed housing is at a far greater density than the adjacent residential uses 
to the north, it does provide an alternative, but complementary single family attached 
housing product which provides an effective transition between the Big Beaver Corridor 
and existing residential area. 

 

13. A reduction of the impact of a non-conformity or removal of an obsolete building or 
structure.  

Please refer to comment #11 above. 

 

14. A development consistent with and meeting the intent of this Article; and will promote 
the intent of the plan meeting the requirements of the Municipal Planning Act or the 
intent of any applicable corridor or sub-area plans.  If conditions have changed since the 
plan, or any applicable corridor or sub-area plans, were adopted, the uses shall be 
consistent with recent development trends in the area.  

As mentioned earlier, the proposed uses are not the primary target of the Master Plan or 
the Big Beaver Corridor Study, but the collection of uses that are proposed would be 
complementary to and would strengthen the overall office community in this area in that 
it would provide for a number of new housing types for potential workers who would like 
to live in a more urban situation, and would provide nearby restaurant and retail 
opportunities for workers. 

 

15.  Includes all necessary information and specifications with respect to structures, heights, 
setbacks, density, parking, circulation, landscaping, amenities and other design and 
layout features, exhibiting a due regard for the relationship of the development to the 
surrounding properties and uses thereon, as well as to the relationship between the 
various elements within the proposed Planned Unit Development. In determining whether 
these relationships have been appropriately addressed, consideration shall be given to the 
following: 

A.  The bulk, placement, and materials of construction of the proposed structures and 
other site improvements.   

 The site plan includes conceptual drawings of the proposed buildings, but 
detailed drawings that adequately describe materials of construction have not yet 
been provided.   

 

B.  The location and screening of vehicular circulation and parking areas in relation 
to surrounding properties and the other elements of the development.   

 

 



BBK Mixed Use Development PUD November 6, 2008 

8 

The project incorporates parking all around its perimeter.  Two rows of parking 
are situated along Big Beaver Road.  We support the incorporation of shared 
parking to reduce new surface parking and encourage infill development. 

 

C.  The location and screening of outdoor storage, loading areas, outdoor activity or 
work areas, and mechanical equipment.   

Typical screening measures are shown on the site plan.  Dumpster pads and 
loading and unloading areas are integrated throughout the project in accessible 
but unobtrusive areas. 

 

D.  The hours of operation of the proposed uses.  

The retail and restaurant uses typically have hours running until mid to late 
evening.  The residences would allow for activity 24 hours a day. 

 
E.  The location, amount, type and intensity of landscaping, and other site amenities.   
 

The submittal adequately describes the conceptual landscaping plan. 
 
16.  Parking shall be provided in order to properly serve the total range of uses within the 

Planned Unit Development. The sharing of parking among the various uses within a 
Planned Unit Development may be permitted.  The applicant shall provide justification to 
the satisfaction of the City that the shared parking proposed is sufficient for the 
development and will not impair the functioning of the development, and will not have a 
negative effect on traffic flow within the development and/or on properties adjacent to 
the development.   

 Please refer to the section of this report entitled Parking and Loading.  The project relies 
heavily on shared parking to meet anticipated demand. 

 
17.  Innovative methods of stormwater management that enhance water quality shall be 

considered in the design of the stormwater system.  
 

As indicated earlier, the project does include bioswales and a rain garden.  The inclusion 
of “green” pavers in the project will also reduce the rate of stormwater runoff. 

 
18.  The proposed Planned Unit Development shall be in compliance with all applicable 

Federal, State and local laws and ordinances, and shall coordinate with existing public 
facilities.   

 
On the basis of the information provided all applicable laws and ordinances will be 
observed. 

 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 



BBK Mixed Use Development PUD November 6, 2008 

9 

AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS
 
The site plan includes a small table titled “Zoning Information” on Sheet A-101.  This table 
provides dimensional requirements for the O-1 portion of the property, for the R1-E portion of 
the property, and for the right-of-way portion of the property.   
 
Physical standards relating to matters such as building height, bulk, density, parking and 
setbacks will be determined based upon the specific PUD plan presented. The dimensional 
requirements for the underlying zoning and the proposed dimensions are as follows: 
 

 Required:  Provided:  
Lot Area N/A 2.553 acres 

Setbacks 

Big Beaver Frontage 30 feet (O-1 District) 75 feet (retail building C), 76 
feet (A and B) 

Kilmer Frontage 20 feet (O-1 portion), 25 feet (R-1E 
portion) 

Approximately 6 feet from 
residential porches in R-1E 
portion and 10 feet from 
retail building A in the O-1 
portion 

East Boundary 20 feet (O-1 portion), 25 feet (R-1E 
portion) 

Approximately 10 feet for 
retail building C, 0 feet for 
residential unit 4 

North Boundary 25 feet (side yard setback) for the 
R-1E district 10 feet for residential unit 1 

Building Height 
Minimum of 3 stories for 80 
percent of the project; setback 
requirements are tiered for building 
higher than 30 feet. 

36 feet for the residential 
portion and 31.5 feet for the 
retail portion 
 

 
 
Items to be Addressed: None.  
 
PARKING, LOADING 
 
The project is dependent upon a shared parking arrangement with the neighboring project.  For 
the retail portion of the project, 42 of the provided spaces are created through shared parking.  
Since the last submittal, the applicant has increased the number of provided spaces by expanding 
11 of the residential garages to accommodate a second car.  This will reduce the demand on 
visitor parking for primary residents’ second vehicles. 
 
Given that parking for the proposed project cannot be met on the site due to constraints in the 
site’s area, the applicant intends to utilize shared parking for the project.  An agreement for the 
shared parking has been obtained, and has been provided.  The applicant’s submittal does 



BBK Mixed Use Development PUD November 6, 2008 

10 

provide sufficient documentation to illustrate that the proposed shared parking would not impact 
the adjacent office complex to the point that it would reduce the sites ability to accommodate the 
existing office center and Bahama Breeze restaurant. 
 
The application reveals the following information about parking for the proposed project: 
 
Required under conventional zoning for proposed uses: 
 

• Phase 1: Retail.  18,685/200 = 93.4 (94) required spaces 
• Phase 2: 14 residences with 2 spaces each = 28 required spaces 

 
Provided: 
 

• Retail: 74 spaces provided on-site and 42 spaces provided in shared parking 
• Residential: 25 garage and 16 visitor spaces, provided on-site and on-street along Kilmer 

Road. 
 
The clarification that the residential units will not contain live/work style space eliminates our 
previous concerns over the potential for increased demand.  We do suggest that the development 
agreement include strict provisions on the flex room and optional office/retail spaces connected 
to units 11 and 12 to prohibit public traffic to these units, a limitation on deliveries, or other 
measures meant to preempt potential parking and circulation concerns. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  Include provisions in the development agreement to prohibit public 
traffic to the flex spaces within the residential units and the optional spaces attached to units 11 
and 12, a limitation on deliveries, or other measures meant to preempt potential parking and 
circulation concerns. 
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION
 
Following the last Planning Commission discussion with the applicant, City of Troy staff 
members and consultants met with the applicant and discussed the site circulation concerns 
raised by the previous OHM review and Planning Commissioners.  In response to the original 
OHM concerns, a series of changes have been made to the site plan and OHM has issued a new 
letter stating that they largely support the applicant’s revised plan. 
 
In order to reduce the potential conflicts associated with the southern-most driveway on Kilmer 
Road, the design has been changed to an exit only driveway.  This approach will permit vehicles 
to exit the west portion of the lot if they are unable to find a parking space or leave the 
development when finished with their stay. The exit only design will restrict the ability of 
vehicles to enter the site from Kilmer while reducing concerns over safety and circulation on 
site.  Emergency vehicles will be able to access to site via this driveway as well. 
 
The north driveway on Kilmer has been restored to a two way design, to ensure that visitors to 
the site that live north of the project can access their neighborhood without travelling back to Big 
Beaver Road. 



BBK Mixed Use Development PUD November 6, 2008 

11 

 
The formerly abrupt chicane south of Retail Building C has been redesigned, along with the 
drive-through exit lanes, to enhance safety and circulation in this critical entry point to the 
project. 
 
After careful review of the turning templates provided by the applicant, the Fire Department has 
no objection to the maneuvering lane design for the north portion of the project.  Further, given 
that the applicant has agreed not to permit businesses within the residential units, we are no 
longer as concerned with access for large delivery vehicles.  The turning templates suggest that 
in a worst-case scenario, delivery trucks could potentially access the units if necessary for 
moving, etc.  It is our understanding that the applicant would agree to certain restrictions on 
large vehicles, the presence of businesses in the residential units, and other measures within the 
development agreement that would reduce the potential conflicts in this area of the site. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
ESSENTIAL SERVICES 
 
The application includes a summary of proposed utility connections.  The applicant intends to 
connect the site to the existing 10 inch water main and sewer lines on Big Beaver Road and 
provide a loop around the site.  The site plan also includes a series of stormwater management 
elements, including bioswale, a rain garden, roof vegetation, and underground detention systems.  
We defer to the City Engineer in this regard. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  Consult with City Engineer with regard to water and sewer service. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
We believe the compact, integrated design and complementary mix of uses included in this 
project would benefit the Big Beaver Corridor and the City of Troy.  The PUD option allows the 
City to permit a compact, higher-density project that incorporates a mix of retail and residential 
uses that would be highly beneficial in this office and research dominated area by providing 
alternative dwelling options and nearby services.     
 
The majority of our issues raised in our previous review have been addressed by the applicant 
and discussions with the Planning Commission, City Staff, and consultants have resulted in 
alterations that continue to improve the plan.  The incorporation of 11 additional spaces within 
the residential unit garages will significantly improve the parking situation and we support the 
applicant’s proposed changes with regard to site circulation. 
 
Given these positive changes and our conclusion that the project does qualify as a Planned Unit 
Development, we recommend that the Planning Commission recommend to the City Council that 
the proposed PUD concept plan be approved, conditioned on the applicant agreeing to include 
provisions in the development agreement to prohibit public traffic to the flex spaces within the 
residential units and the optional spaces attached to units 11 and 12, a limitation on deliveries, or 
other measures meant to preempt potential parking and circulation concerns. 
 



BBK Mixed Use Development PUD November 6, 2008 

12 

  
  # 225-02-2603 
RKC: zb 



 

 

 November 5, 2008 
 
 
Mr. William Huotari, PE  
Deputy City Engineer 
City of Troy 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 
 
Subject:  Review of BBK Mixed-Use Development (Site Plan and Traffic Assessment Report) 
OHM JN:  0128-08-0020 
 
 
Dear Mr. Huotari: 
  
Based on information provided at the October 30, 2008 Planning Department Team Meeting for 
the BBK Mixed-Use Development we understand that the majority of comments from our 
October 22, 2008 letter have been superseded by previously made agreements between City 
Planners and the Development Team. 
 
Coming out of the October 30 meeting, we requested the developer to revise the following items 
on the site plan: 
 

 Revise the south drive along Kilmer Road to provide for “exit only” operation. 
 Revise the sharp chicane along the east-west parking aisle closest to Big Beaver Road 

to provide more of a gradual shift. 
 Remove the “left-turn only” restriction at the drives along Kilmer Road. 

 
These concerns have been addressed with this submittal.  Please contact me if you have any 
questions. 
 
Sincerely,  
Orchard Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. 

 
Steven M. Loveland, PE, PTOE 



 

 

 October 22, 2008 
 
 
Mr. William Huotari, PE  
Deputy City Engineer 
City of Troy 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 
 
Subject:  Review of BBK Mixed-Use Development (Site Plan and Traffic Assessment Report) 
OHM JN:  0128-08-0020 
 
 
Dear Mr. Huotari: 
  
As requested, we have reviewed the BBK Mixed-Use Development traffic assessment report 
and site plan for traffic related issues.  The following comments are offered:  
 
Traffic Impact Assessment Review 
Based on the current site plan we agree with the conclusions provided in the assessment. 
 

- The BBK Mixed-Use development will not adversely impact traffic in the immediate 
area of the development. 

- The proposal to share 42 parking spaces located in the Willow Centre parking lot is 
justified based upon the full leasing potential of the center and the full occupancy of 
the BBK property. 

 
However, there are a few items that should be considered: 
 

- The first Kilmer Road access point is proposed to be located approximately 65 feet 
north of Big Beaver Road.  According to the Michigan Access Management 
Guidebook, the desirable corner clearance is 115’.  This corresponds to the location 
of the existing driveway for the office building on the west side of Kilmer.  

- From the Michigan Access Management Guidebook, the Guideline for Unsignalized 
Driveway Spacing (Table 3-5) indicates a value of 350’ for a 45 mph road.  The 
proposed driveway spacing is 290’ and 190’ between driveway and Kilmer Road. 

- The report indicates that the site will generate less than 100 peak hour trips, while 
trip generation calculations indicate otherwise. 

- The document indicates that a background growth rate would not be appropriate, but 
later states that a 1.6% growth rate was applied.  The figures do not apply the 1.6% 
growth rate. 

 
With revisions to site layout, including number and location of driveways, the traffic assessment 
document will need to be revised. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Mr. William Huotari, P.E. 
October 10, 2008 

Page 2 
Site Plan Review 
The proposed site plan has a number of inconsistencies with the Big Beaver Corridor Study. 
  

- This site is located in the “Office East” portion of the corridor, with the intended 
building use of office and residential.  The site plan proposes retail and residential. 

- The Driveway Access section of the Corridor Study notes existing problems in the 
vicinity of this site.  The problems include too many driveways, need for east-west 
cross access, and driveways too close to intersections.  This site will add to these 
problems with the addition of another improperly spaced drive along Big Beaver 
Road and the driveway to Kilmer Road spaced too closely to Big Beaver Road.   

 
The following comments are provided regarding the site layout: 
 

- We recommend eliminating the proposed driveway along Big Beaver Road.  Cross 
access to the existing driveway along Big Beaver Road plus the driveways along 
Kilmer Road provide more than adequate access to the site.   

- Further, if the site is redesigned we would recommend only providing one driveway 
along Kilmer Road that would align with the existing driveway along the west side of 
Kilmer Road.  Vehicles entering this drive could access both the residential and retail 
portions of the site. 

- The proposed left-turn only exits at both drives along Kilmer Road will be very hard 
to enforce and the turn restrictions should be removed from the plan.  If there is a 
potential for citizens from the neighborhood to the north to patronize the retail 
portions of this site, then right turns should not be prohibited.  In restricting right-
turns, traffic will unnecessarily have to enter Big Beaver Road to access northbound 
Kilmer Road. 

- The east-west parking aisle closest to Big Beaver Road should be directly aligned 
with the Willow Centre parking aisle, and avoid the sharp chicane or shift in 
alignment that draws it closer to Big Beaver.  Otherwise, the drive-thru exit from 
Retail “C” and the parking aisle curves will need to be revised.  The current 
configuration provides for unsafe driving conditions due to the sharp curves 
transitioning between alignments and the location of the drive-thru exit relative to the 
curves.  At a minimum, the left-turn only exit from the drive-thru should be further 
channelized to help drivers make the left-turn.  Also, the curb line at the drive-thru 
exit will need to be shaved back to provide a more gradual shift along the parking 
aisle than accomplished with the curves currently shown.   

 
Please contact me if you have any questions regarding our findings. 
 
Sincerely,  
Orchard Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. 

 
Steven M. Loveland, PE, PTOE 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 11, 2008 
  

 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 

12. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 10) – Proposed Big Beaver and Kilmer 
Planned Unit Development, Northeast Corner of Big Beaver and Kilmer, Section 
22, Currently Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) and R-1E (One Family Residential) 
Districts 
 
Zak Branigan of Carlisle Wortman Associates reported on the recent revisions of 
the proposed PUD development.  It is their recommendation that the Planning 
Commission recommends to the City Council that the proposed PUD Concept 
Development Plan be approved, conditioned on the applicant agreeing to include 
provisions in the development agreement to prohibit public traffic to the flex 
spaces within the residential units and the optional spaces attached to units 11 
and 12, a limitation on deliveries, or other measures meant to preempt potential 
parking and circulation concerns.   
 
The petitioner, Ryan Marsh of Landus Development, 32121 Woodward Avenue, 
Royal Oak, was present.  Mr. Marsh addressed the neighborhood support, 
executed lease and viability of the project.  He asked the Commission’s support 
and recommendation of the proposed Concept Development Plan. 
 
There was brief discussion relating to deceleration lane, traffic management, 
storm water management and landscaping.   
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-11-136 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission reviewed a Concept Development Plan for 
a Planned Unit Development, pursuant to Article 35.50.01, as requested by 
Landus Development for the BBK Mixed-Use Development Planned Unit 
Development (PUD 10), located on the northeast corner of Big Beaver and Kilmer, 
located in Section 22, within the O-1 and R-1E zoning districts, being 
approximately 2.546 acres in size; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City’s Planning Consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc. prepared a memorandum dated November 6, 2008 that 
recommends Concept Development Plan approval of BBK Mixed-Use 
Development Planned Unit Development; and 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 11, 2008 
  

 
 

 
WHEREAS, The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval set forth in 
Article 35.30.00; and   
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to 
City Council that Concept Development Plan Approval for BBK Mixed-Use 
Development Planned Unit Development be granted.  
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



 

Troy_504549_2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

KILMER PLAZA 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN / COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

CITY OF TROY 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

FOR 

“KILMER PLAZA” 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

 

This Development Agreement (“Agreement”), dated December __, 2008, is entered into by 

and between MARSH BBK-TROY, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, the address of 

which is 300 Balmoral Centre, 32121 Woodward Avenue, Royal Oak, Michigan 48073, referred to 

herein as the “Developer”, and the CITY OF TROY, a Michigan municipal corporation, having its 

principal offices at 500 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 48084 (“City”). 

R E C I T A L S: 

A. Developer is the owner of certain real property located in the City of Troy, County of 

Oakland, State of Michigan, consisting of 2 parcels and containing approximately 2.55 acres, as more 

particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto (the “Property”). Developer also has an 

easement interest in the adjoining Willow Centre Complex, which is further described in Article II of 

this agreement.  



 

2  
Troy_504549_2 

B. Developer has petitioned for an amendment to the City’s Zoning Ordinance granting 

a rezoning of the Property to Planned United Development (“PUD”), the Development to be known 

as “Kilmer Plaza”, sometimes also referred to herein as the “Development” or the “Planned Unit 

Development”.  Developer has received Conceptual Development Plan Approval from City Council 

for the rezoning of the Property to PUD as required by Article XXXV of the City’s Zoning 

Ordinance, and approval of a Conceptual Site Plan, a copy of which is hereto attached as Exhibit B. 

C. In connection with the grant of rezoning of the Property to PUD, Section 35.80.00 of 

the City’s Zoning Ordinance requires the submission of a Planned Unit Development Agreement 

executed by the Developer which incorporates conceptual site plans, conceptual landscaping plans 

and other documents enumerated as PUD Documents, as defined below, and which requires approval 

by City Council of those documents as part of the grant of rezoning of the Property to PUD.  As part 

of Conceptual Development Plan approval, Developer has offered and agreed to proceed with the 

undertakings described in the PUD Documents which Developer and the City agree were necessary 

and roughly proportional to the burden imposed in order to (i) ensure that the public services and 

facilities affected by the Development will be capable of accommodating increased services and 

facility loads caused by the Development, (ii) protect the natural environment and conserve natural 

resources, (iii) ensure compatibility with adjacent uses of land, (iv) promote use of the Property in a 

socially and economically desirable manner and (v) achieve other legitimate objectives authorized 

under the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, MCL 125.3101, et. seq. and Chapter 39, Article XXXV of 

the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance. 

D. For the purpose of confirming the rights, obligations and restrictions in connection 

with the development to be undertaken on the Property, once City Council has enacted an 

Amendment to the Zoning Ordinance rezoning the Property to the Planned Unit Development and 

approved this Agreement, the effective date of the rezoning and this Agreement shall be the date on 

which City Council approves this Agreement.  After the agreement granting rezoning is effective, the 

Planning Director shall take what actions are necessary to correct the Zoning Map to show the 

rezoning of the property and as of the effective date, this Agreement shall be binding upon the City, 

the Developer, the owners of any portion of the Property including condominium units, if applicable; 

and tenants within the Development; and all the association(s) established, and all successors and 

assigns and shall run with the land. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, as an integral part of the grant of the rezoning of the Property to 

“Kilmer Plaza” Planned Unit Development, and for other good and valuable consideration, the 

receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

GENERAL TERMS 

1.1 This Agreement including all PUD Documents, whether conceptual, preliminary or 

final, shall run with the land.  Reference in this Agreement or any PUD Documents to “Developer” 

shall include Developer’s successors and assigns.  Any reference to owners, property owners, or 

associations or condominiums shall include their successors and assigns.  It is the intent of the City 

and Developer to put all future owners of the Property or parties in interest on notice of the rights, 



 

3  
Troy_504549_2 

obligations and restrictions contained herein by recording this Agreement with the Oakland County 

Register of Deeds.  Any termination of an ownership interest shall not nullify or void this 

Agreement.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be considered “Deed Restrictions” 

voluntarily entered into and binding upon all Developers and any successors or assigns of the 

Property. 

1.2 The Project shall be developed and improved in accordance with the following, 

which shall be referred to herein as the “PUD Documents”: 

A. Chapter 39, ARTICLE XXXV of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, and amendments, if 

any. 

B. This PUD Agreement. 

C. The Conceptual Development Plan  (referred to as, CDP, bound in a three ring binder 

and date stamped “Received” by the City of Troy Planning Department on December 9, 2008). 

D. The following full-sized plans, date stamped “Received” by the City of Troy 

Planning Department on November 21, 2008: 

Sheet  A-101  Architectural/Composite Plan – Proposed New Work 

Sheet C-1  Boundary and Topographical Survey 

Sheet C-2  Preliminary Site Plan 

Sheet C-4  Preliminary Utility Plan 

Sheet  C-5  Preliminary Truck Access Plan 

Sheet L-1  Preliminary Landscape Plan 

Sheet L-2  Preliminary Landscape Plan 

Sheet L-3  Landscape Plan-Bio Swales 

Sheet L-4  Landscape Details 

Sheet L-5  Landscape Specifications 

Sheet L-6  Landscape Specifications 

 

E. The resolution in the official minutes of the meeting at which the City Council 

approved the Planned Unit Development, including any and all conditions of the approval contained 

therein. 

F. An Affidavit of Property Ownership to be recorded with the Oakland County 

Register of Deeds prior to commencement of construction and prior to the sale of any portion of the 

Project, containing the legal description of the entire Property; specifying the date of  approval of the 

Planned United Development rezoning, and declaring that all future development of the Property has 

been authorized, restricted and required to be carried out in accordance with this Agreement and the 

Ordinance amendment granting rezoning to Planned United Development. 

G. The Preliminary Development Plan (PDP), when it is approved by City Council. 

1.3 Upon City Council approval, the PUD Documents shall be considered as an 

ordinance amendment, granting Kilmer Plaza Planned Unit Development reclassifying the zoning of 

the Property to PUD. The approved PUD Documents constitute the land use authorization for the 



 

4  
Troy_504549_2 

Property, and all use and improvement of the Property shall be in substantial conformity the PUD 

Documents referenced herein. 

ARTICLE II 

DEVELOPER’S RIGHTS, OBLIGATIONS AND PROPERTY RESTRICTIONS 

2.1 Developer shall have the right to develop and use the Property in accordance with the 

PUD Documents and Chapter 39, Article XXXV of the City’s Zoning Ordinance in effect at the time 

of the Conceptual PUD Approval.  Any changes to the CDP, PDP, and Final Development Plan 

(FDP), PUD Site Plan or the Final Site Plan shall be approved in accordance with the City’s Zoning 

Ordinance; provided, however, that minor modifications resulting from engineering considerations or 

site conditions may be approved by the Planning Director . 

2.2 “Kilmer Plaza” is being proposed to be developed utilizing the City of Troy’s 

Planned Unit Development (PUD) Ordinance for a mixed-use commercial, retail and residential 

development.  The Development will enable the redevelopment of the under-utilized two (2) parcels 

of land and a section of abandoned right of way located on the corner of Big Beaver and Kilmer 

Roads.  The Development will provide the residents of the City of Troy with a mixed-use 

development with new commercial, retail, and residential opportunities. The public benefit provided 

by Developer includes the demolition or removal of a vacant one story duplex, and the assemblage of 

properties to create a consistent development that provides a logical transition with the surrounding 

properties.  The Development promotes and is consistent with the redevelopment goals of the Big 

Beaver Corridor Study, which has been incorporated in the City’s recently adopted Master Plan.  The 

objectives of the CDP provide a higher quality of development than could be achieved under 

conventional zoning.  The façade design and pedestrian amenities exceed City of Troy Ordinance 

requirements and accomplish safe and efficient site circulation connectivity.   

2.3 The Property contains one (1) structure, a vacant one story duplex, which the Developer 

shall demolish or move. The City will grant any permits required for demolition, as long as said 

demolition meets City’s requirements Developer shall comply with all State statutes, City 

ordinances, and City Development Standards regarding demolition. 

2.4 The uses permitted at Kilmer Plaza are depicted on the CDP recommended for 

approval by Planning Commission on November 11, 2008, and approved by City Council on 

_____________, 2008, prepared by Niagara Murano Architecture and date stamped “Received” by 

the City of Troy Planning Department on December 9, 2008.  The uses permitted under the CDP are 

also uses permitted in the B-2 and RM-1 zoning districts, of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance. 

However, no commercial, office, or other non residential uses shall be allowed within the areas 

designated for residential uses.   

Developer shall be permitted to develop the retail and residential uses for the Property in two 

different components. Although the retail component is also identified as Phase 1, and the residential 

component as Phase 2 in the PUD Documents, Kilmer PUD is not being developed in phases as that 

term is commonly understood. Instead, Developer shall be allowed to develop the retail component 

first, and the residential component next, as sales occur, provided however, Developer installs or 

constructs the landscaping amenities and other public improvements for the entire Property prior to 

or simultaneously with the building of the retail component, and as further set forth in this 



 

5  
Troy_504549_2 

Agreement.  The retail component shall include the following three (3) structures: a 9,607 gross 

square feet retail building identified on the submitted plans as Building A, a 7,202 gross square feet 

building identified on the submitted plans as Building B, and a 1800 gross square feet stand alone 

drive thru fast food style restaurant, identified as Building C. Developer agrees to completely build 

the retail component by constructing Buildings A, B, and C together and simultaneously.  The 

residential component shall consist of four (4) 3-story buildings, comprised of up to fourteen (14) 

total residential units on the north portion of the Property.  The estimated time of completion for the 

retail component is October 2009, and the estimated time of completion for the residential 

component is October 2011; provided, however, the Parties hereby acknowledge such times for 

completion are merely estimates and in no event shall Developer be in default of this Agreement for 

failure to complete either component of the development prior to such estimated date of completion.  

2.5 List of Conditions Offered in Exchange for PUD Consideration.  

A. Developer or its successors or its assigns shall cause to be installed landscaping and an 

irrigation system on the Property in accordance with the Landscaping Plans as set forth in sheets L1 

through L6.   The landscape features include, but is not limited to: berms, trees, hedges, a manicured 

greenspace, rain-gardens, bioswales, open space, site features including fountains and sculptures, a 

six (6) foot decorative masonry wall and walkable common areas. Developer shall cause to install 

substantially all of the landscaping as depicted on sheets L1 through L6 for the entire property (retail 

and residential components inclusive) prior to or simultaneously with the construction of the retail 

component. At a minimum, Developer shall install the complete landscaping for the retail 

component, and perimeter landscaping for the remainder of the residential component, including 

construction of the six (6) foot masonry wall and installation of landscaping features on the three 

adjoining residential properties to the north of the proposed Kilmer PUD, and as depicted in sheet L-

2.   Prior to PDP approval, Developer shall deliver to the City, to be reviewed and approved by the 

City Attorney, executed perpetual easement agreements by and between the Developer and the three 

adjoining residential property owners, which easements shall allow Developer and or Developer’s 

Successors and Assigns to install and maintain the landscape amenities depicted in sheet L-2 on the 

adjoining residential properties.    

B. Developer shall design the retail component incorporating sustainable design techniques, 

acceptable to the City, and after review by a LEED Accredited Professional on behalf of the City, 

which achieve the intent of those originally referred to in the CDP, including at a minimum: 

1) Energy star roofing membrane (or other technique to reduce heat island effect, such as, 

but not limited to, a vegetated roof or other roofing product with a Solar Reflectance 

Index [SRI] rating of 78 or higher if designed at less than a 2:12 grade); 

2) Operable clerestory windows (designed as part of a natural ventilation and daylighting 

strategy, or other elements designed to use natural light and ventilation); 

3) Sun shading overhangs (used to effectively reduce cooling load in summer months while 

allowing for an increase in solar gain to naturally partially heat indoor spaces when the 

sun’s angle is lower. The use of light shelves is also permissible if they achieve the same 

effect);  

4)  “Green” paving in certain parking areas (to reduce stormwater runoff and reduce heat 

island effect, or other similar measures accomplishing the same effect) 



 

6  
Troy_504549_2 

C.  Developer shall install six (6) parallel parking spaces along Kilmer Avenue as depicted in 

the CDP. Developer shall install the six (6) parallel parking spaces for the entire property (retail and 

residential components inclusive) prior to, or simultaneously with, the construction of the Retail 

Component. Developer shall also maintain shared parking with the neighboring Willow Centre 

Complex. More Specifically, a portion of the parking area for the Development is available to 

Developer pursuant to a Perpetual Easement Agreement executed by and between Developer and 

Shouneyia Properties, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, dated October 22, 2008, and 

recorded on October 22, 2008, in Liber 40674, Page 439, Oakland County Records (“Easement 

Agreement”).  Pursuant to the Agreement, 44 of the parking spaces for the Development are located 

on the property commonly referred to as the Willow Centre (as more particularly described in the 

Easement Agreement).  In addition to parking, the Easement Agreement provides cross access 

easements for the benefit of both the Development and the Willow Centre for ingress and egress 

across all of the entranceways, driveways and walkways for both properties.  Pursuant to the terms of 

the Easement Agreement, the rights to use the parking spaces and the cross access are permanent and 

perpetual and cannot be terminated.   

2.6 Developer shall provide financial assurances satisfactory to the City for completion 

and preservation of all on-site and off-site improvements of the Development described above in 

Section 2.5, including but not limited to, landscaping, landscaping amenities, common areas, 

bioswales, sculptures, fountains, green paving and any other improvements within or for the 

Development. Such financial securities shall be in the form of cash or check or certificate of 

deposit or irrevocable bank letter of credit issued by institutions licensed and admitted to do business 

in the State of Michigan in an amount equal to the cost of construction for such improvements, or a 

performance bond in an amount equal to the cost of construction of such improvements plus ten 

(10%) percent, as specified in a bona fide contract for construction of such improvements, which 

estimate shall be approved by the City Engineer (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, 

conditioned or delayed), together with an agreement with the City, approved by the City Attorney 

(which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), authorizing the City, at 

its option, to install the amenities listed in Section 2.5 if Developer has failed to do so within the time 

specified in this Agreement. 
 

2.7 Developer shall maintain all common areas, storm water drainage and retention 

facilities, landscaped areas, parking areas and sidewalks in good working order and appearance, 

including but not limited to eradicating and controlling all weeds, trimming or pruning all trees, 

hedges, and other landscaping, and cutting any lawn or grass or open space.  Developer may establish 

an association or associations as successor to Developer to assume the maintenance obligations set 

forth in this Article II, in which event the association or associations shall succeed to the Developer’s 

obligations, as set out in the Planned Unit Development Agreement and otherwise, for those portions 

of the Property defined in the instrument establishing each association, and Developer shall be 

relieved of all obligations and liability with respect thereto. 

2.8 Developer or an association or associations, as successor to Developer shall perform 

its landscaping maintenance obligations under Article II of this agreement such that the landscaping 

and related improvements are maintained in a neat and orderly appearance, substantially free from 

refuse and debris and, weather permitting, Developer or the association or associations shall 

promptly replace any dead or dying plants and shrubs, but in no event later than the end of the then-

current planting season. 



 

7  
Troy_504549_2 

2.9 In the event Developer conveys all or any portion of the Property, Developer  shall 

establish restrictions on the Property providing that all portions of the Property shall have full egress 

and ingress for both vehicular and pedestrian use and for egress and ingress to Kilmer, and full 

access of the common areas for utility installation, construction, repair, and maintenance affecting 

and placed upon the Property, which may provide for shared participation in the cost of maintenance 

and repair.   

2.10 Developer shall comply with the City of Troy City Code and Ordinances and 

Engineering Development Standards not inconsistent with this Agreement, and shall make any 

necessary application for permits, and obtain any necessary permits for the use of construction 

trailers and for lease and advertising signs. 

2.11 If the Developer should determine to sell transfer, or lease parts of the retail 

component in the form of a business condominium, Developer shall submit to the Troy City Attorney 

the proposed Master Deed and Bylaws for the Project (collectively the “Master Deed”) for review 

and approval.  If the Master Deed satisfies the requirements of this Development Agreement and 

other applicable City ordinances, then approval of the sale or lease shall not be unreasonably 

withheld, conditioned or delayed.  The Master Deed shall acknowledge that each unit owner and the 

Condominium Association (the “Association”) identified therein will be bound by the terms and 

provisions of this Agreement.  The Master Deed shall comply with all statutes of the State of 

Michigan and City Ordinances and be recorded with the Oakland County Register of Deeds after the 

effective date of the amendment of the zoning ordinance to rezone the Property to PUD. 

The Master Deed shall obligate the Association to maintain the general common elements of 

the retail component, as more particularly set forth in the Master Deed, in good working order and 

appearance, including, without limitation, storm water drainage and retention facilities, private 

roadways, landscaping, parking areas, sidewalks, common structures and facilities, and common 

areas or elements.  In addition, the Master Deed shall provide that the Project is controlled by the 

PUD Documents.  The Master Deed shall also contain provisions for the performance of Developer’s 

maintenance obligations under this Agreement and the PUD Documents.  Each unit owner in the 

Project shall be a member of the Association, as applicable, at all times during the term of ownership 

and, and subject to the assessments of the Association.  The Association shall be authorized to 

perform the functions and duties delegated and assigned under the Master Deed.  The Master Deed 

shall prohibit exterior modification of the units within the Project which are in conflict with the PUD 

Documents. 

2.12 Developer proposes to develop the PUD on lots 17 through 22 of the Burgess 

Bungalow Subdivision Plat, Lot 135 of Replat of Outlot A of Big Beaver Subdivision, and Lots 1,2,3 

of Supervisor’s Plat No. 9,. Developer shall file an application with the City to request a vacation of 

Myrtle Avenue, which is a public right-of-way located in the Burgess Bungalow Subdivision Plat 

prior to seeking FDP approval of the PUD.  Developer shall further cause an amendment to the plats 

conforming to State of Michigan requirements, if so required. Developer shall deliver written 

confirmation to the Planning Director  that the plats have been amended prior to seeking FDP 

approval of the PUD  In the event Myrtle Avenue is not vacated or Developer is unable to obtain plat 

amendments, if so required,  Developer shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and 

Developer shall have no further obligations hereunder. 

 



 

8  
Troy_504549_2 

ARTICLE III 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

3.1 Developer shall, at its sole expense, construct and install improvements and/or 

connections tying into the municipal water and sewage systems, including any required water 

hydrants.  Such improvements shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the FDP, the 

PUD Documents, approved engineering construction plans, applicable City, County and State 

standards, codes, regulations, ordinances and laws.  Such water and sanitary sewer service facilities, 

including any on-site and off-site facilities, extensions and easements to reach the area to be served, 

shall be provided by and at the sole expense of the Developer, and shall be completed, approved and 

dedicated to the City, as requested by the City at its discretion, to the extent necessary to fully service 

all proposed and existing facilities, structures and uses for the entire Property.  No building for the 

retail component or residential component shall be issued any Certificate of Occupancy until the 

entire Property is served by water and sanitary sewer improvements according to applicable laws, 

ordinances, codes, regulations and standards in effect at the time any Certificate of Occupancy for the 

building is applied for.  The City may require that the Developer post security in the form of cash or 

check or certificate of deposit or irrevocable bank letter of credit issued by an institution doing 

business in Oakland County, under a separate agreement in an amount equal to the cost of 

construction , or a performance bond in an amount equal to the cost of construction plus ten (10%) 

percent, as specified in a bona fide contract for construction of such water and sanitary sewer system 

improvements, which estimate shall be approved by the City Engineer (which approval shall not be 

unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), together with an agreement with the City, approved 

by the City Attorney (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), 

authorizing the City, at its option, to install the water system and/or sanitary sewer system if 

Developer has failed to do so within the time specified in this Agreement.  If such deposit is 

approved and made, all building permits shall be issued for construction of buildings and 

improvements.  If Developer fails to fulfill its obligation, then the City shall provide thirty (30) days 

prior written notice to cure.  If a Developer has commenced performance to cure, it shall be given 

such further reasonable time to complete such cure.  All performance bonds, if elected in lieu of letter 

of credit, shall be issued by institutions licensed and admitted to do business in the State of Michigan.  

Building permits for any building to be served by the water and sanitary system facilities 

improvements shall be issued upon the posting of the above security and execution of such 

agreement prior to installation or construction of such sewer and water installations.  Developer shall 

assume all risks associated with any non-availability of water and/or sanitary sewers to serve the 

structures within the Development, including without limitation, uninhabitable buildings and fire 

protection risks, and shall release, indemnity and hold harmless the City from and against any claims 

arising by reason of any such non-availability except for damages that are directly proximately 

caused by the City’s acts or omissions or the gross negligence of the City.  Developer shall, upon 

completion of installation and testing of the public water and sanitary sewer improvements for each 

building, convey and dedicate all interest in such facilities to the City by providing and executing 

documents and title work in accordance with all applicable City ordinances and requirements.  

Thereafter, the City shall assume all liability and obligation for such utilities dedicated. 

3.2 The Developer, at its sole expense, shall construct and maintain a storm water and 

retention and/or detention system for the entire Development, which system shall include the 

improvements provided in this Agreement, and shall be installed in accordance with the PUD 

Documents, the approved engineering construction plans, and all applicable ordinances, laws, codes, 



 

9  
Troy_504549_2 

standards and regulations.  All drainage improvements necessary to serve the Development shall be 

completed and approved prior to issuance of any Certificate of Occupancy for any building.  The 

City may require the Developer to post security in the form of cash or check or certificate of deposit 

or irrevocable letter of credit issued by an institution doing business in Oakland County, in an 

amount equal to the estimated cost of installation, or a performance bond in an amount equal to the 

cost of construction plus ten (10%) percent, as specified in a bona fide contract for installation of 

such drainage improvements approved by the City Engineer (which approval shall not be 

unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), together with an agreement with the City, approved 

by the City Attorney (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), 

authorizing the City to, at its option, install the drainage improvements in question if the Developer 

has failed to do so at the expiration or revocation of building permit(s) after construction has 

commenced.  All performance bonds, if any, shall be issued by institutions licensed and admitted to 

do business in the State of Michigan.  Building permits shall be issued upon the posting of such 

security and execution of such agreement. 

All construction, repair, maintenance and replacement of the storm drainage and 

retention/detention system which are Developer’s responsibility, as described in this Section, shall be 

the sole obligation of the Developer and its successors and assigns.  During the development of the 

Property, the Developer or its successors or assigns shall be obligated to maintain the storm drainage 

and retention and/or detention system and facilities in a fully operational condition. 

3.3 All drives, entryways, sidewalks, non-motorized paths and parking areas within the 

entire Development shall be designed, situated and constructed in accordance with the PUD 

Documents and all requirements and applicable ordinances of the City not inconsistent with this 

Agreement, and the approved engineering construction plans. All internal drives, entryways, 

sidewalks, and parking areas shall be designed and constructed to the standards of the City, except 

for deviations approved by the City Engineer, and will be private except as otherwise setout herein.  

The construction drawings for all drives for the entire property shall be approved prior to issuance of 

building permits for the construction of any building or structure to be served thereby or to benefit 

therefrom.  The City may require the Developer to post security in the form of cash or check or 

certificates of deposit or irrevocable letter of credit issued by an institution doing business in Oakland 

County, in a separate agreement approved by the City (which approval shall not be unreasonably 

withheld, conditioned or delayed) in an amount equal to the estimated cost of the construction, or a 

performance bond in an amount equal to the cost of construction plus ten (10%) percent, as specified 

in a bona fide contract for construction of all such improvements, approved by the City Engineer 

(which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), together with an 

agreement approved by the City Attorney (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, 

conditioned or delayed) authorizing the City to, at its option, install the improvements in question if 

the Developer has failed to do so after thirty (30) days prior notice.  Developer shall be given such 

additional time as is reasonable to effectuate a cure if it has timely commenced a cure.  All 

performance bonds shall be issued by institutions licensed and admitted to do business in the State of 

Michigan.  Building permits shall be issued for any building of the Development upon posting the 

security for the amounts as set forth above.  Developer shall install and maintain an adequate gravel 

surface base as determined by the City Engineer for all entranceways and internal drive areas, and 

parking areas to provide for access for construction traffic, City personnel, emergency and fire 

fighting equipment for such specific site and prior to construction of a final base course.  The 

aforementioned agreement for completion shall provide that the paving of all areas referenced in this 

paragraph shall be completed and approved (including topcoat and parking lot striping) prior to the 



 

10  
Troy_504549_2 

issuance any Certificates of Occupancy for buildings within the Development, but in any event such 

paving for the Development shall be completed within two (2) years of issuance of the first building 

permit for a building. 

Developer, its successors and assigns, shall be responsible for maintenance and repair of the 

drives, entranceways, sidewalks, and parking areas for each building site during the period of 

construction, and shall also keep streets abutting the Development free from debris and repair any 

damage to the streets abutting the Development (subject to City of Troy requirements) caused by 

construction activities on or for the Property or the Development and use of abutting streets for 

construction purposes.  If the Developer fails, after thirty (30) days prior written notice and failure to 

cure, to maintain and repair the drives, entranceways, parking areas and abutting streets as required 

by this Paragraph, the City may issue stop work orders and/or withhold issuance of further approvals, 

permits and occupancy certificates for the Development until such failure is cured.  At all times, 

during and after completion of construction, Developer, its successor and assigns, shall cause all 

internal drives, entranceways and parking areas to be maintained, repaired and kept in an unimpeded, 

unobstructed, safe and passable condition at all times to allow for the free flow and circulation of 

traffic throughout the Development, except for temporary closures or obstruction due to repairs or 

snow.  Subject to Paragraph 3.4 below, the responsibility and obligation for such ongoing 

maintenance and repair shall be that of the Developer, its successors and assigns. 

3.4 Developer shall have the right to assign its maintenance obligations under this 

Agreement to an association or associations and to any successors and assigns including any 

successor developer or owner of a portion of the Development.  Upon the assignment to and 

assumption by an association or any successor developer or owner of any of Developer’s 

maintenance obligations as set out in this Agreement and otherwise, Developer shall have no further 

obligations or liability with respect thereto.  All successors and assigns of Developer shall agree to be 

bound by the obligations for common area maintenance under the PUD Agreement. 

3.5 For purposes of maintenance obligations set forth in this Paragraph, the term 

“maintenance,” “maintain” and “maintained” shall mean and include regular inspections. 

ARTICLE IV 

THE CITY’S RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS 

4.1 In the event Developer fails to meet any of its obligations under this Agreement, the 

City, in each instance, shall provide Developer with written notice of such deficiency and Developer 

shall have thirty (30) days to cure such deficiency unless Developer commences to cure such 

deficiency within such thirty (30) day period.  In the event Developer commences to cure such 

deficiency in accordance with this paragraph, such thirty day period shall be extended at the City’s 

reasonable determination for such period of time as necessary to cure such deficiency so long as 

Developer continually and diligently attempts to cure such deficiency. 

In the event Developer fails to cure any deficiency in the time set forth in the paragraph 

above, the City shall thereupon have the power and authority, but not the obligation, to take any of 

the following actions, in addition to any actions authorized under City ordinance and/or State law: 



 

11  
Troy_504549_2 

A. Demand that the non-performance, deficiency or obligation be fulfilled, performed or 

completed, before Developer assigns its obligations to an Association and set a specific date to 

complete the performance which may not be less than thirty (30) days prior written notice, and the 

City may then proceed under Paragraph 4.1(B) to fulfill the obligation or correct the deficiency. 

B. Enter upon the Property, or cause its agents or contractors to enter upon the Property 

and perform such obligation or take such corrective measures as reasonably found by the City 

Council to be appropriate.  In addition to any financial assurance given to ensure completion of the 

improvements, the additional costs and expense of making and financing such action by the City, 

including without limitation notices by the City and reasonable legal fees incurred by the City, plus 

an administrative fee in the amount of ten (10%) percent of the total of all such costs and expenses 

incurred shall be paid by Developer within thirty (30) days of a billing to Developer. 

C. The City may initiate legal action for the enforcement of any of the provisions, 

requirements, and obligations set forth in the PUD Documents. 

D. The City may issue a stop work order as to any building or improvement affected and 

may deny the issuance of any requested building permit or Certificate of Occupancy for such 

building or improvement regardless of whether the Developer is the named applicant for such permit 

or certificate of occupancy, and may suspend further inspections of any or all aspects of the 

defaulting building improvement until cured. 

E. The City may assess a lien against an individual property owner on a pro-rata basis. 

4.2 In the event that the City utilizes the proceeds of a financial assurance given to ensure 

completion or maintenance of improvements, at any time throughout the period of development and 

construction of any part of the Development, the City, its contractors, representatives, consultants 

and agents, shall be permitted, and are hereby granted authority, to enter upon all or any portion of 

the Property for the purpose of inspecting and/or completing the respective improvements, and for 

the purposes of inspecting for compliance with and enforcement of the PUD Documents. 

4.3 To the extent the PUD Documents deviate from the City of Troy Development 

Standards, Zoning Ordinances, or other City ordinances, or any amendments thereto, the PUD 

Documents shall control in all respects, including all land uses and approvals set forth and/or allowed 

pursuant to the PUD.  All improvements constructed in accordance with the PUD Documents shall 

be deemed to be conforming under the Zoning Ordinance and in compliance with all ordinances of 

the City for all times and purposes and shall run with the land. 

ARTICLE V 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

5.1 This Agreement may not be modified, replaced, amended or terminated without the 

prior written consent of the City or Developer.  Developer and any successor developers and property 

owners shall have the right to delegate its (their) rights and obligations under this Agreement to an 

Association as set out in this Agreement.  Until rights and responsibilities under this Agreement are 

transferred to such Association, Developer and the City shall be entitled to modify, replace, amend or 

terminate this Agreement, without requiring the consent of any other person or entity whatsoever, 



 

12  
Troy_504549_2 

regardless of whether such person has any interest in the Property, including owners, mortgages of 

co-owners, and others.  After the rights and obligations under this Agreement are transferred to an 

Association or any successor developer, only the Association or Associations, the successor 

developers and property owners, and the City shall be entitled to modify, replace, amend or terminate 

this Agreement. 

5.2 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 

the State of Michigan. 

5.3 Where there is a question with regard to applicable regulations for a particular aspect 

of the Development, or with regard to clarification, interpretation, or definition of terms or 

regulations, and there are no apparent express provisions of the PUD Documents which apply, the 

City in the reasonable exercise of its discretion, shall determine the regulations of the City’s 

Ordinances that are applicable, provided such determination is not inconsistent with the nature and 

intent of the PUD Documents nor increase such obligations. 

5.4 The terms of the PUD Documents, including this Agreement, have been negotiated 

by the undersigned parties and such documentation represents the product of the joint efforts and 

agreement of the Developer and the City.  Developer and the City fully accept and agree to the final 

terms, conditions, requirements and obligations of the PUD Documents, and shall not be permitted in 

the future to claim that the effect of these PUD Documents results in an unreasonable limitation upon 

uses of all or a portion of the Property, or claim that enforcement of any of the PUD Documents 

causes an inverse condemnation or taking of all or a portion of the Property.  Furthermore, it is 

agreed that the improvements and undertakings set forth in the PUD Documents are necessary and 

roughly proportional to the burden imposed in order to ensure that services and facilities affected by 

the Planned Unit Development will be capable of accommodating increased services and facility 

loads, traffic and storm water drainage caused by the development thereof, to protect the natural 

environment and conserve natural resources, to ensure compatibility with adjacent uses of land, to 

promote use of the Property in a socially and economically desirable manner, and to achieve other 

legitimate objectives authorized under the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, MCL 125.3101, et seq.  It 

is further agreed and acknowledged hereby that all of such improvements are substantially related to 

the burdens to be created by the development contemplated hereby, and all such improvements and 

the requirements and regulations of the Property under the PUD Documents and Zoning Ordinance, 

without exception, are clearly and substantially related to the City’s legitimate interests in protecting 

the public health, safety and general welfare. 

5.5 Developer, its successors and assigns, shall comply as is applicable with the 

following: 

A. Signage for the commercial and retail components shall comply with the Sign 

Ordinance requirements for B-1, B-2, and B-3 districts.  Signage for the residential facility shall 

comply with Sign Ordinance requirements for the R-M district. 

B. Elevations for the commercial retail buildings shall be consistent with the elevations 

which have heretofore been submitted to the Planning Commission and City Council.  Furthermore, 

the elevations shall be brought back to the Planning Commission and City Council for review prior to 

granting of building permits. 



 

13  
Troy_504549_2 

C. Rooftop mechanical equipment shall be fully screened with materials that are 

architecturally consistent with the building elevations as approved by the Director of Building and 

Zoning. 

5.6 Any notice provided for in this Agreement shall be in writing, addressed to the party 

to whom notice is given at the address set out at the beginning of this Agreement, or to such other 

address as one party gives to the other by notice, and deposited in the United States Mails, postage 

prepaid. 

5.7 This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one agreement.  The signature of any party to 

any counterpart shall be deemed to be a signature to, and may be appended to, any other counterpart. 

5.8 This Agreement shall be binding on, and shall inure to the benefit of the parties and 

their respective successors and assigns. 

THIS AGREEMENT was executed by the respective parties on the date specified with the 

notarization with their name, and shall take effect on the date of adoption by the Troy City Council of 

the Zoning Ordinance amendment granting rezoning of the Property and Conceptual Development 

Plan Approval to Kilmer Plaza Planned Unit Development and; 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer has caused this Development Agreement to be 

executed the day and year first above written. 

DEVELOPER: 

 

MARSH BBK-TROY, LLC  

a Michigan limited liability company 
 

By:        

 

Dated:       Its:        

 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    ) ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ____________, 

2007, by _________________________, the __________________ of BIG BEAVER/KILMER 

DEVELOPMENT, a Michigan limited liability company, on behalf of the company. 

 

       

Print Name:  

Notary Public, ____________County, Michigan 

My Commission Expires:  

 



 

14  
Troy_504549_2 

 

CITY: 

 

CITY OF TROY,  

a Michigan municipal corporation 

 

   

By:       

 Louise Schilling 

Dated:      Its: Mayor 

 

 

By:        

Tonni Bartholomew 

Dated:      Its: City Clerk 

 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    ) ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ____________, 

2007, by Louise Schilling, Mayor, and Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk, of the City of Troy, a 

Michigan municipal corporation, on behalf of the Corporation. 

 

       

Print Name:  

Notary Public, ____________County, Michigan 

My Commission Expires:  

Acting in the County of   

 

DRAFTED BY:     WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 

 

Erik S. Prater, esq.     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 

Bodman LLP      City of Troy 

201 West Big Beaver Road    500 West Big Beaver Road 

Troy, MI 48084     Troy, MI 48084 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\PUD's\PUD 010 Big Beaver Kilmer\FINAL Kilmer PUD Development Agreement 12 15 08.DOC 



 
 
 
 
 

Additional documents 
are included with Council’s agenda packets 

and available for viewing at the 
City Clerk’s Office and the Troy Public Library 



campbellld
Text Box
D-01







































Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 
November 25, 2008                          
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Bid Waiver – Global Positioning System (GPS) Tracking Devices 
 

Background 
 GPS Tracking Devices have been used by the Troy Special Investigations Unit (SIU) for tracking 

known suspects and persons of interest.  The GPS tracking devices used by law enforcement 
agencies are a specialized device used for conducting covert investigations.  The use of these 
devices offers SIU officers a digital advantage in monitoring criminal activity. 
 

 The GPS Tracking units currently used by the Troy Police Department (TPD) have been utilized in 
a wide range of criminal investigations ranging from business breaking and entering 
investigations, to homicide investigations. 

 

 The company that provides the GPS units the TPD currently own is Geonautics.  Geonautics uses 
a GSM circuit switch technology with their units, which is dependent on cell phone technology.  
Approximately three years ago, the cell phone company Geonautics used (T-Mobile) changed 
their technology and did not update the circuit switch capabilities, leaving the Troy Police 
Department’s five GPS units unusable.  Geonautics was able to temporarily resolve the 
communication issue.  However, the performance of the units has never been the same.  
Communication with the GPS units and technical support has been a significant problem with this 
company.  The technical support Geonautics offers is not 24/7 and return phone calls are not in a 
timely manner. 

 

 As a result of the TPD’s dissatisfaction with the Geonautics GPS tracking devices, the Police 
department has conducted an exhaustive search for a new company offering similar GPS tracking 
devices.  Research revealed there is a small list of companies who offer law enforcement grade 
GPS tracking units.  (See Appendix I for a comparison)   

 

 They differ in the technology used and overall functionality as follows: 
o Specifically built and only available to law enforcement agencies, 
o Real “live” time tracking with updates every 3 seconds, 
o Three-year all inclusive service and warranty plan, 
o No activation fee, 
o 24/7 technical support. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

campbellld
Text Box
E-03



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 

November 25, 2008 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Waiver – GPS Tracking Units 
 

Background - continued 
 Recently, Beverly Hills Police Department (BHPD) purchased five Coleman Technologies GPS 

tracking units, which they allowed the TPD officers to test.  TPD officers found these units were 
easier to install on suspect vehicles because of the lack of external antennas.  In addition, a 
button on the unit showed its ability to communicate with satellites.  The BHPD officers reported 
they have not had a single issue communicating with the GPS units.  Coleman Technologies 
advised the technology used to communicate with the GPS units was Internet server based and 
officers can monitor the GPS units from any place they can receive an Internet connection.  
Coleman’s provides 24/7 tech support for their GPS units.  BHPD officers purchased the 
Coleman’s GPS units after conducting extensive research and determining that Coleman’s was 
the preferred vendor. 

 
 

Financial Considerations 
 The State Forfeiture fund will be used to make this purchase based on the fact that a majority of 

the surveillance operations involved narcotic investigations.  Capital Fund, A/C 
#401.301.10.305.7978.065. 

 There would be a T-Mobile savings of approximately $3,600 per year for no longer using this 
service.  

 

Legal Considerations 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
 

Policy Considerations 
 Troy continues to enhance the health and safety of the community, while continuing to be 

Michigan’s Safest City.  (Outcome Statement I) 
 

Options 
 City management recommends Troy City Council authorize the purchase of hardware, software, 

and services for the Platinum All In One Agent system from Coleman Technologies, Inc of 
Orlando, FL at an estimated total cost of $28,268.00, plus ongoing license renewals, updates, 
and technical support as needed. 

 
Prepared by: James Mork, Investigator/Officer 
 
 
 
 
 



  Coleman Technologies Inc All In One AGenT  BrickHouse Security P‐Trac Pro 
Number of Units  4 All In One tracking units and 1 hard wire unit with a kill 

switch.  Includes four 4‐Pack and four 8‐Pack battery 
packs that use AA batteries and five magnetic sleeves. 

5 P‐Trac Pro tracking units 

Additional component 
costs 

None  5 – desktop chargers 
5 – AC chargers 
5 – Magnetic cases 
5 – additional rechargeable battery packs 

Service Plan  Three years unlimited tracking  Three years limited tracking.  Each unit has 3000 tracking points per 
month and a cost of 5 dollars for every 25 tracking points that goes over. 

Warranty  Three years manufacturer warranty and a one time 
replacement for the five units – so if all five become lost, 
all five will be replaced, one time. 

One year manufacturer warranty – no replacement for a lost unit. 

Additional Service Fee 
after the third year 

$588 dollars per year for unlimited tracking and 
continued warranty on the hardware. 

959.40 dollars per year for 3000 tracking points per month.  No warranty 
after the first year. 

Activation fee  None  $69.95 for each unit 

Technical support  24/7  Monday thru Friday 8AM to 7PM 

Tracking capabilities  Real time tracking with a 3 second refresh rate  Real time tracking with a 30 second to 1 minute refresh rate (not a true 
real time tracker). 

Installation  Has a test button on the device to make sure the device 
is placed in a good location for communication on the 
suspect vehicle 

None 

Customers  Only law enforcement  Law enforcement and public consumers 

Power Supply  Internal 30 hour drive time, 4‐Pack 60 hours, and 8‐pack 
90 hours.  Drive time would mean real time tracking and 
the suspect would have to be moving the entire time. 

A 21 day rechargeable battery pack.  Per the sales representative, if you 
are conducting real time tracking, then the battery would last four to six 
days. 

Geo Fencing  Alerts officers when a suspect has entered and/or exited 
a geo fence. 

Alerts officers when a suspect has exited a geo fence. 

Motion sensor  Motion sensor will activate the unit when the car is 
turned on, door opened, and /or trunk opened. 

No motion sensor 
 

Software  8 user licenses for Map Agent software and unlimited 
users for web based. 

Web based. 

Interoperability  Yes – with Beverly Hills Police Department  None 

Discount  An over all discount of 1800 dollars per unit for the trade 
in of our older Geonautics equipment.  For a total of 
savings of 9000 dollars 

$500 dollar purchase discount. 

Total Cost:  $28,268 dollars  $20,589.25 dollars 

APPENDIX I 





 

  
December 8, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
    James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Deficit Elimination Plans 
 
 
Background: 
 
 It is a requirement of the State of Michigan that any fund of a municipality reporting negative 

net assets shall file a Deficit Elimination Plan (DEP) with the Department of Treasury after 
approval by the local legislative body. 

 For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008 the Downtown Development Authority, Aquatic 
Center and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course funds met this criterion.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The attached DEP(s) recognizes the cause of these negative net assets and identifies future 

remedies. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The governing body of the employer must certify by resolution that any DEP is approved and 

adopted. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Adoption will satisfy State of Michigan reporting requirements (Goal III). 

 
Options: 
 
 Staff recommends that City Council approve the DEP(s). 

 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04



CITY OF TROY DEFICIT ELIMINATION PLAN 
 
Downtown Development Authority (DDA) 
 
The deficit in net assets of $13,798,765 is caused solely by the presentation of $27,920,000 in 
bonds payable as a liability. At the fund level there is a positive fund balance of $14,412,583 
(CAFR, p. 94).  
 
Notwithstanding any surplus of revenue over expenditures which will reduce the deficit, principal 
payments on the bonds payable will eliminate the deficit as follows: 
 
Deficit, June 30, 2008    $13,798,765 
Principal payments FYE 6/30/2009     (1,850,000) 
 
Deficit, June 30, 2009    $11,948,765 
Principal payments FYE 6/30/2010     (1,975,000) 
 
Deficit, June 30, 2010      $ 9,973,765 
Principal payments FYE 6/30/2011      (2,065,000) 
 
Deficit, June 30, 2011       $ 7,908,765 
Principal payments FYE 6/30/2012       (2,215,000) 
 
Deficit, June 30, 2012       $ 5,693,765 
Principal payments FYE 6/30/2013       (2,365,000) 
 
Deficit, June 30, 2013        $ 3,328,765 
Principal payments FYE 6/30/2014        (2,490,000) 
 
Deficit, June 30, 2014         $    838,765 
Principal payments FYE 6/30/2015         (2,650,000) 
 
Surplus, June 30, 2015         $ 1,811,235 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY DEFICIT ELIMINATION PLAN 
 
Aquatic Center (AC) 
 
The deficit in net assets of $407,269 is caused solely by the designation of $1,968,970 as 
investment in fixed assets. At the fund level there is a positive fund balance of $1,561,701 
(CAFR, p. 82).  
 
Since the AC’s inception the policy of the City has been for revenue to cover operating expenses 
excluding depreciation, and this goal has essentially been achieved. With an anticipated 
improvement in the local economy and decreasing depreciation charges it is anticipated the deficit 
will be eliminated in FY 2012-13. 
 
 
AC Net Assets, June 30, 2008    $ (407,269) 
 
Budgeted expenditures, FY 08-09     (633,510) 
Budgeted revenue, FY 08-09          487,200 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2009   $  (553,579) 
 
 
Estimated expenditures, FY 09-10    (608,000) 
Estimated revenue, FY 09-10          661,100 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2010   $     (500,479) 
 
 
Estimated expenditures, FY 10-11    (532,000) 
Estimated revenue, FY 10-11          691,000 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2011   $      (341,479) 
 
 
Estimated expenditures, FY 11-12     (550,000) 
Estimated revenue, FY 11-12          721,000 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2012   $      (170,479)       
 
 
Estimated expenditures, FY 12-13     (560,000) 
Estimated revenue, FY 12-13          741,000 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2013   $         10,521   
 



CITY OF TROY DEFICIT ELIMINATION PLAN 
 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course (SLGC)  
 
A number of factors contributed to this deficit, the initial being the delay in opening SLGC. The 
debt service payment schedule was based upon the course being in full operation prior to July 
1, 2004. That not being the case, first year revenue was well below projections while fixed costs 
remained in place. As a new entity with no net asset reserve available, the revenue shortfall 
immediately created the deficit situation. 
 
The recently confirmed national Recession has clearly had a strong local impact. 
 
In its fourth year of operations SLGC experienced a negative change in net assets of $634,790 
compared to $622,950 last fiscal year. Operating expenses decreased but were more than 
offset by reduced revenue. Additional leagues and outings are reserving for 2009, but until the 
economy recovers and discretionary spending increases it is anticipated that the deficit 
elimination will be a multi-year effort, as indicated in the following plan: 
 
 
SLGC Net Assets, June 30, 2008    $ (2,614,899) 
 
Budgeted expenditures, FY 08-09    (1,981,210) 
Budgeted revenue, FY 08-09          1,411,500 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2009   $ (3,184,609) 
 
 
Estimated expenditures, FY 09-10    (1,900,000) 
Estimated revenue, FY 09-10          1,700,000 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2010   $     (3,384,609) 
 
 
Estimated expenditures, FY 10-11    (2,000,000) 
Estimated revenue, FY 10-11          2,125,000 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2011   $      (3,259,609) 
 
 
Estimated expenditures, FY 11-12    (2,100,000) 
Estimated revenue, FY 11-12          2,650,000 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2012   $      (2,709,609)       
 
 
Estimated expenditures, FY 12-13    (2,205,000) 
Estimated revenue, FY 12-13          3,180,000 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2013   $      (1,734,609)       
 
 



Estimated expenditures, FY 13-14    (2,320,000) 
Estimated revenue, FY 13-14          3,650,000 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2014   $          (404,609)       
 
 
Estimated expenditures, FY 14-15    (2,440,000) 
Estimated revenue, FY 14-15          3,650,000 
 
Estimated Net Assets, June 30, 2015   $          805,391       
 
 
 
Under this plan the deficit will be eliminated by June 30, 2015. Please advise if further 
information is requested. 
 



 

  
December 5, 2008 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
  
SUBJECT: Agreement to Provide Inspection Services – City of Madison Heights  
 
Background 
 Attached is a copy of the proposed Interlocal Service Agreement between the City of Troy and the 

City of Madison Heights, where the City of Troy will provide plumbing and mechanical inspection  
services to the City of Madison Heights on an as needed basis. 

 This agreement is being presented to the Madison Heights City Council on this same date for their 
approval. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 No additional staffing is required.  There is currently capacity within the inspector’s schedules to 

take on the additional work. 
 The agreement generates outside revenue and maximizes the use of our staffing.  
 The agreement allows for the periodic review of workload and fees and allows adjustments in the 

agreement as needed.  
 
Legal Considerations 
 The City Attorney’s office  has reviewed the contract for form and legality.   

 
Policy Considerations 
 Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of city government.  (Goal II) 
 Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity.  (Goal VI) 

 
Options 
 City management recommends entering in to the Interlocal Service Agreement with the City of 

Madison Heights for inspection services.  
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



1 
 

      
        

INTERLOCAL SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR PLUMBING  
AND MECHANICAL INSPECTION SERVICES 

 
  
This Interlocal Service Agreement dated, this ____ day of December 2008, is made by 
and between: 
 

City of Madison Heights 
300 W. Thirteen Mile Road 
Madison Heights, Michigan 48071 

 
-And- 
 City of Troy 
 500 W. Big Beaver Road 
 Troy, Michigan 48084 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Troy, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 48084 (hereinafter “TROY”), and the City of Madison 
Heights, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, 300 W. Thirteen Mile Road, Madison 
Heights, Michigan 48071 (hereinafter “MADISON HEIGHTS”), or TROY and MADISON 
HEIGHTS hereinafter together referred to as the “Parties” are authorized separately by 
law to provide for mechanical and plumbing inspections under P.A. 230, of the Public 
Acts of 1972, as amended, being sections 125.1501 to 125.1531 of the Michigan 
Compiled Laws; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Michigan Constitution of 1963, Article 7, § 28, and the Urban 
Cooperation Act of 1967, Act No. 7 of the Public Acts of 1967, Ex. Sess., being MCL 
124.501, et. seq. (the “Act”), permit a political subdivision to exercise jointly with any 
other political subdivision any power, privilege or authority which such political 
subdivisions share in common which each might exercise separately; and   
 
 WHEREAS, MADISON HEIGHTS has traditionally entered into a contract with an 
independent contractor to perform mechanical and plumbing inspections either on a full 
time or a part-time basis; and  
 
 WHEREAS, due to the fact that mechanical and plumbing inspections require 
trained individuals who are registered with the Michigan Bureau of Construction Codes 
as inspectors and plan reviewers and are familiar with the State of Michigan Building 
Code requirements, it is difficult for public entities to locate trained and registered 
individuals who are able or willing to perform those specialized services timely and  on a 
part-time basis; and 
  
 WHEREAS, TROY has full time employees who are trained and registered 
mechanical and plumbing inspectors capable of doing inspections for MADISON 
HEIGHTS through an interlocal agreement; and  



2 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Parties have mutually agreed that this Agreement be entered 
into to allow TROY to do mechanical and plumbing inspections for MADISON HEIGHTS 
on a routine basis under the terms set forth below; and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to resolution of its governing bodies, the Parties each have 
the authority to execute this Interlocal Service Agreement (“Agreement”) to allow TROY 
to do mechanical and plumbing inspections for MADISON HEIGHTS at a fixed monthly 
cost, under the terms set forth below. 
  

AGREEMENT 
 
 Based upon the foregoing statements, the Parties agree to the following terms, 
conditions, representations, consideration and acknowledgements and mutually agree 
as follows: 
 
1. TROY represents and MADISON HEIGHTS acknowledges that TROY has state 

registered mechanical and plumbing inspectors with the qualifications, 
experience and abilities to provide services in connection with the business of 
inspecting buildings for compliance with the State of Michigan’s building codes 
and laws, as well as those of the City of Madison Heights.   

 
2. TROY, through its Building Department, is agreeable to providing such inspection 

services to MADISON HEIGHTS, on the terms and conditions as set forth in this 
Agreement.    

 
3. MADISON HEIGHTS hereby agrees to engage TROY to provide mechanical and 

plumbing inspection services during regular business hours, i.e., 8:00 a.m. to 
4:30 p.m.  This inspection work is anticipated to be approximately four man hours 
per day, and includes site inspections, paperwork, office time at Madison Heights 
City Hall and travel time from Troy to Madison Heights and back to Troy. The 
inspectors’ travel time shall be minimized as much as possible, and therefore 
may be from City Hall or from an inspection site, whichever is closer.  

 
4. The requirement to work approximately four hours per day is intended to be 

flexible to accommodate the needs of the Parties, and may be adjusted as 
needed by an informal and mutual agreement between TROY’s Director of 
Building and Zoning and MADISON HEIGHTS’ Community Development 
Department Director, or their designees or successors.  However, it is intended 
that the overall average will remain at approximately four hours per day. 

 
5. All code issues or interpretations, disputes, or any other issues arising from 

inspections performed in MADSION HEIGHTS shall be resolved solely by the 
Madison Heights Building Official or his designee. 

 
6. Should it become necessary for a contract inspector to testify in court on 

MADISON HEIGHTS behalf, TROY shall make the inspector available at the time 
and place established by the court. 

 



3 
 

7. Subject to an annual adjustment of rates as provided in Paragraph 12, MADISON 
HEIGHTS shall pay TROY a flat monthly fee of $2,200 for TROY to provide the 
above referenced mechanical and plumbing inspection services.     

 
8. After the first three (3) months of this Agreement, the Parties agree to review the 

terms of the Agreement, including the required number of man hours that are 
required for the inspection services.  If the Parties agree to amend the required 
time commitment for inspections, then there should also be a corresponding 
amendment to the amount of compensation.  The Parties are not precluded from 
making amendments after this initial three (3) month period, as long as the 
proposed amendments are approved by each governing body.       

 
9. This Agreement can be terminated by either Party for any reason, with a 

minimum thirty days written notice to the other Party.   
 
10. MADISON HEIGHTS shall supply to TROY all printed materials that are required 

for plan review, pre-inspection, inspection and post-inspection reports for 
MADISON HEIGHTS.  

 
11. TROY represents and agrees that all work for MADISON HEIGHTS under the 

terms of this Agreement shall be performed in accordance with all appropriate 
and applicable state and industry standards.   

 
12. Annually, TROY shall review its personnel costs for its inspectors and any costs 

directly related to the ability of TROY to provide services under this Agreement.  
If a change in these costs requires an adjustment to the monthly flat fee for the 
inspection services, then TROY shall notify MADISON HEIGHTS in writing of the 
amount of the necessary change, and the reason(s) why the change is required.  
This notification shall be sent prior to December 1 of each year.  The monthly flat 
fee shall then be adjusted, effective as of February 1 of the next year, and each 
monthly invoice shall reflect the adjusted flat fee, subject to the approval of 
MADISON HEIGHTS. 

  
13. This Agreement shall remain in effect until terminated by either Party. If, upon 

termination, any of TROY’s inspectors have paperwork or forms belonging to 
MADISON HEIGHTS, then each such document shall be delivered to MADISON 
HEIGHTS within ten days of the termination of the Agreement.  

 
14. MADISON HEIGHTS will be invoiced on a monthly basis.  Payment for all costs 

must be paid within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. Payments shall be mailed 
to: Mark Stimac, City of Troy Director of Building and Zoning, 500 W. Big Beaver 
Road, Troy, MI  48084. 

 
15. MADISON HEIGHTS is not obligated under this Agreement to use the   services 

of Troy exclusively and MADISON HEIGHTS is expressly allowed to seek other 
similar services on an as needed basis without violating this Agreement. 

 
16. Upon receipt of notice of termination of the Agreement by MADISON HEIGHTS, 

TROY shall have thirty (30) days to fully invoice MADISON HEIGHTS for any 



4 
 

outstanding balances that have not previously been invoiced. MADISON 
HEIGHTS shall continue to be responsible for payment for the cost of services 
either invoiced prior to termination or performed by TROY before the termination 
of the Agreement.   

 
17. The Parties agree that at all times and for all purposes under the terms of this 

Agreement, each Party’s relationship to the other Party is that of an independent 
contractor.  No liability, right or benefit arising out of any employer/employee 
relationship, either express or implied, shall arise or accrue to any Party as a 
result of this Agreement. 

 
18. All of the privileges and immunities from liability, and exemptions from laws 

ordinances and rules, and all pensions, relief, disability, workers' compensation 
and other benefits which apply to the activity of officers, agency, or employees of 
any public agency or employees of any public agency when performing their 
respective functions within the territorial limits of their respective agencies shall 
apply to the same degree and extent to the performance of such functions and 
duties of such officers, agents or employees extraterritorially under the provisions 
of any such interlocal agreement. 

 
19. MADISON HEIGHTS agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold 

harmless TROY, its elected and appointed officials, employees and others 
working for TROY on behalf of MADISON HEIGHTS, against any and all claims, 
demands, suits, or loss, including, and for any damages which may be asserted, 
claimed or recovered against or from TROY, its elected and appointed officials, 
employees, or others working for TROY on behalf of MADISON HEIGHTS, by 
reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or death and/or property 
damage, including loss of use thereof, which arises out of or is in any way 
connected or associated with services performed for MADISON HEIGHTS in 
accordance with this Agreement. This duty to indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless shall include all costs of litigation or defense of claims including 
attorney fees, costs and expert fees. 

 
20. TROY shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless MADISON HEIGHTS from any 

and all claims of damage against MADISON HEIGHTS proximately caused by 
the gross negligence of Troy in the provision of services performed for MADISON 
HEIGHTS in accordance with this Agreement. To the extent this provision is 
triggered, this duty to indemnify, defend and hold harmless shall include all costs 
of litigation or defense of claims including attorney fees, costs and expert fees. 

 
21. TROY acknowledges that it is currently issued with proper coverage and limits.  

TROY agrees to keep its current insurance, or insurance of a similar nature, in 
effect during all dates of inspection services for MADISON HEIGHTS.  Upon 
requested by MADISON HEIGHTS, TROY shall provide a Certificate of 
Insurance as evidence of its coverage. 

 
22. Within ten (10) days from the execution of this Agreement, MADISON HEIGHTS 

shall provide a Certificate of Insurance, acceptable to TROY, demonstrating that 
general liability coverage is available for any and all claims for personal injury or 



5 
 

property damage which are or might be caused by services preformed by TROY 
on behalf of MADISON HEIGHTS. MADISON HEIGHTS agrees to keep said 
insurance coverage in full force and effect for the term of this Agreement or any 
renewals thereof. MADISON HEIGHTS shall submit to the City of Troy Risk 
Management Department, prior to the expiration of any insurance coverage, the 
new Certificate(s) of Insurance acceptable to TROY. Any Certificate(s) of 
Insurance shall name the City of Troy as an additional insured and contain the 
following cancellation notice:  

   
“Should any of the above described policies be cancelled before 
the expiration date thereof, the issuing insurer will mail 30 days 
written notice to the certificate holder.” 

 
 TROY may request a copy of said insurance certificate at any time during this 

Agreement.  Failure to produce a certificate of insurance within twenty (20) days 
of a request by TROY shall allow TROY to terminate the Agreement.  

    
 It shall be the responsibility of MADISON HEIGHTS to ensure that the City is 

provided with a new Certificate of Insurance acceptable to TROY before a 
Certificate of Insurance on file with the City’s Risk Management Department 
expires.  A lapse in the insurance coverage required under the Agreement shall 
be considered a material breach of this Agreement and the Agreement shall 
become null and void automatically at any time such a lapse in coverage exists.  

 
23. The Parties agree that they shall promptly deliver to the other Party written notice 

and copies of any claims, complaints, charges, or any other accusations or 
allegations of negligence or other wrongdoing, whether civil or criminal in nature, 
that the other Party becomes aware of and which involves the personnel and/or 
services under this Agreement. Unless otherwise provided by law and/or the 
Michigan Court Rules, the Parties agree to cooperate with one another in any 
investigation conducted by the other Party of any acts or performances of any 
services under this Agreement.  

 
24.  The Parties agree that all indemnification and hold harmless promises, waivers of 

liability, representations, insurance coverage obligations, liabilities, payment 
obligations and/or any other related obligations provided for in this Agreement 
with regard to any acts, occurrences, events, transactions, or claims, either 
occurring or having their basis in any events or transaction that occurred before 
termination of this Agreement, shall survive the termination. 

 
25.  Any written notice required or permitted under the Agreement shall be 

considered delivered to a Party as of the date that such notice is deposited, with 
sufficient postage, with the U.S. Postal Service.  Unless specifically otherwise set 
out in the Agreement, all writing sent to TROY shall be sent to:  City of Troy 
Director of Zoning and Building, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 48084.  All 
writing sent to MADISON HEIGHTS shall be sent to:  Community Development 
Department Director, City of Madison Heights, 300 W. Thirteen Mile Road, 
Madison Heights, MI 48071. 

 



6 
 

26. This Agreement sets forth the entire Agreement between the Parties.  The 
language of this Agreement shall be construed as a whole according to its fair 
meaning and not constructed strictly for or against any party. The Parties have 
taken all actions and secured all approvals necessary to authorize and complete 
this Agreement. 

 
27. If a Court of competent jurisdiction finds any provision of this Agreement invalid 

or unenforceable, then that provision shall be deemed severed from the 
Agreement.  The remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force. 

 
28. This Agreement is made and entered into in the State of Michigan and shall in all 

respects be interpreted, enforced and governed under the laws of the State of 
Michigan. Except as otherwise required by law or court rule, any action   brought 
to enforce, interpret or decide any claim arising under this Agreement shall be 
brought in the 6th Judicial Circuit Court of the State of Michigan or the United 
States District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan, Southern Division as 
dictated by the applicable jurisdiction of the court.  Except as otherwise required 
by law or court rule, venue is proper in the courts set forth above. 

    
29.  The Recitals shall be considered an integral part of this Agreement. 
 
30. Except as expressly provided herein, this Agreement does not create, by 

implication or otherwise, any direct or indirect obligation, duty, promise, benefit, 
right of indemnification (i.e., contractual, legal, equitable, or by implication), right 
of subrogation as to any Party’s rights in this Agreement, or any other right of any 
kind in favor of any individual or legal entity. 

 
31. Each Party shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining, throughout the 

term of this Agreement, all registrations, licenses, permits, certificates, and 
governmental authorizations for its employees and/or agents necessary to 
perform all of its obligations under this Agreement.  Upon request, a Party shall 
furnish copies of any registrations, permits, licenses, certificates or governmental 
authorizations to the requesting Party. 

       
32. No fact, failure or delay by a Party to pursue or enforce any rights or remedies 

under this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of those rights with regard to any 
existing or subsequent breach of this Agreement. No waiver of any term, 
condition, or provision of this Agreement, whether by conduct or otherwise, shall 
be deemed or construed as a continuing waiver of any term, condition, or 
provision of this Agreement.  No waiver by either Party shall subsequently affect 
its right to require strict performance of this Agreement. 



7 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed by the Parties on this _____day 
of December 2008.     
 
 
WITNESSES:     CITY OF MADISON HEIGHTS,  
       
 
       By:      
           Edward C. Swanson, Mayor 
 
   
       By:      
           Marilyn J. Haley, City Clerk 
   
 
 
 
WITNESSES:     CITY OF TROY,                  
 
 
       By:      
            Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
       By:      
       Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
  



 

 
 
December 9, 2008 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Peggy E. Sears, Human Resources Director 

 

SUBJECT:  AGENDA ITEM – Contract Ratification – Troy Command  
   Officers Association (TCOA) 2008-2011 
 
 
Background: 
 The City of Troy and TCOA entered into negotiations for a successor collective 

bargaining agreement that will replace the contract that expired June 30, 2008. 
 The TCOA membership ratified a tentative agreement for a three-year collective 

bargaining agreement between the City of Troy and TCOA on December 4, 2008. 
 This is the 12

th
 collective bargaining agreement to be settled using the Interest-Based 

Bargaining (IBB) method. 
 The IBB method has significantly reduced the amount of time spent negotiating, thus 

reducing costs and improving efficiency. 
 The IBB method has favorably impacted the employee-employer relationship, thus 

contributing to effective and professional communications. 
 A goal of City administration continues to be to bring consistency in, and reduce costs 

associated with, the benefit package provided to employees. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 The proposed tentative agreement results in an average wage increase of 2.84% 

effective 7/1/08, 1.91% effective 7/1/09 and 1.91% effective 7/1/2010. 
 Replacing retiree health insurance with a Retirement Health Savings (RHS) plan for 

employees promoting into the bargaining unit with an RHS will result in an annualized 
cost savings of approximately .2 % of payroll per year per retiree and is consistent with 
the plan provided for other employee groups.  

 Replacing the $5/$10 prescription drug rider (PDR) with a $10/$20 PDR will result in an 
annualized cost savings of approximately 1.55% of payroll. 
 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-06



 

PES/bjm/ PS08M.036 

 

Agenda Item-Contract Ratification-TCOA and City of Troy 2008-2011 
Page Two 

 
 

 Eliminating duplicate health insurance for employees who are married to each, and 
eliminating traditional Blue Cross coverage as a provider option, are consistent with the 
health insurance provisions for other employee groups.  

 Negotiating the opportunity for members to participate in a Voluntary Separation DC to 
DB Plan, and assuming three employees who opt to separate employment under this 
Plan are not replaced, will result in an annualized savings of over 16% of payroll. 

 Funds are budgeted and available in the 2008-09 budget and will be incorporated in 
the 2009-10 and 2010-2011 budgets. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
The TCOA membership ratified the tentative agreement on December 4, 2008. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City government by 

maintaining wage increases within the range of comparables and reducing the City’s 
financial liability associated with health insurance for both employees and retirees 
(Goal II). 

 Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City government by 
eliminating the necessity to call in additional command officers under certain conditions 
and eliminating the option of compensatory time (Goal II). 

 Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally by maintaining a 
fair and competitive total compensation package (Goal IV). 

 
Options: 
 City management supports and recommends approval of the tentative agreement for a 

three-year collective bargaining agreement between the City of Troy and TCOA for 
2008-2011. 

 
 



G:Negotiations\TCOA\2008\TA Summary 2008-11-18 
 

PROPOSED AGREEMENT SUMMARY 
City of Troy and TCOA 

2008-2011 Collective Bargaining Agreement 
 
 
ISSUE    SOLUTION 
 
Wages    a. Three year contract with the following increases: 
         Sgt./Lt. Captain 
       7/01/2008 3.0%  1.25% 
       7/01/2009 2.0%  1.0% 
       7/01/2010 2.0%  1.0% 

b. If the police officers bargaining unit gets a higher 
percent increase over the same 3-year contract period 
through a voluntarily negotiated agreement, then the 
same percent increase will apply to the TCOA 

 
Health Insurance   a. $10/$20 prescription drug rider (PDR) replaces $5/$10 
      PDR for generic/brand name drugs  

b. Eliminate Traditional Blue Cross coverage as an option 
     c. Eliminate dual coverage for employees who are  
      married to each other; employees opting out will not be 
      eligible for the cash-in-lieu  payment  
 
Retiree Medical Insurance a. Employees promoting into the bargaining unit with the 

 Retiree Health Savings (RHS) plan will continue to 
 participate in the RHS plan in lieu of retiree health 
 insurance 

 b. RM, RPS, PSA riders added to retiree health care 
 (to be consistent with other units and reduce the 
 number of health care plans being administered) 

 c. $5/$10 PDR replaced with $10/$20 PDR consistent 
 with current employees 

 
Overtime a. Eliminate the option of compensatory time 
     b. Eliminated the necessity to call in additional command 
      officers for every five police officers that were called in 
      to supplement an ongoing police operation  
 
Miscellaneous:   a. Cash payments replaced with direct deposit  
     b. Shift premium paid bi-weekly instead of bimonthly 
     c. Maintenance of disciplinary records streamlined  
     d. Clarified definition of Final Average Compensation 
     e. Psychological testing to be required for promotion to  
      the rank of Sergeant only 
     f. Assignment to Criminal Investigations Section to be  
      made at the discretion of the Chief 
     g. “Housekeeping” changes to correct dates, job titles,  
      eliminate outdated language, etc. 



campbellld
Text Box
E-07















 

 
   December 1, 2008 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Proposal to Require Fees for Preliminary Breath Tests Administered at the Troy 

Police Walkup Desk 
 
Background 

 For several years, the 52-4
th
 District Court has required Preliminary Breath Tests (PBTs) from those who 

have pled to or have been found guilty of alcohol-related offenses.  As of this writing, Troy Police walkup 
desk officers have administered these tests free of charge. 

 The demand for tests has increased and as a result, creates a significant demand on police personnel at 
the walkup desk, particularly during holiday periods when the number of mandated PBTs rises 
significantly.  At times, a second police officer must be called in from road patrol duties to assist the walkup 
desk officer.   

 A survey of neighboring departments indicates that the average fee assessed for PBT tests is $7.50, with 
fees ranging from no charge to $20.00 per test.     

 The Troy Police Department strives to be fiscally conscious and recognizes that it is both reasonable and 
appropriate to charge a fee to recover the time and the materials involved in the administration of PBTs.  A 
fee in line with fees charged in neighboring communities is proposed:  $5.00 for residents of Troy and 
$10.00 for non-residents. 

 If the number of PBTs administered remains constant, it is estimated that PBT fees will result in additional 
annual revenue of approximately $30,000.00. 

 The Troy Police Department accelerated the development of this proposal in response to discussion at a 
recent City Council meeting regarding potential revenue enhancement/cost recovery items.  Based on past 
experience, there is a high demand for PBT testing during holiday periods.  It is likely that the higher 
demand for PBT administration will commence before December 25, 2008.  Therefore, the Police 

Department recommends the adoption of Option A, below, which provides for an emergency revision to 
Chapter 60 in order to recover the significant costs expected to be incurred as a result of holiday-related 
administration of PBTs.   
 

Financial Considerations 

 A revenue fund will be created and all monies obtained as a result of PBT service will be deposited into the 
revenue account.  

 

Legal Considerations 

 The City Attorney’s Office has reviewed and approves this proposal.  
 

Policy Considerations 
 The fee assessment for PBT administration is in furtherance of the City of Troy goal to minimize costs and 

increase the efficiency of City government. 
 The fee assessment excludes PBTs issued pursuant to criminal investigations. 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Regular Business – PBT Proposed Fee Schedule.doc 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-08



 

Options 
 Option A: City management recommends an emergency amendment to Chapter 60 by implementing a fee 

schedule for Preliminary Breath Tests (PBTs) administered by the Police department effective immediately 
as indicated below: 

$5.00 – Troy residents 
$10.00 – Non-residents 
 

 Option B: City management recommends amending Chapter 60 by implementing a fee schedule for 
Preliminary Breath Tests (PBTs) administered by the Police department effective December 25, 2008 as 
listed below: 

$5.00 – Troy residents 
$10.00 – Non-residents 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Regular Business – PBT Proposed Fee Schedule.doc 



OPTION A- EMERGENCY ORDINANCE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY 
 

 

CITY OF TROY 
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE TO AMEND 

CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 60, 
Section 60.03, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 60, Section 60.03 – Fee Schedule, shall be amended by adding the 
following items: 
 
 

Police Services  FEE: 

Administration of Preliminary Breath Test to Residents  $ 5.00 

Administration of Preliminary Breath Test to Non-Residents   $10.00 

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 



OPTION A- EMERGENCY ORDINANCE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY 
 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately.   
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 



OPTION B- ORDINANCE AMENDMENT EFFECTIVE IN TEN DAYS  
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 60, 
Section 60.03, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 60, Section 60.03 – Fee Schedule, shall be amended by adding the 
following items: 
 
 

Police Services  FEE: 

Administration of Preliminary Breath Test to Residents  $ 5.00 

Administration of Preliminary Breath Test to Non-Residents   $10.00 

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 



OPTION B- ORDINANCE AMENDMENT EFFECTIVE IN TEN DAYS  
 

This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 



 1 

 
 
DATE: December 10, 2008 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agreement of Understanding – The Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development 

(PUD 7), located at the southwest corner of Big Beaver and John R, Section 26  
 
Background: 
 

 City Council granted Final PUD Approval of PUD 7 at the June 18, 2007 Regular meeting.   
 

 The project was approved to be constructed in two phases.  Phase I included 62,545 square 
feet of retail stores and other commercial uses, located at the intersection of Big Beaver Road 
and John R Road and also fronting on Big Beaver Road.  Phase II included a senior living 
facility to the south along John R Road with 120 independent living units and 80 assisted living 
units.   
 

 A Temporary Certificate of Occupancy was issued by the Building Department, and the CVS is 
operating.  Developer SAAAM-TROY, LLC has requested that the City grant a Final Certificate 
of Occupancy for the CVS Pharmacy. 
 

 Phase II is not developed and Sunrise Development terminated its involvement with the 
developer and its Michigan office.  The only Phase I use that has been constructed is the 
stand-alone 12,900 square foot CVS Pharmacy at the corner of Big Beaver and John R.   
 

 Developer SAAAM-TROY LLC completed all Phase I improvements required under the PUD 
and Development Agreement, except for the following:  
1. Corner plaza feature;  
2. Big Beaver pedestrian plaza;  
3. Paving of parking area for retail buildings A, B, C and the “Bank”; 
4. Landscape for the remaining retail parking area;  
5. Big Beaver Road improvements;  
6. Pedestrian lighting along Big Beaver Road, John R, and the entry boulevard;  
7. Parking area lighting for the retail buildings which have not yet been constructed;  
8. Signalization improvements at the westerly most driveway entrance;  
9. Installation of 225’ section of sanitary sewer from manhole “G” to manhole “H” and 

monitoring manholes and 6” diameter service leads to retail A and the “Bank.”   
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-09



 2 

 The developer proposes execution of the attached Agreement of Understanding, which will be 
executed by the developer and City.  This will authorize the City Building Department to issue 
a Final Certificate of Occupancy to CVS Pharmacy. 
 

 The Agreement designates the CVS Pharmacy component of the PUD as Phase 1 and the 
remaining retail components as Phase I(a).  The developer remains responsible for completion 
of all of the proposed Phase I and Phase I(a) improvements.  These responsibilities are listed 
in the attached Agreement of Understanding. 
 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 

 There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

 City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

 The application is consistent with the following “Outcome Statements” as established at the 
July 1, 2008 special Council meeting: 

 

II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and 
quality of life venues. 

III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a 
changing and interconnected world. 

 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve the Agreement of Understanding. 
 

 City Council can approve the Agreement of Understanding with modifications. 
 

 City Council can deny the Agreement of Understanding. 
 

 
Approved as to Form and Legality: ________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Agreement of Understanding. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File /PUD 7 
 
G:\PUD's\PUD 007 Village at Big Beaver\CC Agreement of Understanding Memo 12 15 08.docx 



ROCHESTER

DEQUINDRE

LONG LAKE
JOHN

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPHENSON

COOLIDGE

CROOKS
MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ADAMS



CITY OF TROY

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y C

ITY
 O

F T
RO

Y P
LA

NN
IN

G 
DE

PT
.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



 

AGREEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

 This Agreement dated _______________, 2008, by and between SAAAM-TROY, LLC, 

a Michigan limited liability company, the address of which is 2100 E. Maple Road, Suite 200, 

Birmingham, Michigan 48009, (hereinafter referred to as “Developer” or “SAAAM”) and THE 

CITY OF TROY, a Michigan municipal corporation, having its principal offices at 500 W. Big 

Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 48084, (hereinafter referred to as the “City”).  

R E C I T A L S 

 A. Developer is the owner of certain real property located in the City of Troy 

containing approximately 15.04 gross acres on the southwest corner of John R and Big Beaver 

Roads (hereinafter referred to as “the Property”);  

B. Developer and the City have entered into a Development Agreement for the 

Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development, (“PUD and Development Agreement”) 

consisting of Phase I being a retail development and Phase II, which was contemplated to be a 

senior living residential development;  

 C. Developer did undertake, develop and construct on Phase I, a CVS Pharmacy, 

(“CVS”) in accordance with the ordinance and requirements of the PUD ordinance and 

requirements of the City of Troy and the PUD and Development Agreement;  

 D. The CVS Pharmacy has been constructed as a stand alone, retail facility with 

egress and ingress to John R and Big Beaver with all utilities installed and energized, and has 

been approved by the City, which has issued a temporary certificate of occupancy;  

 E. SAAAM and CVS desire that a final certificate of occupancy be issued by the 

City for CVS;  

 F. Sunrise Development, the proposed developer and user for the Senior Living 

residential development has withdrawn and terminated its agreements with Developer to 

construct and operate a senior living facility at this time;  



 

2 

 G. SAAAM is in the process of negotiating with other senior living developer 

operators to find a substitute developer of the senior living residential development, Phase II;  

 H. Due to the dramatic change in economics and the economy in the State of 

Michigan, many local and national tenants have withdrawn from the retail market and/or limited 

further development to the projects which  have already been commenced;  

 I. At this time, SAAAM has completed and constructed all public infrastructure 

items required under the PUD and Development Agreement, except for the following:  

  1. Corner Plaza feature;  

  2. Big Beaver Pedestrian Plaza;  

  3. Paving of parking area for retail buildings A, B, C and the “Bank;” 

  4. Landscape for the remaining retail parking area;  

  5. Big Beaver Road improvements;  

  6. Pedestrian lighting along Big Beaver Road, John R, and the internal 

Boulevard lighting;  

  7. Parking area lighting for the retail buildings, which have not yet been 

constructed;  

  8. Signalization improvements at the westerly most driveway entrance;  

  9. Installation of 225’ section of sanitary sewer from manhole “G” to 

manhole “H” and monitoring manholes and 6” diameter service leads to retail “A” and the 

“Bank.”  This has not yet been completed since the additional retail uses are unknown at this 

time, and therefore the sewer route and other needs cannot be ascertained at this time.  

  10. Two (2) water main connections at locations as indicated on the approved 

engineering plans if such have not been previously installed. 



 

3 

 NOW THEREFORE, for One and 00/100 ($1.00) Dollar and other valuable 

consideration, the Parties agree as follows:  

1. Upon execution of this Agreement by the Parties, the Building Department of the 

City of Troy shall issue a Final Certificate of Occupancy to CVS Pharmacy. 

2.  It is acknowledged by SAAAM and agreed, that it shall remain responsible for the 

remaining improvements on Phase I, which shall be completed on the first to occur of the 

following events:   when Phase I(a), being the remainder of retail on Phase I, is completed and/or 

when Phase II commences, and/or by December 16, 2013, whichever is sooner to occur;  

3. SAAAM shall submit a request to the Planning Commission with a proposed 

revised site plan with sufficient detail for review and City Council consideration an amendment 

of the PUD, Development Agreement, Declaration of Restrictions, Reciprocal Easements and 

Restrictions, (the “Declaration of Restrictions”) , and the site plan to reflect that Phase I, as it 

currently exists, is  the CVS property and the improvements as already constructed, and Phase 

I(a) is the remaining undeveloped retail portion of Phase I, as defined in the PUD and 

Development Agreement. SAAAM shall submit said application within one hundred eighty 

(180) days this agreement is executed by the Parties;  

4. SAAAM shall continue to keep in full force and effect all insurance and bonds, 

including a letter of credit, as required by the PUD and Development Agreement, and shall 

provide documentation of such continuing coverage upon the request of the City;  

5. SAAAM may also submit a request to the Planning Commission for review and 

City Council consideration of an amendment to the PUD and Development Agreement to reflect 

alternative uses which may be additionally permissible in the Phase II area, which had been 

previously designated for use for senior living; SAAAM shall comply with the requirements set 

forth in the current City of Troy Zoning Ordinance; specifically Chapter 39, Sections 35.60.01, 



 

4 

Amendment of the Planned Unit Development, and 35.50.01, Conceptual Development Plan 

Approval, in applying for said amendment to the PUD, if applicable.  

6. It is acknowledged that SAAAM will be responsible to pay for additional water 

main testing fees in the future for the other water lines when constructed by SAAAM since all of 

the waterlines have not yet been constructed;  

7. SAAAM shall continue all soil erosion measures until development is complete in 

accordance with chapter 86 of the City of Troy Ordinance.  Also, a revised soil erosion only plan 

is to be submitted to the City of Troy Engineering Department relating to the revised phasing;  

8. SAAAM shall continue to maintain the screening or fencing which is erected to 

maintain dust and control access to the site until such time as the Parties agree otherwise in 

writing;   

9. SAAAM shall continue to screen the piles of asphalt shavings to be used in 

roadbeds and top soil for curbs, and remove the front-end loader not in current use from the 

Property within thirty (30) days of the date this Agreement is executed by the Parties; 

10. If SAAAM does not perform or complete its obligations set forth in the above 

Paragraphs 7, 8, and 9. (soil erosion measures, maintain screening or fencing, removal of heavy 

equipment) then upon thirty (30) days prior written notice and failure to correct and cure (weather 

permitting) the City is authorized to enter upon the Property, or cause its agents or contractors to 

enter upon the Property, and perform or complete said obligations.  The reasonable cost of to 

perform or complete said obligations shall be borne exclusively by SAAAM, and may be secured 

by a lien on the Property, or by the City pursuing its lawful rights;  

11. The Parties shall negotiate in good faith the terms and conditions of an 

Amendment to the PUD and Development Agreement, the Declaration of Restrictions and Site 

Plan, consistent with this Agreement. 



 

5 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement of Understanding to 

be executed  on this ________ day of December 2008. 

  DEVELOPER: 

 

  SAAAM-TROY, LLC, a Michigan limited liability 

  company 

 
     

  By : Linden Nelson  

Dated:  Its: Authorized Member 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

 ) ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ____________, 

2008, by ___________________________, the _________________ of SAAAM-Troy, LLC, a 

Michigan limited liability company, on behalf of the company. 

   

 Print Name:  

 Notary Public, ___________ County, Michigan 

 My Commission Expires:  

 Acting in the County of   

 

 

  

  CITY: 

 

  CITY OF TROY, a Michigan municipal corporation 

 

     

  By:  Louise Schilling 

Dated:  Its:  Mayor 

 

     

  By:  Tonni Bartholomew 

Dated:  Its: City Clerk 

 



 

6 

 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

 ) ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of ________ 

____________, 2008, by _______________________, its ________________, and Tonni 

Bartholomew, City Clerk of the City of Troy, Michigan, a Michigan municipal corporation, on 

behalf of the Corporation. 

   

 Print Name:  

 Notary Public, ___________ County, Michigan 

 My Commission Expires:  

 Acting in the County of   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFTED BY:    WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 

 

Robert A. Jacobs, Esq.   Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 

Jackier Gould, P.C.    City of Troy  

121 West Long Lake Road, Suite 200 500 West Big Beaver Road  

Bloomfield Hills, MI  48304-2719  Troy, MI  48084  

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 1, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, December 1, 2008, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 
Dr. Bob Erickson, MD – Member of Kensington Community Church gave the Invocation and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given.  

ROLL CALL  

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming  
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the month of 

October, Julie Swidwinski, Community Affairs Assistant presented a check in the amount 
of $601.25 to Nicole Reno for Michigan Humane Society. 

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Marvin Reinhardt 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Planning 

Commission b) City Council Appointments: Board of Zoning Appeals 

 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 1, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

(a) Mayoral Appointments  
 
Resolution #2008-12-356 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor (9-Regular) – 3-Year Terms 
 
Robert M. Schultz Term Expires 12/31/2011 

  
Thomas Strat Term Expires 12/31/2011 

 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

(b) City Council Appointments  
 
Resolution #2008-12-357 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Board of Zoning Appeals  
Appointed by Council (7 Regular) 3-Year Term 
 
Edward Kempen Unexpired Term 04/30/2010 

 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: Planning Commission 

(a) Mayoral Nominations: (b) City Council Nominations: None brought forward 

 

(a) Mayoral Nominations  
 
Resolution #2008-12-358 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 1, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action:  
 

Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor (9-Regular) – 3-Year Terms 
 
Donald L. Edmunds Unexpired Term 12/31/2010 

 
Yes: Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Eisenbacher 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
(b) City Council Nominations – No nominations brought forward 

 

E-3 Bid Waiver: Bus Rental for Downhill Ski Program  
 
Resolution #2008-12-359 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The City has utilized the services of the Troy School District buses for the Downhill 
Ski Program for the last nineteen (19 years); and 
 
WHEREAS, It has been determined that the Troy School buses meet the Parks and Recreation 
Department’s requirements for cancellation notice, availability of buses on both Friday and 
Saturday, bus capacity, and the pricing has been found to be in the City’s best interest;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 

procedures and hereby AWARDS a contract to provide bus transportation for the Downhill Ski 
Program to the Troy School District for an estimated annual cost of $26,500.00, at prices set by 
the Troy School District each year. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

E-4 City of Troy Investment Policy and Establishment of Investment Accounts 
 
Resolution #2008-12-360 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the investment policy and 
establishment of investment accounts outlined in the memorandum from John M. Lamerato, 
Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration dated November 24, 2008, a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 1, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
  

CONSENT AGENDA:  

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2008-12-361 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2008-12-361-F-2  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of November 24, 2008 as submitted. 
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 
  
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions – None Submitted 
 

F-5 Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility 

Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 

99.203.5 – Parcel #4 – Sidwell #88-20-23-301-001 – The Helen S. Krawchuk Trust 
 
Resolution #2008-12-361-F-5 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between The Helen S. Krawchuk Trust, owners of property having Sidwell 
#88-20-23-301-001, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for Rochester Road 
Improvements, Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $96,100.00, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 1, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $3,700.00 from The Helen S. Krawchuk Trust, owners of 
property having Sidwell #88-20-23-301-001; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Rezoning Application – Proposed Office Building, South Side of Wattles, East of 

Rochester Road (1100 and 1120 E. Wattles), Section 23 – R-1C to O-1 (File Number Z-
732) – December 15, 2008  

b) Rezoning Application – Proposed Maple Business Center, North Side of Maple, East of 
Castleton (2795 E. Maple), Section 25 – R-1E to B-1 (File Number Z-733) – December 
15, 2008  

c) Concept Development Plan Approval – BBK Mixed Use Project – Northeast Corner of 
Big Beaver and Kilmer, Section 22, Currently Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) and R-1E 
(One Family Residential) District – December 15, 2008       

Noted and Filed 
 

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted  

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 No Council Comments 

 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Library Advisory Board/Draft – October 9, 2008 
b) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – October 21, 2008  
c) Special Joint Meeting Birmingham Planning Board and Troy Planning Commission/Draft 

– October 29, 2008 
d) Planning Commission/Draft – November 11, 2008 
e) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – November 13, 2008 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – 

September and October, 2008 
b) Quarterly Financial Report – September 30, 2008  

Noted and Filed  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 1, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Harlan Elementary PTA President Shannon Ryan 
b) Letter of Thanks to Chief Nelson from Stacy Pilut, Raintree Homeowners Association   

Noted and Filed 
 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 

    

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 Preliminary Discussion No. 3 of the 2009/10 Budget – Potential Revenue 

Enhancements and Expenditure Reductions 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 No Closed Session 
 

The meeting RECESSED at 7:49 PM. 
 

The meeting RECONVENED at 7:56 PM. 
 

The meeting ADJOURNED on Tuesday, December 2, 2008 at 12:00 AM. 

 

 

 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 



 

 
December 8, 2008 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mary Redden, Administrative Assistant to the City Manager   
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution #10: Travel Authorization and  
 Approval to Expend Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses –  
 Michigan Municipal League’s Capital Conference 2009 
 
Background: 
 
 The Michigan Municipal League’s annual Capital Conference is scheduled for March 3 – 4, 2009 

at the Lansing Center. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Funds are available in City Council’s Education and Training account, number 102.7960. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Council member attendance of educational conferences potentially impacts all of the established 

goals and objectives for the City. 
 
Options: 
 
 Staff requests authorization and approval to expend funds on travel expenses for Council 

members interested in attending the 2009 Capital Conference. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MR/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2008\12.15.08 – Standard Purchasing Resolution #10 – MML 2009 Capital Conference 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04a



C
ap
it
al
 C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e

Michigan Municipal League

PO Box 1487

Ann Arbor, MI 48106-1487

FIRST CLASS

US POSTAGE

PAID

PERMIT NO. 492

ANN ARBOR, MIFIRST CLASS MAIL

March 3-4, 2009 Lansing Center, Lansing

Capitalonference

2009



March 3-4, 2009  
Lansing Center, LansingCapitalonference

2009

What do you get when the League puts a couple 
hundred community leaders, a sea of freshman and 
veteran lawmakers and top-notch policy experts 
together at one conference?  

You're about to find out . . . 



2 2009 Capital Conference

Agenda At A Glance

Tuesday, March 3, 2009
10:00 am–1:00 pm MML Board of Trustees Meeting & 

Lunch at League’s Capital Office

Noon–6:00 pm Conference Registration

2:00–4:00 pm Legislative Governance Committee 
Meeting

4:00–5:00 pm Capital Conference Welcome

5:00–7:30 pm  MML Liability & Property Pool 
Capital Conference Kick-Off Party

Pre-Conference Workshops
9:00 am–Noon Essential Skills for Elected Officials

9:00 am–4:00 pm Saving Money Through Risk 
Management

9:00 am–5:00 pm Michigan Association of Municipal 
Attorneys (MAMA) 22nd Annual 
Advanced Institute

1:00–4:00 pm Making Michigan a Box Office Hit

Wednesday, March 4, 2009
7:30 am Conference Registration Open

7:45–8:45 am Continental Breakfast in Exhibit Hall

 Michigan Women in Municipal 
Government Eggs & Issues 
Breakfast

7:45–8:45 am Legislative Director’s Breakfast

7:30 am–3:15 pm Spring Expo Open 

9:00–10:00 am General Session

10:00–10:15 am Break

10:15–11:30 am Concurrent Sessions

11:30–12:00 pm Networking Break in Exhibit Hall 

 Michigan Black Caucus of Local 
Elected Officials Meeting 

12:00 pm–1:15 pm Luncheon

1:30–2:45 pm Concurrent Sessions

2:45–3:15 pm Networking Break in Exhibit Hall

3:15–4:30 pm State & Federal Affairs Update

4:30–7:00 pm Reception at League’s Capital Office

** Alcoa Community Special
The Michigan Municipal League Foundation (MMLF) 
has received a grant from the Alcoa Foundation to be 
used for training local elected officials in the village 
of Mattawan, city of Farmington Hills, city of Traverse 
City, and Village of Eau Claire city and village officials in 
Ottawa and Muskegon counties. The mission of the Alcoa 
Foundation is to actively invest in the quality of life in 
Alcoa communities worldwide.

*MML Insurance Programs Support Capital Conference
If your community is a member of the Fund and or Pool, MML 
Liability and Property Pool and Workers’ Compensation Fund 
members are eligible for a $50 discount on the Conference 
registration fee. For questions about the MML Pool and Fund 
membership please contact Jennifer Orr at jorr@mml.org or  
800-653-2483. 

General Information

Conference Registration
The Conference registration will be open from noon to 6:00 pm 
on Tuesday, March 3. The registration area will be located in the 
center hallway of the Lansing Center, between Halls B and C. 
Registration on Wednesday, March 4, will begin at 7:30 am.

Parking 
Parking is available at all city parking structures at a rate of 
$2.00 per hour. Due to the automation of all municipal parking 
in Lansing, the League will no longer be able to validate parking.

Michigan Women in Municipal Government  

Eggs & Issues Breakfast
Date: Wednesday, March 4, 2009
Time: 7:45-8:45 am
Location: Lansing Center
Cost: $25

This event presents an opportunity for local government officials 
to share ideas and solutions and to hear updates on issues per-
tinent to municipalities.

Use the Delegate Registration Form to reserve your ticket. 
Tickets must be paid for in advance.

Capital Reception
Date: Wednesday, March 4, 2009
Time: 4:30–7:00 pm
Location: League Capital Office
This year’s legislative reception will be held in the League’s 
Capital Office, located across the street from the Capitol, right 
in the heart of downtown Lansing. The reception will be held 
throughout the office building showcasing a glass-enclosed 
atrium with a breathtaking view of the Capitol dome. Come join 
the fun with your colleagues and explore our Lansing facility!



32009 Capital Conference

Student Agenda
10:00 am Welcome

10:15 am Mock Council Session

11:30 am Lunch

1:00 pm Insider's Tour of the Capitol

2:00 pm Adjourn

Student Delegates
You are encouraged to bring students ages 15-19 from your 
community, to the Capital Conference. Through the generos-
ity of the Michigan Municipal League Foundation’s George D. 
Goodman Scholarship Fund, the attendance fee for student  
delegates has been waived.

Not only do we have a program tailored to the students, they 
also have the option of attending sessions on the regular agen-
da, or a combination of both. In providing students their own 
agenda for the day, we hope to give them a better understand-
ing of how local and state government work and work together.

The supervision of students and arrangements for travel and 
lodging (including associated costs) are the responsibility of 
the host municipality, school or organization. Students may not 
attend unsupervised.

Register students by completing the Student Registration Form. 
Please complete only one form per attendee, but feel free to 
make as many copies as necessary. 

Housing Reservation 
Process

Housing reservations will only be accepted at 
the headquarters hotel for registered Conference 
attendees. Fax the housing form with your personalized 
registration code to the hotel. A confirmation email 
containing your registration information, Conference 
username and password, a link to the housing form 
and your personalized code, will be sent within 48 
hours of the League receiving your Conference 
registration form. 

Headquarters Hotel 
The Radisson Hotel, Lansing
See the reservation form at www.mml.org

111 North Grand Ave., Lansing, MI 48933
Phone: 517-482-0188  Fax: 517-487-6646
Flat Rate, $129 (plus 7% city occupancy, 6% state 
sales tax and $10 per night valet parking fee). After 
February 2, 2009 reservations accepted on space 
available basis only.

Sheraton Hotel, Lansing
Contact the hotel directly for reservations

925 S. Creyts Rd., Lansing, MI 48917
Phone: 517-323-7100; Fax: 517-323-2180
Single, double, triple and quad $99 (plus 6% room 
assessment and 6% state sales tax). After February 10, 
2009 reservations accepted on space available basis 
only.

State Taxes
To avoid having to pay state taxes on your hotel room, 
bring your proof of tax exempt status with you to the 
hotel.

municipality or with a credit card that has your 
municipality’s name on it.

room will not be tax exempt.



4 2009 Capital Conference

2009 MML Capital Conference
Lansing Center, Lansing – Tuesday, March 3, 2009

Pre-Conference Education Program Registration Form

MUNICIPALITY or FIRM

LAST NAME FIRST NAME

TITLE

BILLING ADDRESS

CITY STATE ZIP

PHONE FAX

EMAIL REQUIRED (Please print clearly. Confirmations sent via email)

Would you like to receive more training information from the MML by email?       o  Yes       o  No

FEES—EARLY REGISTRATION (if received by February 17) MML Member Nonmember MML Fund or 
Pool Member

Alcoa Rate

o Essential Skills for Elected Officials (09C-01) $115 $160 $115 $40

o Saving Money Through Risk Management (09C-02) $115 $160 $10 $40

o Making Michigan a Box Office Hit (09C-03) $70 $125 $70 $30

o Michigan Association of Municipal Attorneys Advanced Institute (09C-04) $115 $160 $115 $40

FEE FROM TABLE ABOVE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .$  

LATE FEE (if received after February 17) add $35 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .$ 

TOTAL FEE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .$ 

PAYMENT INFORMATION

o  Check Enclosed (Payable to Michigan Municipal League)

o  Credit Card:     o MasterCard      o Visa      o American Express

NUMBER EXPIRATION DATE

NAME ON CREDIT CARD SIGNATURE

TO REGISTER

1. Fax form to 734-662-6939, then

2. If paying by check please mail this form along with a check payable to the Michigan Municipal League, PO Box 7409, Ann Arbor, MI 48107-7409. 

3. Credit card payments may be faxed or mailed to Michigan Municipal League, PO Box 7409, Ann Arbor, MI 48107-7409. 



52009 Capital Conference

participants will be able to determine the true cost of accidents, 

analyze insurance options, and evaluate the causes of loss so that 

you can implement change to mitigate future claims. (09C-02)

 
Adjourn 4:00 pm

Making Michigan a Box Office Hit
Tuesday, March 3, 2009

Lights, Camera, Action—Recently approved tax incentives have 

given Michigan communities a leg-up in the movie-making busi-

ness.  Learn how to capitalize on economic development opportu-

nities associated with Hollywood.  After attending this event com-

munity leaders will know how to register their communities with 

the film office; market their community as a movie making hot-spot; 

develop a streamlined permit process; and explain to others the 

positive economic impact the industry has on other commununities. 

(09C-03)

Michigan Association of Municipal Attorneys 
23rd Annual Advanced Institute
Tuesday, March 3, 2009

Stay current on the latest legal issues affecting Michigan local

governments. Attendees will hear various presentations from 

several experts who will review recent court decisions and legisla-

tion, challenges being faced, strategies and examples. The program 

will conclude with a cracker-barrel session at which the attorneys 

are asked to bring their quandaries and their successes. This is a 

perfect opportunity to “meet and greet” your colleagues while you 

network and exchange ideas and experiences. You will leave this 

session with a better understanding of current legal issues and the 

impact they will have on the municipalities you represent. You will 

be able to identify solutions to these questions. (09C-04)

 
Adjourn 5:00 pm

Essential Skills for Elected Officials
Tuesday, March 3, 2009

This session is not only for those recently elected, but for every 

elected official who wants to serve his or her municipality more 

effectively.  This day-long session can clarify many of the questions 

that you have had since you assumed office, and it covers basic 

information about the responsibilities of your office.  At this ses-

sion you will be able to network with many new and experienced 

elected officials.  Topics such as conducting meetings the Open 

Meetings Act, and the Freedom of Information Act will be covered.  

Upon completion of the program attendees will:

1. Be able to cite provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 

that regulates and sets requirements for the disclosure of public 

records (including the exceptions and rationale for nondisclosure 

under certain circumstance).

2. Be able to identify the issues affecting local government in the 

state Legislature and of the importance of lobbying to assure the 

advocacy of local government interests.

3. Be able to schedule and conduct meetings within the guidelines 

of the Open Meetings Act.

4. List the tips to work with the media so that the local government 

message is accurately conveyed to the public.

5. Explain the laws that affect ethical standards for public officials at 

the state level and the reason for their importance.

6. Use the procedures and tips given to conduct an effective and 

time-efficient meeting. (09C-01)

 
Adjourn 4:00 pm

Saving Money Through Risk Management
Tuesday, March 3, 2009

Come and learn how Risk Management can save you money.  It’s 

within your control!  A solid Risk Management plan will enable 

you to enhance safety, minimize lawsuits, meet regulatory compli-

ance standards, improve business decisions, and enhance asset 

management. Attendees will view a PowerPoint presentation, see 

examples of case studies, and have the opportunity to ask ques-

tions about the information provided.  At the end of the program, 

Pre-Conference Education Programs 



6 2009 Capital Conference

Delegate Registration Form - WEB

Municipality:

Name:

Nickname: Title: 

Address:

City, ST, Zip: 

Phone: Fax:

Email for
Confirmation: (Hotel Housing Code will be sent to this address)

Registration Type Price

Special Rates (for MML Members only)

        *Risk Management Member ($100)……………………………….………………….……………………………………………$

For more information, see the section on Registration Procedures.

        **Alcoa Community ($75)..…………………………………………………………………………………………………………….$

For more information, see the section on Registration Procedures.

Member Rates:

        Early Bird Rate, through 02/09/09 ($150)…………………………………………………………………………………… $

        Regular Rate, after 02/09/09 ($185)………………………………………………………………………………………………$

Nonmember Rate
        Non member Attendee ($255)…………………………………………………………………………………………………………$

Guest Rate
        Guest Attendee ($50 before 02/09/09; $60 after 02/09/09)………………………………………………………$

             Guest Name:

Additional Activities
        Michigan Women in Municipal Government Breakfast ($25)………………………………..………………………$

         I am a First-Time Attendee ………………………………………………………………………………………………………….$

Special Accommodations
        I require special accommodations/meal arrangements. Please describe:

        My guest requires special accommodations/meal arrangements. Please describe:

Payment Information

        Check  payable to the Michigan Municipal League

        Credit Card (Visa, MasterCard, American Express)

Card Number: Exp. Date:

Name on Card: 

Signature:

Registration Questions? Please call 734-669-6371 or email registration@mml.org

Persons with Disabilities and 

Special Needs

Cancellation Policy

(Fax completed form with credit card information to: 734-662-6939)

(Fax completed form to 734-662-6939, then send form with payment to:  

Michigan Municipal League PO Box 7409 Ann Arbor, MI  48107-7409)

Educational Credit Policy
If you arrive late for a program, have 

to leave early, or do not participate 

in program activities, your 

educational credits will be adjusted 

accordingly.

The League will not discriminate 

against any individual or group 

because of race, sex, religion, age, 

national origin, color, marital status, 

familial status, height, weight, 

disability, or political beliefs.

If you require special arrangements, 

including a special diet, please check 

the Special Accommodations box on 

the registration form and describe 

how we may assist you.  If 

necessary, a League representative 

may contact you for further 

information.

The registration fee includes all 

educational sessions, handouts, 

refreshment breaks, lunch receptions, 

and Expo access.  Additional 

registration fees apply for pre-

conference events.

Anti-Discrimination Policy

All cancellations must be submitted in 

writing and are subject to a $60.00 

cancellation fee.  No refunds will be 

given for cancellation requests 

received after Friday, February 27, 

2009.  Email cancellation requests to 

registration@mml.org or fax them to    

734-662-6939

Registration Fee

2009 MML Capital Conference Lansing Center - March 3-4, 2009

Registration Information

Registration ProceduresRegistration Procedures



72009 Capital Conference

Chaperone Name: 

Organization Name:

Chaperone Phone #: 

Nickname Special Needs *

Registration Instructions

Please fax this registration form with your Capital Conference Delegate Registration form to 734-662-6939 or mail with your payment to:

Michigan Municipal League, PO Box 7409 Ann Arbor, MI  48107-7409

2009 MML Capital Conference

Lansing Center - March 3-4, 2009

Student Registration Form

               Name

1

Students:

3

2

* If a student attendee requires special accommodations related to facility access, communication, and/or diet, please describe the requirement in

the appropriate box above.  We are not able to accommodate such requests on site.

4

5

H
O

R
S D’OUEVRES, BEER/WINE, A

ND F
U

N

CONFERENCE KICK OFF PARTY
(Michigan Municipal League)

THE LIABILITY & PROPERTY POOL

Tuesday

March 3, 2009

5:00 - 7:30 pm

Entertainment by

The Motor City

Music Cartel



 

 December 2, 2008 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Water System 

Materials  
 
Background 
 On November 12, 2008, bid proposals were received to furnish one-year requirements of water 

system materials. 
 184 vendors were notified via the MITN system with six (6) companies responding and one statement 

of no bid received. 
 All items recommended represent the lowest bidder for each item. 
 Estimated quantities of materials shall be purchased at quoted unit prices, and ordered on an as 

needed basis. 
 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available in the Water Division Operating Budget. 

 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 08-37, Water System Materials was competitively bid in accordance with Chapter 7 of the 

City Code, and opened with six bidders responding. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 Troy enhances the health and safety of the community through regular maintenance of the City’s 

water and sewer system.  (Outcome Statement I & II) 
 
Options 
 City management recommends awarding contracts to the following low bidders:  East Jordan Iron 

Works of Oak Park, MI; Gunners Meters & Parts of Pontiac, MI; SLC Meter Service, Inc of Davisburg, 
MI and HD Supply Waterworks of Shelby Township, MI for an estimated total cost of $25,158.52, 
$86,765.00, $15,083.80 and $4,902.00 respectively, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened November 12, 2008. 

 
 
S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 12.15.08 – SR1 – Water System Materials Letter.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04b



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-37
Opening Date -- 11/12/08 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 6
Date Prepared --  11/17/08 sl WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS

VENDOR NAME:

EST UNIT UNIT
ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL
ITEM #1 CURB BOX ITEMS

1 200 2 X 1 1/2" BLACK BUSHING -$           -$                -$            -$               
2 500 2" MINNEAPOLIS CURB BOX W/STEMS -$           -$                -$            -$               
3 50 2" Curb Box (Mueller #H10300-99002) -$           -$                -$            -$               

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #2 CORPORATION STOPS
1 350 1" CORPORATION STOPS w/nuts 22.30$       7,805.00$       22.43$        7,850.50$      
2 100 1 1/2" CORPORATION STOPS w/nuts 60.35$       6,035.00$       60.75$        6,075.00$      
3 100 2" CORPORATION STOPS w/nuts 104.30$     10,430.00$     105.02$      10,502.00$    

MANUFACTURER Cambridge Brass, Inc
MODEL       301,302 Series

ITEM #3 CURB STOPS (Ball Valve Type)
1 350 1" CURB STOPS w/nuts 46.20$       16,170.00$     46.49$        16,271.50$    
2 100 1 1/2" CURB STOPS w/nuts 99.10$       9,910.00$       99.77$        9,977.00$      
3 100 2" CURB STOPS w/nuts 156.45$     15,645.00$     157.52$      15,752.00$    

MANUFACTURER Cambridge Brass, Inc
MODEL 262 Series

ITEM #4 FULL CIRCLE REPAIR CLAMPS
1 2 3" X 7 1/2" Range 3.73-4.00 -Single Band -$           -$                -$            -$               
2 10 6" x 15" Range 6.84-7.64 -$           -$                -$            -$               
3 10 8" x 12" FS2 Tapped OD 8.99-9.79 -$           -$                -$            -$               
4 6 12" x 12 1/2" FS2 Tapped 13.20 - 14.00 -$           -$                -$            -$               
5 6 12" x 15" FS2 Tapped 13.65-14.45 -$           -$                -$                 -$               

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #5 BRASS FITTINGS
1 100 1" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 15.05$       1,505.00$       15.12$        1,512.00$      
2 100 1 1/2" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 41.60$       4,160.00$       41.88$        4,188.00$      
3 100 2" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 67.90$       6,790.00$       68.34$        6,834.00$      
4 100 1" x 90 Degree bend non-swivel less nuts -$           -$                -$            -$               
5 100 2" x 90 Degree bend non-swivel less nuts -$           -$                -$            -$               

MANUFACTURER Cambridge Brass, Inc
MODEL    118 Series

ITEM #6 BRONZE TAPPING SADDLES w/cc THREADS
AC/Ductilie Iron Pipe

1 40 1" x 8" Tap Saddle 74.90$       2,996.00$       75.41$        3,016.40$      
2 20 2" x 8" Tap Saddle 85.85$       1,717.00$       86.43$        1,728.60$      
3 40 1 1/2" x 12" Tap Saddle 122.50$     4,900.00$       123.33$      4,933.20$      
4 40 2" x 12" Tap Saddle 124.70$     4,988.00$       125.55$      5,022.00$      

Ductilie Iron Pipe
5 20 1" x 16" DI Tap Saddle -$           -$                -$            -$               
6 40 1 1/2 x 16" DI Tap Saddle -$           -$                -$            -$               
7 30 2" x 16" DI Tap Saddle -$           -$                -$            -$               

Concrete Steel Pipe
8 10 2" x 16" Service Saddle -$           -$                -$            -$               

MANUFACTURER Cambridge Brass, Inc
MODEL     810 Series

Blank
Blank

Blank
Blank

NO-BID

Blank

Blank
Blank

No-Lead

Cambridge Brass

Cambridge - No Lead

ISCO Industries

NO BID

No-Lead
Cambridge - No Lead

No-Lead

Inc

NO-BID

Cambridge - No Lead

NO-BID

Cambridge - No Lead
No-Lead

Blank



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-37
Opening Date -- 11/12/08 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 6
Date Prepared -- 11/17/08 sl WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS

VENDOR NAME:

EST UNIT UNIT
ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL
ITEM #7 VALVE BOX PARTS

1 2 18" D-BOX BOTTOM SECTION -$           -$                -$            -$               
2 20 24" D-BOX BOTTOM SECTION -$           -$                -$            -$               
3 12 D-BOX RISER - SCREW IN TYPE 12" -$          -$                -$           -$              
4 20 D-BOX TOP - SECTION 16" -$           -$                -$            -$               
5 20 D-BOX TOP - SECTION 26" -$           -$                -$            -$               

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #8 WATER MAIN FITTINGS
1 12 6" x 7 1/2 MJ DI Solid Sleeve -$           -$                -$            -$               
2 4 12" MJ Split Rings -$           -$                -$            -$               
3 6 12" MJ Rings -$           -$                -$            -$               
4 1 length 24" Class 54 Ductile Iron Pipe -$           -$                -$            -$               

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #9
DISCOUNT
Parts Price List
Dated

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: N/A N/A

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hrs of Operation     8:30 AM to 4:30 PM 8 AM to 4:30 PM   M - F
24 Hr Phone No.          517-898-4190 Blank

PAYMENT TERMS:            Net 30 Days            Net 30 Days

WARRANTY:       Per Manufacturer

DELIVERY:    After Receipt of Release        5 - 7 Business Days

EXCEPTIONS: N/A

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Signed - Y or N Yes Yes

PROPOSAL:  One-Year Requirements of Water System Materials
ATTEST:
Diane Fisher HIGHLIGHTED TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDERS
Emily Frontera
Linda Bockstanz

Susan Leirstein CPPB
G:/WaterSystemMaterial ITB-COT 08-37 Purchasing Director

Blank

Blank

Blank

Blank
Blank

Blank
Blank

Blank
Blank

NO-BID

Blank
Blank
Blank

Cambridge BrassISCO Industries

NO-BID

Blank
NO-BID

Blank
Blank

PARTS FOR MUELLER IMPROVED FIRE HYDRANTS  NO BID

NO-BID

NO-BID

Inc

Blank



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-37
Opening Date -- 11/12/08 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 6
Date Prepared --  11/17/08 sl WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS

VENDOR NAME:
EST UNIT UNIT

ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL
ITEM #1 CURB BOX ITEMS

1 200 2 X 1 1/2" BLACK BUSHING 2.75$         550.00$          1.85$          370.00$          
2 500 2" MINNEAPOLIS CURB BOX W/STEMS 26.38$       13,190.00$     26.75$        13,375.00$     
3 50 2" Curb Box (Mueller #H10300-99002) -$           -$                29.90$        1,495.00$       

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #2 CORPORATION STOPS
1 350 1" CORPORATION STOPS w/nuts 26.07$      9,124.50$      21.00$        7,350.00$      
2 100 1 1/2" CORPORATION STOPS w/nuts 83.29$       8,329.00$       57.90$        5,790.00$       
3 100 2" CORPORATION STOPS w/nuts 138.13$     13,813.00$     100.00$      10,000.00$     

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #3 CURB STOPS (Ball Valve Type)
1 350 1" CURB STOPS w/nuts 57.20$       20,020.00$     43.50$        15,225.00$     
2 100 1 1/2" CURB STOPS w/nuts 126.53$    12,653.00$    93.50$        9,350.00$      
3 100 2" CURB STOPS w/nuts 201.40$     20,140.00$     151.50$      15,150.00$     

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #4 FULL CIRCLE REPAIR CLAMPS
1 2 3" X 7 1/2" Range 3.73-4.00 -Single Band -$           -$                82.00$        164.00$          
2 10 6" x 15" Range 6.84-7.64 -$           -$                170.00$      1,700.00$       
3 10 8" x 12" FS2 Tapped OD 8.99-9.79 -$           -$                195.00$      1,950.00$       
4 6 12" x 12 1/2" FS2 Tapped 13.20 - 14.00 -$           -$                300.00$      1,800.00$       
5 6 12" x 15" FS2 Tapped 13.65-14.45 -$           -$                325.00$      1,950.00$       

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #5 BRASS FITTINGS
1 100 1" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 17.58$       1,758.00$       13.20$        1,320.00$       
2 100 1 1/2" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 48.25$       4,825.00$       36.00$        3,600.00$       
3 100 2" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 78.74$       7,874.00$       58.50$        5,850.00$       
4 100 1" x 90 Degree bend non-swivel less nuts -$           -$                15.00$        1,500.00$       
5 100 2" x 90 Degree bend non-swivel less nuts -$           -$                95.00$        9,500.00$       

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #6 BRONZE TAPPING SADDLES w/cc THREADS
AC/Ductilie Iron Pipe

1 40 1" x 8" Tap Saddle 155.18$     6,207.20$       72.50$        2,900.00$       
2 20 2" x 8" Tap Saddle 155.18$     3,103.60$       83.00$        1,660.00$       
3 40 1 1/2" x 12" Tap Saddle 204.80$     8,192.00$       118.00$      4,720.00$       
4 40 2" x 12" Tap Saddle 204.80$    8,192.00$      120.00$      4,800.00$      

Ductilie Iron Pipe
5 20 1" x 16" DI Tap Saddle 102.51$     2,050.20$       258.00$      5,160.00$       
6 40 1 1/2 x 16" DI Tap Saddle 114.44$     4,577.60$       272.00$      10,880.00$     
7 30 2" x 16" DI Tap Saddle 114.44$     3,433.20$       300.00$      9,000.00$       

Concrete Steel Pipe
8 10 2" x 16" Service Saddle 234.32$     2,343.20$       245.00$      2,450.00$       

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

4758

JCM
425

A Y McDonald
4701

A Y McDonald
6104

A Y McDonald

5613 - 5611

Blank Ford
Blank FS2

Gunners Meters & Parts

402,418,425

East Jordan Iron Works

A Y McDonald A Y McDonald
5613

NO-BID

JCM

       A Y McDonald
4701

        A Y McDonald
6104

        A Y McDonald
4758



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-37
Opening Date -- 11/12/08 BID TABULATION Pg. 4 of 6
Date Prepared -- 11/17/08 sl WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS

VENDOR NAME:

EST UNIT UNIT
ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL
ITEM #7 VALVE BOX PARTS

1 2 18" D-BOX BOTTOM SECTION 37.48$       74.96$            46.00$        92.00$            
2 20 24" D-BOX BOTTOM SECTION 39.98$       799.60$          54.00$        1,080.00$       
3 12 D-BOX RISER - SCREW IN TYPE 12" 37.48$       449.76$          38.00$        456.00$          
4 20 D-BOX TOP - SECTION 16" 29.16$      583.20$         45.00$        900.00$         
5 20 D-BOX TOP - SECTION 26" 47.48$       949.60$          55.00$        1,100.00$       

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #8 WATER MAIN FITTINGS
1 12 6" x 7 1/2 MJ DI Solid Sleeve 47.79$       573.48$          145.00$      1,740.00$       
2 4 12" MJ Split Rings 13.99$       55.96$            150.00$      600.00$          
3 6 12" MJ Rings 11.36$       68.16$            90.00$        540.00$          
4 1 length 24" Class 54 Ductile Iron Pipe (Per Ft) 126.46$     2,529.20$       144.50$      2,890.00$       

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #9
DISCOUNT
Parts Price List
Dated

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 25,158.52$    86,765.00$    

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hrs of Operation    7:30 AM to 4:30 PM      8 AM to 5 PM   M - F
24 Hr Phone No.         313-255-3914        248-545-6304

PAYMENT TERMS:           Net 30 Days            Net 30
1 Year

WARRANTY:       Per Manufacturer

DELIVERY:           1 - 2 Weeks       1 Week - 10 Days

EXCEPTIONS:
/Unions are manufacturered by
AY McDonald & have been accepted 
in past bid proposals.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Signed - Y or N Yes Yes

G:/WaterSystemMaterial ITB-COT 08-37

Blank Blank

1 Year

NO-BID
Blank Blank

8560

All curb box /curb stop/ corp stopsBlank

PARTS FOR MUELLER IMPROVED FIRE HYDRANTS
NO-BID

Blank

Tyler / Griffin Pipe
Blank Blank

EJIW

East Jordan Iron Works Gunners Meters & Parts

East Jordan Iron Works EJIW



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-37
Opening Date -- 11/12/08 BID TABULATION Pg. 5 of 6
Date Prepared --  11/17/08 sl WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS

VENDOR NAME:
EST UNIT UNIT

ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL
ITEM #1 CURB BOX ITEMS

1 200 2 X 1 1/2" BLACK BUSHING 2.10$            420.00$        1.89$         378.00$         
2 500 2" MINNEAPOLIS CURB BOX W/STEMS 28.30$          14,150.00$   26.83$       13,415.00$    
3 50 2" Curb Box (Mueller #H10300-99002) 87.00$          4,350.00$     28.00$       1,400.00$      

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #2 CORPORATION STOPS
1 350 1" CORPORATION STOPS w/nuts 22.00$          7,700.00$     21.20$       7,420.00$      
2 100 1 1/2" CORPORATION STOPS w/nuts 60.25$          6,025.00$     58.05$       5,805.00$      
3 100 2" CORPORATION STOPS w/nuts 105.00$        10,500.00$   101.41$     10,141.00$    

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #3 CURB STOPS (Ball Valve Type)
1 350 1" CURB STOPS w/nuts 45.50$          15,925.00$   43.98$       15,393.00$    
2 100 1 1/2" CURB STOPS w/nuts 98.00$          9,800.00$     94.50$       9,450.00$      
3 100 2" CURB STOPS w/nuts 158.00$        15,800.00$   152.87$     15,287.00$    

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #4 FULL CIRCLE REPAIR CLAMPS
1 2 3" X 7 1/2" Range 3.73-4.00 -Single Band 42.91$          85.82$          35.85$       71.70$           
2 10 6" x 15" Range 6.84-7.64 161.10$        1,611.00$     130.41$     1,304.10$      
3 10 8" x 12" FS2 Tapped OD 8.99-9.79 194.00$        1,940.00$     116.21$     1,162.10$      
4 6 12" x 12 1/2" FS2 Tapped 13.20 - 14.00 271.00$        1,626.00$     172.15$     1,032.90$      
5 6 12" x 15" FS2 Tapped 13.65-14.45 315.00$        1,890.00$     185.00$     1,110.00$      

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #5 BRASS FITTINGS
1 100 1" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 13.50$          1,350.00$     13.13$       1,313.00$      
2 100 1 1/2" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 37.00$          3,700.00$     36.04$       3,604.00$      
3 100 2" Copper to Copper Union w/nuts 61.00$          6,100.00$     58.81$       5,881.00$      
4 100 1" x 90 Degree bend non-swivel less nuts 18.00$          1,800.00$     11.61$       1,161.00$      
5 100 2" x 90 Degree bend non-swivel less nuts 90.00$          9,000.00$     65.29$       6,529.00$      

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #6 BRONZE TAPPING SADDLES w/cc THREADS
AC/Ductilie Iron Pipe

1 40 1" x 8" Tap Saddle 76.00$          3,040.00$     74.83$       2,993.20$      
2 20 2" x 8" Tap Saddle 86.50$          1,730.00$     85.77$       1,715.40$      
3 40 1 1/2" x 12" Tap Saddle 124.00$        4,960.00$     122.37$     4,894.80$      
4 40 2" x 12" Tap Saddle 126.00$        5,040.00$     124.58$     4,983.20$      

Ductilie Iron Pipe
5 20 1" x 16" DI Tap Saddle 340.00$        6,800.00$     265.67$     5,313.40$      
6 40 1 1/2 x 16" DI Tap Saddle 361.00$        14,440.00$   281.90$     11,276.00$    
7 30 2" x 16" DI Tap Saddle 398.00$        11,940.00$   -$           -$               

Concrete Steel Pipe
8 10 2" x 16" Service Saddle 180.00$        1,800.00$     311.51$     3,115.10$      

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

A Y McDonald
Blank

A Y McDonald
Blank

A Y McDonald
Blank

A Y McDonald

AY 4758 & H15068

Blank

AY McDonald & Mueller A Y McDonald
AY 5613 & H10304 Blank

Smith Blair

6104

AY McDonald / Smith Blair
AY 3825 / SB 362 

Ford
261 & 265 Blank

AY McDonald & Mueller

H.D. Supply Waterworks S.L.C. Meter Service

A Y McDonald
4701 & 4701B

A Y McDonald



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-37
Opening Date -- 11/12/08 BID TABULATION Pg. 6 of 6
Date Prepared -- 11/17/08 sl WATER SYSTEM MATERIALS

VENDOR NAME:

EST UNIT UNIT
ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL
ITEM #7 VALVE BOX PARTS

1 2 18" D-BOX BOTTOM SECTION 42.00$          84.00$          -$           -$               
2 20 24" D-BOX BOTTOM SECTION 45.00$          900.00$        -$           -$               
3 12 D-BOX RISER - SCREW IN TYPE 12" 42.50$          510.00$        -$           -$               
4 20 D-BOX TOP - SECTION 16" 35.00$          700.00$        -$           -$               
5 20 D-BOX TOP - SECTION 26" 38.00$          760.00$        -$           -$               

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #8 WATER MAIN FITTINGS
1 12 6" x 7 1/2 MJ DI Solid Sleeve 47.00$          564.00$        -$           -$               
2 4 12" MJ Split Rings 12.00$          48.00$          -$           -$               
3 6 12" MJ Rings 10.00$          60.00$          -$           -$               
4 1 length 24" Class 54 Ductile Iron Pipe 83.50$          1,670.00$     -$           -$               

MANUFACTURER
MODEL

ITEM #9
DISCOUNT
Parts Price List
Dated

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 4,902.00$    15,083.80$   

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hrs of Operation       7:00 AM to 4:00 PM      8 AM to 5 PM   M - F
24 Hr Phone No.          248-521-4355           734-320-0215

PAYMENT TERMS:            Net 30            Net 30 Days

WARRANTY:       Per Manufacturer

DELIVERY:             7 - 10  Days           2 - 3 Weeks

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Signed - Y or N Yes Yes

NO BID:
 Etna Supply Company

G:/WaterSystemMaterial ITB-COT 08-37

Standard Manufacturer

BlankBlank

8% 0%
Mueller Co AY & Ford
2-Jun-08 4-16-08 & 8-08-08

Blank
Blank

Blank
Blank

Tyler / Union
Blank

NO-BID

PARTS FOR MUELLER IMPROVED FIRE HYDRANTS

H.D. Supply Waterworks S.L.C. Meter Service

Tyler/ Union
Tyler 

NO-BID



campbellld
Text Box
F-05















































































campbellld
Text Box
F-06











campbellld
Text Box
F-07

















1 
 

 
 
DATE: December 4, 2008 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Adams Road Site Condominium, East side of 

Adams, South of South Boulevard, Section 6 – R-1A  
 
 
Background: 
 

 The Planning Commission recommended approval of Adams Road Preliminary Site 
Condominium Plan at the November 11, 2008 Regular meeting.   
 

 The applicant is proposing a 5-unit site condominium on a 4.98-acre parcel.  The development 
will utilize the One-Family Cluster Option (Section 34.70.00) which provides for reduced lot 
sizes and setbacks.  The applicant is required to provide at least 30% open space; at least 
25% of the open space shall be non-regulated wetlands.   
 

 The applicant prepared a parallel plan that indicates that five units can be developed on the 
property using conventional R-1A area and bulk requirements. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

 There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

 City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-08



2 
 

Policy Considerations: 
 

 The application is consistent with the following “Outcome Statements” as established at the 
July 1, 2008 Special Council meeting: 

 

II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and 
quality of life venues. 

III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a 
changing and interconnected world. 

 
 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan as submitted or with 
conditions. 

 

 City Council can deny the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan. 
 

 City Management recommends approval of the Adams Road Preliminary Site Condominium 
Plan.   

 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Minutes from the November 11, 2008 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Adams Road Site Condominium 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Adams Road Site Condo Sec 6\CC Approval Adams Road Site Condo 12 15 08.docx 

 



AD
AM

S

FOURTEEN MILE

MAPLE MAPLE

MA
IN

CR
OO

KS
CR

OO
KS

STEPHENSON

I75

I75

BIG BEAVER
LIV

ER
NO

IS

SQUARE LAKE

WATTLES

SOUTH BLVD

JO
HN 

R
JO

HN 
R

LONG LAKE

DE
QU

IN
DR

E
DE

QU
IN

DR
E

RO
CH

ES
TE

R

CO
OL

ID
GE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



GALLOWAY 
BAY

LAKE CHARNWOOD

MA
LV

ER
N

MEATH HUNT CIR

DONEGAL

TEWKSBURY

LIMERICK

AD
AM

S

BE
AC

H

DUB LIN 
FAIR

KILLARNEY

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW
PROPOSED ADAMS ROAD SITE CONDOMINIUM
E SIDE OF ADAMS, S OF SOUTH BLVD.
SEC. 6

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PARCEL



GALLOWAY 
BAY

LAKE CHARNWOOD

MA
LV

ER
N

MEATH HUNT CIR

DONEGAL

TEWKSBURY

LIMERICK

AD
AM

S

BE
AC

H

DUB LIN 
FAIR

KILLARNEY

R-1A

C-F

E-P

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW
PROPOSED ADAMS ROAD SITE CONDOMINIUM
E SIDE OF ADAMS, S OF SOUTH BLVD.
SEC. 6

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PARCEL



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 11, 2008 
  

 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 

9. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Adams Road Site Condominium 
(Renewal), 5 units/lots proposed, East side of Adams, South of South Blvd., 
Section 6, Zoned R-1A (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site condominium development, and reported it is the recommendation 
of City Management to approve the site condominium application as submitted. 
 
There was a brief discussion as relates to revisions to the site plan, wetland 
delineations and MDEQ (Michigan Department of Environmental Quality) 
approval. 
 
The petitioner, David Donnellon of Choice Group, 755 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, 
was present.  Mr. Donnellon addressed the proposed storm water management. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
John Quasarano of 2862 Lake Charnwood, Troy, was present.  He requested to 
view the site plan, of which a complete set was provided to him.   
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-11-133 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council that 
the Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.70.00 One-Family Cluster Option), as 
requested for Adams Road Site Condominium, including 5 units, located on the 
east side of Adams, south of South Boulevard, Section 6, within the R-1A zoning 
district, be granted. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck, Wright 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



 
 
 
 
 

Plans are included with  
Council agenda packets 

and available for viewing at the 
City Clerk’s Office and the Troy Public Library 



 

 September 5, 2008 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Winter Maintenance Agreement, Road Commission for Oakland 

County  
 
Background: 
 Attached is a copy of the proposed 2008/2009 Winter Maintenance Agreement between the Road 

Commission for Oakland County and the City of Troy. 
 Since 2001 the City of Troy has serviced all county roads in Troy for snow and ice control.  
 The amount of compensation to the City has increased by approximately two percent (2%) over 

last season’s contract, which does not cover our cost but a higher level of service is provided and 
the Road Commission for Oakland County is in concurrence. 

 It continues to be evident that this agreement is beneficial to both the RCOC and the City of Troy 
by allowing the City to administer Snow & Ice Control in a more timely and uniform manner to it’s 
high priority roads and allowing  the County to concentrate on it’s highest priority roads, I-75 and 
M-59. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 No additional staffing or equipment is required. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 Legal counsel has reviewed the contract for form and legality. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community. 

 
Options: 
 City management is in agreement with the measured lane mile figures as has been presented, 

and with the level of compensation for each road configuration; therefore we recommend that the 
proposed maintenance agreement be approved as printed. 

 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-09



























campbellld
Text Box
F-10





















campbellld
Text Box
F-11













campbellld
Text Box
F-12



























campbellld
Text Box
F-13

















campbellld
Text Box
F-14



campbellld
Text Box
J-01a







ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – ROUGH –  
OCTOBER 1, 2008 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, October 1, 2008, in the lower level Conference Room at City Hall.  
Done called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.                                        
 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member M. Chaffee, member  
   D. Chong, student  A. Done, member  
   P. Hammond, member E. Kempen, member  
   L. Patton, member  J. Stewart, alternate 
   A. Vasudevan, student    
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff    
 
Absent: K. Clark, member   
   B. Harrell, member   
   P. Lin, member 
   K. Mayer, alternate   
   S. Murphy, alternate      
 
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF SEPTEM BER 3, 2008 
Buchanan made a motion to approve the minutes of September 3, 2008; supported by 
Kempen; all voted in favor.  
 
ITEM IV – PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
ITEM V - SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
Cathy Russ, Library Director, attended and provided a handout with information on 
collections, equipment and services available at the Troy Public Library.  Cathy and 
Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager, are members of the Troy Historical Commission.  
They have invited a member of the ACPD to act as a liaison of these two committees. 
 
Lori Bluhm, City Attorney, was in attendance and distributed a Reference Book with 
information regarding the Open Meetings Act, Disability Rights Law, etc.  This will be 
distributed to new members of this Committee also.  Lori also clarified that the 
committee does not need to excuse or unexcuse absent members. 
 
ITEM VI – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Done, Hammond and Vasudevan will be handling the display case at the Troy Public 
Library for October which is Disabilities Awareness Month.  Done will contact Susan 
Werpetinski, previous member of this Committee, for assistance. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – ROUGH –  
OCTOBER 1, 2008 

 2

ITEM VII – NEW BUSINESS  
Committee members are requested to contact Grusnick, Done or another member if 
they are not able to attend the monthly meeting. 
 
Chaffee, Kempen and Done attended the Planning Commission meeting on 9/23/08.  
The Planning Commission welcomes this Committee’s input regarding mobility issues 
for trails and pathways, lighting, etc.  Done, Hammond and Chaffee will attend the 
10/28/08 meeting of the Planning Commission. 
 
The Woodside Bible Church will be hosting Pathways on 11/28/08 from 8:00 a.m. to 
11:45 a.m.  This is a conference focused on housing and rights for the disabled.  
Buchanan will reserve a table to display our brochures. 
 
Chaffee will contact Cindy Stewart regarding creating a web page for this Committee to 
post minutes and links to upcoming events. 
 
Done reported that the term for Chairperson will end in November and requested that 
nominations be given at the November meeting. 
 
ITEM VIII – REPORTS 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Chaffee made a motion that Council remove Sean Murphy from this Committee;  
Hammond supported; all in favor. 
 
Stewart donated a service directory for persons with disabilities to be shared with this 
Committee. 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Meeting adjourned at 9:07 p.m. 
 
 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                                   Angela Done 
                Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
            Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                                                   
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
OCTOBER 1, 2008 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, October 1, 2008, in the lower level Conference Room at City Hall.  
Done called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.                                        
 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member M. Chaffee, member  
   D. Chong, student  A. Done, member  
   P. Hammond, member E. Kempen, member  
   L. Patton, member  J. Stewart, alternate 
   A. Vasudevan, student    
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff    
 
Absent: K. Clark, member   
   B. Harrell, member   
   P. Lin, member 
   K. Mayer, alternate   
   S. Murphy, alternate      
 
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF SEPTEM BER 3, 2008 
Buchanan made a motion to approve the minutes of September 3, 2008; supported by 
Kempen; all voted in favor.  
 
ITEM IV – PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
ITEM V - SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
Cathy Russ, Library Director, attended and provided a handout with information on 
collections, equipment and services available at the Troy Public Library.  Cathy and 
Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager, are members of the Troy Historical Commission.  
They have invited a member of the ACPD to act as a liaison of these two committees. 
 
Lori Bluhm, City Attorney, was in attendance and distributed a Reference Book with 
information regarding the Open Meetings Act, Disability Rights Law, etc.  This will be 
distributed to new members of this Committee also.  Lori also clarified that the 
committee does not need to excuse or unexcuse absent members. 
 
ITEM VI – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Done, Hammond and Vasudevan will be handling the display case at the Troy Public 
Library for October which is Disabilities Awareness Month.  Done will contact Susan 
Werpetinski, previous member of this Committee, for assistance. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
OCTOBER 1, 2008 

 2

ITEM VII – NEW BUSINESS  
Committee members are requested to contact Grusnick, Done or another member if 
they are not able to attend the monthly meeting. 
 
Chaffee, Kempen and Done attended the Planning Commission meeting on 9/23/08.  
The Planning Commission welcomes this Committee’s input regarding mobility issues 
for trails and pathways, lighting, etc.  Done, Hammond and Chaffee will attend the 
10/28/08 meeting of the Planning Commission. 
 
The Woodside Bible Church will be hosting Pathways on 11/28/08 from 8:00 a.m. to 
11:45 a.m.  This is a conference focused on housing and rights for the disabled.  
Buchanan will reserve a table to display our brochures. 
 
Chaffee will contact Cindy Stewart regarding creating a web page for this Committee to 
post minutes and links to upcoming events. 
 
Done reported that the term for Chairperson will end in November and requested that 
nominations be given at the November meeting. 
 
ITEM VIII – REPORTS 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Chaffee made a motion that Council remove Sean Murphy from this Committee;  
Hammond supported; all in favor. 
 
Stewart donated a service directory for persons with disabilities to be shared with this 
Committee. 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Meeting adjourned at 9:07 p.m. 
 
 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                                   Angela Done 
                Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
            Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                                                   
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          NOVEMBER 5, 2008 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, November 5, 2008 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    Rick Kessler 
    Bill Nelson 
    Tim Richnak 
    Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Paul Evans, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor   
    Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF OCTOBER 1, 2008 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of October 1, 2008 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  RALPH GARABEDIAN, 2644-2648 
LOVINGTON, for relief of the dwelling unit separation wall in the attic of a two family 
dwelling required by Section 317.1 of the Michigan Residential Code.  The petitioner is 
the owner of a two-family dwelling originally constructed in 1969.  Recently the home 
was inspected as part of a property maintenance issues at the property.  It was 
discovered that the fire resistance rated wall separating the two dwelling units did not 
extend through the attic of the units.  Section 317.1 of the Michigan Residential Code 
requires that this wall extend to the underside of the roof sheathing.  Upon being cited 
for this deficiency, the petitioner filled application for appeal of this item. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of October 1, 2008 and was 
postponed to allow Building Department Staff to contact Mr. Garabedian regarding his 
intentions on this property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that Mr. Garabedian installed the required separation wall at the 
same time he replaced the roof.  The Building Department inspected the property and it 
is in compliance.  The petitioner has not officially withdrawn his request, and Mr. Stimac 
stated that because this request still appears on the Agenda, the Board has to take 
action on it. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          NOVEMBER 5, 2008 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Ralph Garabedian, 2644-2648 Lovington, for relief of 
the dwelling unit separation wall in the attic of a two family dwelling required by Section 
317.1 of the Michigan Residential Code. 
 

• Petitioner has installed the required separation wall therefore there is no 
justification for the variance. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DALE B. SCHMIDT, 6768 MERRICK DR., for 
relief of Chapter 83 to install a 48” high aluminum fence. 
 
The petitioner was not present and this Item was moved to the end of the Agenda, Item 
#6, to allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  STANLEY FRANKEL, REPRESENTING 
SOMERSET PLACE LLC, 2301 W. BIG BEAVER, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 2nd 
wall sign, 177 square feet in area on an existing building. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Sign Ordinance to 
erect a 2nd wall sign, 177 square feet in area.  Chapter 85.02.05 (C) (3) allows one wall 
sign for each building not to exceed 10% of the area of the front of the structure to a 
maximum size of 200 square feet in area in the office zoned districts.  Currently there is 
an existing wall sign on the building measuring 134 square feet in area. 
 
Mark Greenstone was present representing Stanley Frankel, Jim Dunn Counsel for 
North Private Bank, and Larry Lavanway of Levanway signs were also present. 
 
Mr. Kessler informed the petitioner that this Board can grant a variance if the petitioner 
were to prove a hardship. 
 
Mr. Dunn stated that this building does not have a monument sign and there is a great 
deal of mature foliage in front of the building.  Recently they held a Board of Directors 
meeting, and one of the Board members had difficulty finding this location.  Clients 
approaching the bank will have difficulty trying to find the location.  This office has 
moved from Bloomfield to Troy and the plans are for this to become their corporate 
office. They are hoping to expand and lease another floor in this building.  Mr. Dunn 
also stated that they do not have plans to erect a monument sign.  The proposed sign 
will be offset and will be very similar to the existing sign. This proposed sign will balance 
the building and would be aesthetically pleasing. There is a need to make their 
presence known as there are a large number of existing banks located along Big 
Beaver. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          NOVEMBER 5, 2008 

3 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked how much space was leased by North Private and how much 
space by UBS. 
 
Mr. Greenstone stated that North Private has 16,000 square feet of space and UBS has 
24,000 square feet.  Mr. Greenstone also stated that the proposed sign will be 6/10 of 
1% of the square footage of the north elevation of the building. 
 
Mr. Zuazo stated that he believes the proposed sign looks like a camouflage color and 
asked if a contrasting color may work better. 
 
Mr. Greenstone stated that the sign is on glass panels and the UBS sign is also in white 
and seems to show up very well against the blue glass. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if a monument sign could be erected. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that this property was originally established as part of a consent 
judgment, and believes ground signs were addressed in that document.   
 
Mr. Richnak stated that the petitioner indicated that they would not request a ground 
sign in the future and Mr. Greenstone confirmed that was correct. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
A discussion began regarding the possible verbiage of the consent judgment and how it 
would relate to a ground sign. 
 
Mr. Greenstone stated that the petitioner is willing to commit to not requesting a 
monument sign in the future. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Stanley Frankel, representing Somerset Place LLC, 2301 W. Big 
Beaver, relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 2nd wall sign, 177 square feet in area on an 
existing building. 
 

• The property owner would be restricted from applying for an additional ground 
sign. 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• The sign area will result in a small percentage of the overall building elevation. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          NOVEMBER 5, 2008 

4 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  BEAUMONT SERVICES, 44201 DEQUINDRE, 
for relief of Chapter 85 to erect nine (9) 24” x 60” banners on light poles. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to erect nine 
(9) 24” x 60” banners on light poles around the property at Beaumont Hospital.  Chapter 
85.02.05 (C) (2) allows a maximum of two signs for this development.  Currently this site 
has more than two signs as based upon previous variances granted by the Building 
Code Board of Appeals. 
 
Mr. John Rogers of Beaumont Services was present.  Mr. Rogers explained that they 
are asking for these banners due to the construction that is ongoing at this property.  
Mr. Rogers stated that they feel that patients and visitors are over whelmed because of 
the construction and they are trying to show patients that patient care is the most 
important factor.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the petitioner would have to come back before this Board if the 
variance was only granted for a certain time frame. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that a variance very similar to this one was granted for a period of 
time as those banners were announcing a special event.  This Board does have the 
option of making this a permanent variance so that the petitioner would not have to 
come before the Board again. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the petitioner was looking for a specific time period. 
 
Mr. Rogers said that these banners are made of a material that would need to be 
replaced within eighteen months and furthermore thinks that the construction will last 
between one and two years from now. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the petitioner was planning to put up different banners in the 
future. 
 
Mr. Rogers said that he did not believe so but could not say with 100% certainty.  If 
another variance was required, Mr. Rogers said that he would be more than willing to 
come back before this Board. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if these banners would be replaced with banners that were the same 
size. 
 
Mr. Rogers said that was correct. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          NOVEMBER 5, 2008 

5 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Stimac cautioned the Board as the Sign Ordinance does not address the copy on a 
sign.  Officially this Board cannot approve the message that is on a sign. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that he would be concerned if there was advertising on the sign. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he believes these banners would be good for this campus as 
the construction creates a hardship and the campus is being expanded. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked what would happen if someone put up a banner and then incorporated 
advertising into it. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the Sign Ordinance is silent with regards to content.  A 200 
square foot sign at an office building can include advertisement.   
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Beaumont Services, 44201 Dequindre relief of Chapter 85 to erect 
nine (9) 24” x 60” banners on light poles. 
 

• Banners may be in place for a period of eighteen (18) months. 
• 18 month time frame is due to the temporary nature of the material of the 

banners. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE FOR A PERIOD OF EIGHTEEN (18) MONTHS 
CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 (ITEM #3) – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DALE B. SCHMIDT, 6768 MERRICK 
DR., for relief of Chapter 83 to install a 48” high aluminum fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to install a 
48” high fence.  This property is a double front corner lot.  It has a 40’ minimum front 
yard setback along both Merrick and Kimberly.  Chapter 83 limits the height of fences in 
front setbacks to a maximum height of 30”.  The site plan submitted indicates this 4’ 
high fence setback 30’ from the property line along Kimberly.  
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          NOVEMBER 5, 2008 

6 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of October 1, 2008 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner to re-submit a more detailed site plan; and, also to 
allow the petitioner the opportunity to stake out the property showing both the proposed 
location of the fence, and the location of the fence that would comply with the 
Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Schmidt provided Board members with nineteen (19) pictures of this property, 
indicating where he would like to put the fence and also showing where the fence would 
be placed in order to comply with the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what was behind the evergreen trees. 
 
Mr. Schmidt stated that his air conditioning unit was in this location and asked what the 
proper distance was from the house to the air conditioning unit. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the distance is addressed in the manufacturer’s installation 
instructions. 
 
A discussion began between Board members and Mr. Schmidt regarding the pictures 
he provided.  Mr. Schmidt believes he originally asked for 9’ or 10’ from the pavers. 
 
Mr. Kessler suggested cutting the pavers back to make them the same size as a 
standard walkway, which would be both functional as well as aesthetically pleasing. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that some of the shrubs in the air conditioning area may need to be 
removed and the pavers moved back into that area.  Because the shrubs are so close 
to the air conditioner there may not be enough air flow around the unit to allow it to 
operate efficiently.  If the shrubs were moved, the walkway could be moved and the 
variance request would not be as large. 
 
Mr. Schmidt did not think that the type of fencing he wants to put in would screen the air 
conditioner from people going by the area. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he could put shrubs on the outside of the fence that would help 
to screen the air conditioner. 
 
Mr. Schmidt asked for an explanation regarding fences and corner lots. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that because Mr. Schmidt’s house is on a corner it shares a front 
yard with the neighbor behind him.  Mr. Stimac also stated that Mr. Schmidt could put 
up a 30” high picket fence along his property line and that would comply with the 
Ordinance. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          NOVEMBER 5, 2008 

7 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that this is a newer upscale neighborhood of Troy and believes that 
screening of the air conditioner unit would be important to neighbors.  Mr. Kessler also  
stated that he would like to grant a minimum variance to this property.  A 4’ wide 
walkway is more than sufficient and he would like the petitioner to supply the Building 
Department with the exact measurement from the edge of the walkway to the house. 
 
Mr. Dziurman reminded Board members that there are two (2) written approvals in file 
and there are four (4) written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to grant Dale Schmidt, 6768 Merrick Dr. relief of Chapter 83 to install a 48” 
high aluminum fence. 
 

• Modify location of fence such that it is not located farther south than the existing 
pavers around the air conditioning unit. 

• Petitioner is encouraged to put landscaping along the outside of the fence. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that he will go out to this site and determine how far the fence will be 
from the house. 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:28 A.M. 
 
 
             
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
             
       Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 11, 2008 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on November 11, 2008, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica Mark J. Vleck 
Robert Schultz Wayne Wright 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 

Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zak Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates 
Bradley Raine, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Chair Schultz announced the petitioner for Agenda items #7 and #8 requested to 
postpone both items to the next regularly scheduled meeting.  Chair Schultz pointed 
out that five (5) affirmative votes would be required for any approval or 
recommendation to City Council. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-11-127 
Moved by:  Sanzica 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 

RESOLVED, To remove Agenda items #7 and #8. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck, Wright 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz said residents would receive notification by mail when the items are 
scheduled on a future agenda. 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-11-128 
Moved by:  Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 11, 2008 
  

 
 

2 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck, Wright 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
3. MINUTES – October 28, 2008 Special/Study Meeting 

 
Mr. Forsyth indicated he was not in attendance and asked that the minutes reflect 
that Lori Grigg Bluhm was present.   
 
Resolution # PC-2008-11-129 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the October 28, 2008 Special/Study 
Meeting as amended. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck, Wright 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 732) – Proposed Office 

Building, South side of Wattles Road, East of Rochester Road (1100 and 1120 
Wattles Road), Section 23, From R-1C (One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise 
Office) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
rezoning request.  He addressed the newly adopted Master Plan as relates to 
neighborhood nodes, and briefly explained the charge of the Planning Commission 
in its interpretation of the neighborhood node in relation to the proposed rezoning 
request.  Mr. Miller apologized that the sketches of a potential office development, 
provided by the applicant, were not included in the meeting packet, but indicated 
they were distributed to members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting. 
 
It is the recommendation of City Management that if the Planning Commission 
determines that the subject parcel lies within the neighborhood node, the applicant 
consider submitting a conditional rezoning application that could potentially serve as 
an appropriate transition between residential and non-residential uses. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 11, 2008 
  

 
 

3 
 

Mr. Forsyth emphasized the sketch of the potential office development would not 
play a part in deliberation of the rezoning request. 
 
The petitioner, Salvatore DiMercurio of Brentwood Land Development, 48705 
Hayes Road, Shelby Township, was present.  Stefano Mularoni was also present.  
Mr. DiMercurio briefly addressed the proposed site, of which a conceptual drawing 
was displayed.  He indicated his willingness to commit to a conditional rezoning. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
A brief discussion followed relating to the interpretation of the neighborhood node, 
the proximity of the proposed rezoning to residential, and the application process for 
conditional rezoning. 
 
Mr. Miller suggested postponement of the traditional rezoning request if it is the 
intent of the Planning Commission to offer the petitioner the opportunity to go 
forward with a conditional rezoning application. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-11-130 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the rezoning request to deal with a conditional rezoning. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Chair Schultz addressed concerns with a conditional rezoning. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 

Yes: Sanzica, Strat, Tagle 
No: Hutson, Schultz, Ullmann 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck, Wright 
 

MOTION FAILED 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-11-131 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Ullmann 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the R-1C to O-1 rezoning request, located on the south side of Wattles, east of 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 11, 2008 
  

 
 

4 
 

Rochester Road, within Section 23, being approximately 2.39 acres in size, be 
denied, for the following reason:  
 

1. The request is incompatible with existing zoning and in conflict with the Master 
Plan’s conceptual idea of an economic node at this location. 

 

Yes: Hutson, Schultz Ullmann 
No: Sanzica, Strat, Tagle 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck, Wright 
 

MOTION FAILED 
 
Mr. Forsyth clarified that a recommendation to deny the proposed rezoning request 
would go forward to City Council. 
 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 733) – Proposed Maple 
Business Center, North side of Maple Road, East of Castleton (2795 E. Maple 
Road), Section 25, From R-1E (One Family Residential) to B-1 (Local Business) 
District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
rezoning request.  He addressed the newly adopted Master Plan as relates to 
neighborhood nodes and the proposed rezoning.  It is the recommendation of City 
Management to deny the rezoning request for reasons as specified in the Planning 
Department report.  Mr. Miller said City Management would support a conditional 
rezoning application if the applicant were to acquire the parcel to the west and 
combine it with the subject parcel. 
 
There was a brief discussion on the conditional rezoning application process. 
 
Arthur Kalajian, petitioner and project architect, 1871 Austin Drive, Troy, was 
present.  Visual boards of the potential development were displayed. 
 
Terrey Barash, property owner, 2795 E. Maple Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. 
Barash expressed his desire to expand his valet parking business and make site 
improvements. 
 
Mr. Kalajian addressed the potential development as relates to the transition to 
residential, proposed site improvements and the property across the street.  He 
indicated the adjacent property owner is not interested in selling his property.   
 
Brother of Terrey Barash [did not sign in] addressed the conditions of the site and 
encouraged going forward with the site improvements. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 11, 2008 
  

 
 

5 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Robert Henkle of 1642 Castleton, Troy, was present.  He spoke in opposition of the 
proposed rezoning request. 
 
Randolph Grieser of 2775 E. Maple, Troy, was present.  He spoke in opposition of 
the proposed rezoning request as submitted. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was a brief discussion in which several members expressed opposition to the 
proposed rezoning because of its proximity to residential. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-11-132 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Ullmann 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1E to B-1 rezoning request, located on the north side of Maple 
Road, east of Castleton, within Section 25, being approximately 0.84 acres in size, 
be denied, for the following reasons: 
 

1. The rezoning is incompatible with single family uses and zoning districts to 
the north. 

2. Developing this parcel in a way that is consistent with the standards of 
Neighborhood Node B in the City of Troy Master Plan would be difficult due 
to its small size and narrow width. 

3. Rezoning this small, narrow parcel promotes poor access management. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 

9. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Adams Road Site Condominium 
(Renewal), 5 units/lots proposed, East side of Adams, South of South Blvd., Section 
6, Zoned R-1A (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site condominium development, and reported it is the recommendation of 
City Management to approve the site condominium application as submitted. 
 
There was a brief discussion as relates to revisions to the site plan, wetland 
delineations and MDEQ (Michigan Department of Environmental Quality) approval. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 11, 2008 
  

 
 

6 
 

The petitioner, David Donnellon of Choice Group, 755 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, was 
present.  Mr. Donnellon addressed the proposed storm water management. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
John Quasarano of 2862 Lake Charnwood, Troy, was present.  He requested to view 
the site plan, of which a complete set was provided to him.   
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-11-133 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council that the 
Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.70.00 One-Family Cluster Option), as requested 
for Adams Road Site Condominium, including 5 units, located on the east side of 
Adams, south of South Boulevard, Section 6, within the R-1A zoning district, be 
granted. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck, Wright 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

10. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 883-C) – Proposed Addition and Parking Lot Expansion 
and Consent Judgment Amendment, Heartland Health Care Skilled Nursing Facility 
(925 South Blvd.), South side of South Blvd., East of Livernois, Section 3, Zoned R-
1B (One Family Residential) and O-1 (Low Rise Office) Districts (controlled by 
Consent Judgment) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted.  Mr. Savidant addressed the placement of 
speed humps along the south parking thoroughfare lanes of the Heartland Health 
property as a deterrent to cut-through traffic. 
 
Peter DeLoof, attorney, 301 N. Main Street, Ann Arbor, was present to represent 
the petitioner.  Also present were Brion Harrigan of HCR ManorCare and George 
Ostrowski of Nowak & Fraus.  A colored rendering was displayed.  Mr. DeLoof 
addressed conversations with the neighboring property owners and homeowners 
association.  He indicated groundbreaking is projected for early spring.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 11, 2008 
  

 
 

7 
 

Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Jill Duggan of 4702 Rivers Edge, Troy, was present.  Ms. Duggan spoke unfavorably 
of the existing parking situation. 
 
David Merrill of 6908 Livernois, Troy, was present.  Mr. Merrill expressed his concern 
with cut-through traffic, and spoke favorably of the petitioner working with this concern. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-11-134 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council that 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to a proposed Amendment to Consent 
Judgment, for a revised site plan, located at the southeast corner of South 
Boulevard and Livernois Road, being 5.48 acres in size, within Section 3, within the 
R-1B and O-1 zoning districts, be approved. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck, Wright 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN RENEWAL 
 

11. SITE PLAN RENEWAL (SP 944) – Existing Office/Research Building, Proposed 
Parking Lot Expansion, East side of Stephenson Hwy (466 Stephenson Hwy), North 
of Fourteen Mile Road, Section 35 – R-C (Research Center) and O-M (Office Mid-
Rise) Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan renewal, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the site plan as submitted. 
 
Rob Krochmal, 7115 Orchard Lake Road, West Bloomfield, was present to 
represent the petitioner.   
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 11, 2008 
  

 
 

8 
 

Resolution # PC-2008-11-135 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Parking Lot Expansion at 466 Stephenson 
Highway, located on the east side of Stephenson Highway, north of 14 Mile Road, 
located in Section 35, on approximately 3.38 acres in area, within the R-C and O-M 
zoning districts, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 

12. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 10) – Proposed Big Beaver and Kilmer 
Planned Unit Development, Northeast Corner of Big Beaver and Kilmer, Section 22, 
Currently Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) and R-1E (One Family Residential) Districts 
 
Zak Branigan of Carlisle Wortman Associates reported on the recent revisions of 
the proposed PUD development.  It is their recommendation that the Planning 
Commission recommends to the City Council that the proposed PUD Concept 
Development Plan be approved, conditioned on the applicant agreeing to include 
provisions in the development agreement to prohibit public traffic to the flex spaces 
within the residential units and the optional spaces attached to units 11 and 12, a 
limitation on deliveries, or other measures meant to preempt potential parking and 
circulation concerns.   
 
The petitioner, Ryan Marsh of Landus Development, 32121 Woodward Avenue, 
Royal Oak, was present.  Mr. Marsh addressed the neighborhood support, executed 
lease and viability of the project.  He asked the Commission’s support and 
recommendation of the proposed Concept Development Plan. 
 
There was brief discussion relating to deceleration lane, traffic management, storm 
water management and landscaping.   
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 11, 2008 
  

 
 

9 
 

Resolution # PC-2008-11-136 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission reviewed a Concept Development Plan for a 
Planned Unit Development, pursuant to Article 35.50.01, as requested by Landus 
Development for the BBK Mixed-Use Development Planned Unit Development (PUD 
10), located on the northeast corner of Big Beaver and Kilmer, located in Section 22, 
within the O-1 and R-1E zoning districts, being approximately 2.546 acres in size; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City’s Planning Consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc. prepared a memorandum dated November 6, 2008 that 
recommends Concept Development Plan approval of BBK Mixed-Use Development 
Planned Unit Development; and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval set forth in 
Article 35.30.00; and   
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City 
Council that Concept Development Plan Approval for BBK Mixed-Use Development 
Planned Unit Development be granted.  
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

13. APPROVAL OF 2009 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING SCHEDULE 
 
Mr. Miller briefly presented the proposed 2009 Planning Commission meeting 
schedule.   
 
A brief discussion followed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-11-137 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Planning Commission hereby establishes the 
following schedule for their meetings during the calendar year 2009: 
 

1. Regular Meetings will be held on the second Tuesday of each month, with the 
exception of September 8th. 
 





PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 25, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on November 25, 2008 in the Council Board Room of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson  Philip Sanzica 
Mark Maxwell Wayne Wright 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Mark J. Vleck 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zak Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-11-138 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted. 
 
Yes:  All present (7) 
Absent:  Sanzica, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2008-11-139 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the November 11, 2008 Regular meeting, 
as presented. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Ullmann, Vleck 
Abstain: Maxwell 
Absent: Sanzica, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 25, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one who wished to speak. 

 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Strat presented the BZA Report.  General discussion followed.  
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller announced there was no DDA meeting in November. 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller announced that three items received approval by City Council at the 
November 24, 2008 Regular meeting: 

 McDonald’s Restaurant with drive thru (Consent Judgment), located at 
northwest corner of Rochester and Big Beaver. 

 Heartland Health Care Nursing Home and Rehabilitation Facility (Consent 
Judgment), located at the southeast corner of South Boulevard and 
Livernois. 

 Temporary Merchant Business Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Miller announced upcoming items for the December 1, 2008 and December 15, 
2008 City Council Regular meetings. 

 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 
8. ZONING ORDINANCE COMPREHENSIVE REWRITE ZOTA 234 – KICK OFF 

MEETING 
 
Mr. Miller introduced the item. 
 
Zak Branigan of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. summarized the Approach and 
Work Plan from their proposal to rewrite the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 

    
 

Chairman Schultz called a break at 8:55 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:00 p.m. 
 

    



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 25, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

9. MASTER PLAN AND INTERPRETATION CONSISTENCY OF REZONING 
REQUESTS 
 
Mr. Miller led an informal discussion involving the challenges associated with 
considering rezoning applications involving property situated in or near “economic 
nodes” classified in the Master Plan. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 

10. BIRMINGHAM/TROY MULTI-MODAL TRANSIT CENTER JOINT PLANNING / 
ZONING UPDATE 
 
Mr. Miller provided an update on the Transit Center project. 
 
The Planning Commission discussed joint planning efforts and the upcoming joint 
meeting on December 2, 2008. 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one who wished to speak. 

 
 

12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10.45 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2008 PC Minutes\Draft\11-25-08 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 

 



 

 
 
November 24, 2008  
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
    Wendell Moore, Research & Technology Administrator 
 
SUBJECT:   2008 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Each quarter the police department publishes a year-to-date report comparing current year calls 

for service, criminal offenses, clearance rates, traffic crashes and citations issued, to the same 
time period of the previous year.   

 The report’s format complies with the National Incident Based Reporting System.  All offenses 
within an incident are reported.   

 Group A Crime decreased 1.0% (26 incidents) from the 2007 level.  Within the group, the 
following categories show significant variations: 
 Breaking and Entering: Up 17.5% (36 incidents) 
 Destruction/Damage to Property/Vandalism: Down 12.5% (37 incidents)  
 Robbery: Down 30.8% (4 incidents) 
 Motor Vehicle Theft: Up 14.8% (16 incidents) 
 Assault Offenses: Down 7.3% (34 incidents) 
 Drug/Narcotics Offenses: Down 12.4% (21 incidents) 

 Group B Crime decreased 31.2% (372 incidents).  Significant changes occurred in the following:  
 Disorderly Conduct:  Down 56.2% (100 incidents) 
 Drunk Driving: Decreased 20.7% (72 incidents) 
 Reports of Runaway Children:  Increased 200.0% (10 incidents) 

 Total incidents of crime (Group A & B combined) decreased by 10.6% (398 incidents).   

 Clearance rates (the percentage of offenses for which a perpetrator has been prosecuted, or 
positively identified but not prosecuted) continue to be high, 29.8% for Group A Crime, and 81.8% 
for Group B Crime.  In total, 44.0% of all reported crime has been cleared.   

 Arrests have decreased 2.3% (20 arrests) for Group A crime, and 28.3% (284 arrests) for Group 
B crime.  Overall, arrests decreased by 16.1% (304 arrests).   

 Group C (non-criminal) calls for police service decreased by 5.1% (1,372 incidents).   

 Year-to-date reported traffic crashes and traffic citations issued totals are as follows: 
 Property Damage crashes decreased 3.8% (73 crashes). 
 Injury crashes are down 9.4% (41 crashes). 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



 2 

 Fatal crashes increased by two (5 crashes in 2008, 3 crashes in 2007). 
 Hazardous traffic citations issued are down 8.7% (652 citations). 
 Non-hazardous traffic citations issued are down 8.5% (53 citations) 
 License/title/registration citations decreased 9.1% (165 citations) 
 Parking citations decreased 47.1% (294 citations) 

 Overall, all calls for police are down 5.6% (1,720 calls for service) 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 None 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 None  
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Troy has enhanced the safety and health of the community.   



Troy Police Department

January through September 2008/2007 Comparison
INCIDENTS OFFENSES ARRESTS CLEARANCES

Percent Percent Percent

Group A Crime Categories 2008 2007 Change 2008 2007 Change 2008 2007 Change 2008 Percent

Arson 5 3 66.7% 6 3 100.0% 0 1         - 0 0.0%

Assault Offenses 429 463 -7.3% 444 470 -5.5% 104 129 -19.4% 107 24.1%

Bribery 1 0         + 2 0         + 0 0        NC 1 50.0%

Breaking and Entering 242 206 17.5% 243 209 16.3% 19 29 -34.5% 17 7.0%

Counterfeiting/Forgery 36 21 71.4% 36 22 63.6% 8 3 166.7% 2 5.6%

Destruction/Damage/Vandalism 260 297 -12.5% 276 316 -12.7% 15 3 400.0% 15 5.4%

Drug/Narcotic Offenses 148 169 -12.4% 234 237 -1.3% 170 187 -9.1% 218 93.2%

Embezzlement 58 53 9.4% 60 57 5.3% 49 33 48.5% 26 43.3%

Extortion/Blackmail 1 1        NC 2 1 100.0% 0 0        NC 1 50.0%

Fraud Offenses 156 149 4.7% 166 157 5.7% 40 25 60.0% 32 19.3%

Gambling Offenses 0 1         - 0 2         - 2 0         + 0 0.0%

Homicide Offenses 1 2 -50.0% 2 2        NC 2 2        NC 2 100.0%

Kidnapping/Abduction 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Larceny/Theft Offenses 1,033 1,042 -0.9% 1,063 1,075 -1.1% 411 434 -5.3% 347 32.6%

Motor Vehicle Theft 124 108 14.8% 126 117 7.7% 7 7        NC 5 4.0%

Pornography/Obscene Material 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Prostitution Offenses 4 0         + 4 0         + 5 0         + 4 100.0%

Robbery 9 13 -30.8% 9 13 -30.8% 2 7 -71.4% 1 11.1%

Sex Offenses, Forcible 27 28 -3.6% 27 28 -3.6% 7 4 75.0% 8 29.6%

Sex Offenses, Nonforcible 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Stolen Property Offenses 9 8 12.5% 17 17        NC 13 10 30.0% 16 94.1%

Weapon Law Violations 6 11 -45.5% 12 12        NC 6 6        NC 11 91.7%

Group A Total 2,549 2,575 -1.0% 2,729 2,738 -0.3% 860 880 -2.3% 813 29.8%

Group B Crime Categories

Bad Checks 31 36 -13.9% 33 38 -13.2% 18 7 157.1% 14 42.4%

Curfew/Loitering/Vagrancy 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Disorderly Conduct 78 178 -56.2% 87 191 -54.5% 25 19 31.6% 30 34.5%

Driving Under the Influence 275 347 -20.7% 328 412 -20.4% 283 321 -11.8% 323 98.5%

Drunkenness 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Family Offenses, Nonviolent 18 13 38.5% 18 15 20.0% 0 1         - 1 5.6%

Liquor Law Violations 56 71 -21.1% 102 144 -29.2% 92 163 -43.6% 95 93.1%

Peeping Tom 1 2 -50.0% 1 2 -50.0% 1 0         + 1 100.0%

Runaway (Under 18) 15 5 200.0% 15 5 200.0% 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Trespass of Real Property 12 9 33.3% 17 11 54.5% 10 3 233.3% 12 70.6%

All Other 336 533 -37.0% 425 604 -29.6% 290 489 -40.7% 363 85.4%

Group B Total 822 1,194 -31.2% 1,026 1,422 -27.8% 719 1,003 -28.3% 839 81.8%

Group A and B Total 3,371 3,769 -10.6% 3,755 4,160 -9.7% 1,579 1,883 -16.1% 1,652 44.0%

Above data includes both completed and attempted offenses.

Y-T-DY-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D



Troy Police Department
January through September 2008/2007 Comparison

INCIDENTS OFFENSES ARRESTS CLEARANCES

Percent Percent Percent

Description 2008 2007 Change 2008 2007 Change 2008 2007 Change 2008 Percent

Alarms 2,699 2,744 -1.6% 2,699 2,744 -1.6% NA NA NA NA NA

All Other 22,878 24,205 -5.5% 23,142 24,582 -5.9% 365 461 -20.8% NA NA

Group C Miscellaneous Total 25,577 26,949 -5.1% 25,841 27,326 -5.4% 365 461 -20.8% NA NA

Group E Fire Total 131 81 61.7% 131 81 61.7% NA NA NA NA NA

Grand Totals 29,079 30,799 -5.6% 29,727 31,567 -5.8% 1,944 2,344 -17.1% 1,652 44.0%

Traffic Crashes and Citations

Reportable Traffic Crashes 2008 Alcohol Involved Crashes

Personal Injury 394 435 -9.4% 15 Incidents--3.8% involved alcohol.

Property Damage 1,825 1,898 -3.8% 21 Incidents--1.2% involved alcohol.

Fatal 5 3 66.7% 0 Incidents--0.0% involved alcohol.

Total Reportable 2,224 2,336 -4.8% 36 Incidents--1.6% of all reportable crashes involved alcohol.

Private Property Crashes 704 739 -4.7%

Crashes Grand Total 2,928 3,075 -4.8%

Traffic Citations

Hazardous 6,838 7,490 -8.7%

Non-hazardous 574 627 -8.5%

License, Title, Registration 1,644 1,809 -9.1%

Parking 330 624 -47.1%

Traffic Citations Total 9,386 10,550 -11.0%

Y-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D



DATE:            December 2, 2008
TO:                 Phil Nelson, City Manager
FROM:           Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:      Permits issued during the Month of November 2008

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 3 $54,600.00 $745.00
Repair 2 $97,000.00 $1,200.00
Fire Repair 1 $3,195.00 $95.00

Sub Total 6 $154,795.00 $2,040.00

COMMERCIAL
Shell New 1 $211,000.00 $2,225.00
Fnd./Shell New 1 $347,676.00 $3,595.00
Add/Alter 19 $1,462,583.00 $16,395.00
Kiosk 2 $0.00 $70.00

Sub Total 23 $2,021,259.00 $22,285.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 5 $871,343.00 $9,305.00
Add/Alter 25 $500,715.00 $7,120.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 2 $18,200.00 $330.00
Repair 2 $42,633.00 $570.00

Sub Total 34 $1,432,891.00 $17,325.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
Add/Alter 2 $1,510.00 $660.00
Repair 1 $5,000.00 $115.00

Sub Total 3 $6,510.00 $775.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Completion 1 $31,955,319.00 $161,925.00

Sub Total 1 $31,955,319.00 $161,925.00

RELIGIOUS
Repair 1 $4,000.00 $95.00

Sub Total 1 $4,000.00 $95.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 1 $0.00 $36.00
Signs 34 $0.00 $3,705.00
Fences 6 $0.00 $110.00

Sub Total 41 $0.00 $3,851.00

TOTAL 109 $35,574,774.00 $208,296.00
PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2008

NO. PERMIT FEE
Mul. Dwel. Insp. 326 $3,260.00
Cert. of Occupancy 28 $9,690.75
Plan Review 58 $18,134.49
Microfilm 29 $576.00
Building Permits 109 $208,296.00
Electrical Permits 124 $6,630.00
Heating Permits 92 $6,650.00
Air Cond. Permits 26 $1,615.00
Plumbing Permits 57 $2,606.00
Storm Sewer Permits 11 $672.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 8 $304.00
Sewer Taps 11 $11,426.00

TOTAL 879 $269,860.24

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2008
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 34 $170.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 14 $210.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 9 $45.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 4 $40.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 2 $30.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 14 $140.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 1 $15.00

TOTAL 78 $650.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2007 2007 2008 2008
JANUARY 119 $7,595,008.00 71 $4,678,432.00

FEBRUARY 101 $8,056,092.00 81 $5,464,681.00
MARCH 135 $9,204,932.00 107 $3,480,525.00

APRIL 140 $4,844,929.00 141 $10,518,298.00

MAY 170 $11,201,261.00 161 $4,357,036.00

JUNE 183 $6,057,272.00 161 $8,178,329.00

JULY 134 $5,755,737.00 160 $10,497,107.00

AUGUST 149 $10,867,085.00 122 $15,981,779.00

SEPTEMBER 151 $15,498,043.00 134 $13,136,548.00

OCTOBER 194 $13,663,761.00 114 $3,760,152.00

NOVEMBER 136 $16,386,272.00 109 $35,574,774.00

DECEMBER 102 $4,572,214.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 1714 $113,702,606.00 1361 $115,627,661.00



2004 2004

9 7 7 5
20
30
40
50
60 SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2008

3 4 9 7 4 2 7 3 5
0

10

Ja
nu

ary
Fe

br
ua

ry
Ma

rch Ap
ril

Ma
y

Ju
ne Ju
ly

Au
gu

st
Se

pte
mb

er
Oc

tob
er

No
ve

mb
er

De
ce

mb
er

0 0



Dec 2, 2008 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2008Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter HORIZON RETAIL CONSTRUCTION INC 2800 W BIG BEAVER Q-111  134,233
Commercial, Add/Alter SYNERGY GROUP INC 755 W BIG BEAVER 1800  350,000
Commercial, Add/Alter NEMER PROPERTY GROUP 3155 W BIG BEAVER 125  162,500
Commercial, Add/Alter SYNERGY GROUP INC 755 W BIG BEAVER 1800  150,000
Commercial, Add/Alter OSPREY CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPME 2800 LIVERNOIS 450  279,650
Commercial, Add/Alter DESIGNSTRUCT 2037 W MAPLE  140,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  1,216,383

Commercial, Fnd/Shell New CAPITAL BUILDING COMPANY, LLC 3331 ROCHESTER 3339  347,676
Commercial, Fnd/Shell NewTotal  347,676

Commercial, Shell New SYNERGY GROUP INC 755 W BIG BEAVER 150  211,000
Commercial, Shell NewTotal  211,000

Inst./Hosp., Completion BEAUMONT SERVICES CO 44201 DEQUINDRE EM CTR  31,955,319
Inst./Hosp., CompletionTotal  31,955,319

Total Valuation:  33,730,378Records  10



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-03d



campbellld
Text Box
J-03e



Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting 
October 16, 2008 Final Minutes 

 
 

Present: Leonette Ciepielowski, Robin Beltramini, Robin Lilly, George Zielinski, Nancy Piotrowski, 
Bruce Baxter, Brian Goul, Wendy Underwood, Dale Zygnowicz, Paul Scobie. 
 
Call to order: Leonette called the meeting to order at 6:06 p.m. All rose for the Pledge of Allegiance.  
                         
Minutes:  Robin B. moved to approve the minutes of September 18, 2008. Nancy seconded; so 
moved.  
 
Treasurer’s Report: George Zielinski:  
 

• George presented September 2008 Treasurers Report. Wendy moved to approve report. 
Bruce seconded; so moved.  

• George followed up with the last New Beginnings recipient who will be attending OCC in 
January at which time the finale payout will take place.   

 
Communications:  

 
• Leonette accepted a check in the amount of $556.00 on behalf of TYA from City of Troy / 

Casual for a Cause at City Council meeting on Monday, October 6. 
 
Caseworker’s Report: 
             

 VOLUNTEER ORIENTATION-W are very excited about a number of prospective new TYA 
volunteers who will be attending orientation sessions on October 23, Leonette, Nancy and 
myself will be available for both morning and afternoon sit downs to familiarize these 
individuals with TYA and to learn more about their skills and interests. 

 YOUTH RECOGNITION-It is not too early to be thinking about our 2009 37th Annual Youth 
Recognition Event. Even though April 22 is a ways off, planning will begin in the coming 
weeks. Please speak with me if you have interest in serving on this committee as we hope to 
have an initial get together in November. 

 YOUTH ASSISTANCE COORDINATION COUNCIL BREAKFAST- The Oakland County Youth 
Assistance Coordinating Council will hold it yearly sponsor and volunteer appreciation event on 
Friday, November 14, 2008 at the Iroquois Club in Bloomfield Hills at 7:30 AM. Invites will go 
out in the coming days. 

 CASEWORK-During September, five new referrals cam into TYA-all from police sources. Our 
caseload as of September 30, 2008 stood at 43-26 boys and 17 girls 

 
Executive Committee Report: 
 

• The membership committee will be holding a volunteer training and Orientation on Thursday 
October, 23. 

 
Committee Reports: 
  
       A.   Camp/Skill Building: Brian Goul:  

• Just received request for fifth grade camp. Summer camp went well.  

campbellld
Text Box
J-05



B.   Family Education:  
• The September 30th presentation “Kids Who Want Everything And Think They Should 

Get It.” was a big success, feed back was good. 
• Dr. William Pollack is scheduled to appear Monday November 3, for parents and 

November 4 for professionals.  
 
 
       C. Fundraising- Vacant: 
 
       D. Mentors Plus-Bruce Baxter: 

• There is a lack of mentors. Were working on ideas to recruit new mentors. Nancy will 
check with Non-profit group to see if they can promote Mentors PLUS. 

E. Membership- Nancy Piotrowski 
 
       F. Publicity- Amy Johnson:  

• Leonette spoke with a woman from William Beaumont who has agreed to promote our 
Family Ed. Events. 

E. Youth Involvement-  
• It’s that time of year Leonette will check with school to see if they’d like to participate in 

candy collection.  
       H. Youth Recognition-Committee 

• Need to set date for committee; will check at next board meeting for any one to join. 
School Reports:  

• No report 
Old Business:  

• TYA Banner has been finalized and we should be receiving it soon. 
• Volunteer Recruitment discussed in Executive comments.  

New Business: 
• Coordination Council Volunteer and Sponsor Appreciation invitations should be arriving 

soon; it is set for November 14th.  
Community Information From Organization/Agencies Liaisons: 

• Robin B reports next big event will be to vote. Spoke about the Charter Amendment 
Petition. Veterans Day November 11, 11:00 a.m. a Memorial will be held.  

• Trick or Treat on the Village Green Saturday, October 25 from 1-3 pm, Troy Museum, 
Trick or Treat among the trees: Saturday, October 25, at various evening times, Troy 
Nature Center. 

• Brian reports that on Thursday, October 23 from 12:30-2 p.m., Happy Halloween Party 
at Troy Community Center, Boo Bash: Saturday, October 25, from 10 am- 12:45 pm, 
Spooky Evening Family Story Time: Thursday, October 30, 7 pm, Troy Library, Creepy 
Comedy Show: Saturday, October 25,  2 pm Troy Library. Halloween Afterglow: 
Saturday, November 1, 6:30-8:30 pm, Troy Community Center Indoor Pool. 

• Wendy Reports Negotiations are still going strong, she answered some question as 
best she could that some people had, also invited us to the Troy High Play being held 
October 16- 20.  

Adjourned:  7:05 p.m. 
Next meeting will be November 20, 2008 @ 6:00 p.m. 

     
 
Respectively submitted,  Robin Lilly, Secretary                                             



  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council   
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: December 9, 2008 
SUBJECT: Frank Lawrence v. City of Troy 

 

 

 

Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Andrews has dismissed the lawsuit filed 
by Frank Lawrence against the City of Troy.   In his attached opinion, Judge Andrews 
ruled that the City did not violate the Freedom of Information Act.  Frank Lawrence 
filed a Freedom of Information Act request, seeking information from the police 
department that was relevant to a civil infraction ticket issued to his brother, Thomas 
Lawrence.  The City denied the request, since it was perceived as a circumvention of 
the prohibition against discovery in civil infraction actions, as set forth in Michigan 
Court Rule 2.302 (A).  In addition, Mr. Lawrence’s Freedom of Information request 
sought several items that were exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of 
Information Act.   

Since the case was a Freedom of Information Act challenge, it was decided at 
a very early date after the filing, without the necessity of going through the discovery 
process.  Judge Andrews’ dismissal of the case is a final order, although it is always 
possible that Mr. Lawrence will appeal the decision or ask for reconsideration.  Upon 
information and belief, there is a pending case in the 52-4 district court, challenging 
the civil infraction tickets issued to Thomas Lawrence. This pending action may have 
some bearing on whether or not an appeal is taken.  A claim of appeal must be filed 
on or before December 22, 2008.   

We will update you if there is any subsequent activity in this matter.  In the 
meantime, please let us know if you have any questions.   

  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-06















 

  
 December 5, 2009                            
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:    Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
    Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Community Development Block Grant Information    
 
 
Background: 
 
 Oakland County will allow participating communities to spend a maximum of 45% of their annual CDBG 

allocation on public services. This action will ensure compliance with federal regulations. We are currently 
allocating 44.09% of the funds for public services and servicing 81 seniors. As listed on the attached 
information senior residents that are being served are disabled (33), between the age of 80 and 94 meeting 
income guidelines (25), other seniors age 62 and above with income below $14,700 (13) and other seniors 
age 62 and above with income between $14,701 - $18,000 (10). 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The budgeted amount includes funds for lawn service, snow removal, spring and fall yard clean up, gutter 

cleaning, tree trimming and tree removal. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the residents through CDBG funding. (goal #1) 

 
Options: 
 
 CDBG funds are subject to federal procurement standards.  The City of Troy has the option to self 

administer or procure a service provider to administer CDBG eligible projects on its behalf.  CDBG funds 
may not be treated as gifts or donations. 

  
 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-07



CDBG APPROPRIATIONS:  PUBLIC SERVICES   % 
      AMOUNT 
 
2001  $213,290.00   $50,000   23.44% 
2002  $213,290.00                   $50,000   23.44% 
2003  $213,290.00   $60,000   28.13% 
2004  $195,344.00   $70,000   35.83% 
2005  $184,795.00   $70,000   37.88% 
2006  $166,316.00   $70,000   42.09% 
2007  $165,141.00   $70,000   42.09% 
2008  $158,321.00    $71,010   44.09% 
2009  $158,321.00 (tentative) $71,010.00   44.09% 
 
Following is a synopsis of our Home Chore Program details: 
 
Total Residents:     = 81 
 
Residents qualified due to disability:   = 33 
 
Residents between 80 & 94 yrs old 
(Could qualify by disability but used  
low income      = 25 
 
Residents with income below $14,700  = 13 
(This figure is the “extremely low income” amount established by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development) 
 
Residents with income between $14,701 - $18,000 = 10 
 
 
 
 

  
S:\Murphy’s Review/Agenda 12.15.08 – Community Development Block Grant Information 
 



 

  
 
 
December 10, 2008 
 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 

Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  2008 Best in Aquatics Award 
 
 
Background: 
The City of Troy received the 2008 International Aquatics Award presented by Aquatics 
International Magazine. This tenth annual award competition honors the industry’s outstanding 
aquatic facilities.  Entries are judged on facility programming, promotional materials, aquatic 
amenities and community involvement.  The Troy Family Aquatic Center and Troy Community Center 
were in the Class 2 Suburban category, population 50,000 to 499,000. 
 
As winners of the award, the City receives a Best of Aquatics plaque and permission to use the Best 
of Aquatics logo on promotional material.  In addition, there is a special acknowledgement in the 
November/December 2008 issue of Aquatics International (attached). 
 
This is a prestigious honor and represents the City and Department’s dedication in serving the 
Community. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-08







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     
    

 
33117799  LLiivveerrnnooiiss,,  TTrrooyy,,  MMII  4488008833    ♦♦    PPhhoonnee::  224488..552244..33448844    ♦♦    FFaaxx::  224488..668899..66449977    ♦♦    wwwwww..ccii..ttrrooyy..mmii..uuss  

Troy Facilities Awarded International 
Title for Best Overall Commitment to Aquatics  

Troy, MI.   The Troy Family Aquatic Center (TFAC) and the Troy Community Center (TCC) indoor pool 
have won international recognition from Aquatics International Magazine in their November/December 
Best of Aquatics issue available on-line at http://aquaticsintl.com/2008/nov_dec/BOA_Slideshow/1a.html. 
 TFAC celebrated its 16th summer season this year and the indoor pool at the TCC its sixth year of 
operation.  The facilities garnered attention in Class 2 of the international competition, competing against 
other facilities serving significantly larger communities in the 50,000 to 499,999 population category and 
being recognized as having the “Best Overall Commitment to Aquatics.”  Approximately 82,000 people live 
in Troy. 
 “TFAC has invested so much energy … into bulking up its fun features that the facility would fit just 
fine into Orlando or Las Vegas,” wrote Neal Broverman for the magazine.  Broverman went on to commend 
the city’s “visible commitment to physical activity and liquid leisure.” 
 The facilities and programs at TFAC and the TCC are designed for fun and fitness and the Troy Parks 
and Recreation Department is committed to the health and well-being of its citizens ─ young and old ─ 
providing a wide variety of aquatic activities and programs. 
 “Swimming is a life-long skill and (we) recognize this skill can start at any age,” said Ann Blizzard, 
recreation supervisor.  “Staff at both facilities have worked hard to ensure the entire community’s needs are 
met.” 
 The growth in the department’s swim lesson programs is evidence of their dedication and commitment 
to aquatics.  The entire swim lesson program at both facilities was completely revamped prior to the opening 
of the indoor pool at the TCC and lesson plans are reviewed yearly and provided to all staff to ensure unity 
and consistency for programs at both pools. Swim instructors receive quarterly in-services for quality 
assurance. There are also senior and adaptive swim programs. 
 “The Troy Parks and Recreation Department’s aquatic facilities provide fun, recreation, social and 
health benefits and demonstrate the department’s commitment to enhancing the quality of life for our 
citizens,” said Blizzard. 
 As part of the rigorous and competitive award evaluation process, the facilities exceeded standards for 
excellence in the following areas: success in achieving their mission; ensuring the highest level of training 
for staff including lifeguards, water safety instructors and other employees; recruiting, training and utilizing 
volunteers; marketing and promotion of the facilities; community involvement; inclusion of all community 
members regardless of their physical ability; growth in attendance, programs and participation; major 
challenges met over a five year period and environmental efforts toward green technology. 
 “We are honored to be recognized with the award for best overall commitment to aquatics,” said Carol 
Anderson, director of Parks and Recreation.  Anderson attributes the aquatics staff and the support of the 
city council and administration, along with the involvement of residents for Troy’s thriving aquatics 
program. 
 The city of Troy was also recently acknowledged by CNNMoney.com as one of the top 100 cities to live 
in the country.    
 “Venues such as TFAC and TCC go a long way toward making a city a great place for raising families,” 
said Broverman.   



 

 
 
December 8, 2008 
 
 
TO:    Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 
SUBJECT:  Submittal of the 2008 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
 
 
 
We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) prepared by City 
staff and reviewed by the City’s auditors, the Rehmann Robson Group, for the period ending June 
30, 2008.   
 
Hard copies of the CAFR are attached to your agenda materials, and are available for public viewing 
at the City Clerk’s Office, the Library and on the City’s web site. 
 
If you have any questions about the information contained within this document, please contact us. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2008\12.15.08 – Submittal of the 2008 CAFR 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-09

campbellld
Text Box
Hard copies of the CAFR will be delivered and available for public viewing on December 12, 2008.


	AGENDA: December 15, 2008
	OUTCOME STATEMENTS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Presentation to the Public Works Department – Fleet Maintenance Division for Top 20 Fleets in the Nation Recognition and Hero Award
	Presentation of the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008 – by Tom Darling of the Rehmann Robson Group
	Presentation of an Audit Recap by John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Rezoning Application – Proposed Office Building, South Side of Wattles, East of Rochester Road (1100 and 1120 E. Wattles), Section 23 – R-1C to O-1 (File Number Z-732)
	C-2 Rezoning Application – Proposed Maple Business Center, North Side of Maple, East of Castleton (2795 and 2797 E. Maple), Section 25 – R-1E to B-1 (File Number Z-733)
	C-3 Concept Development Plan Approval – BBK Mixed Use Project – Northeast Corner of Big Beaver and Kilmer, Section 22, Currently Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) and R-1E (One Family Residential) District

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Transit Center Cost Sharing Agreement

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Planning Commission b) City Council Appointments: No Appointments brought forward
	E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled (b) City Council Nominations: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Board of Zoning Appeals; and Historic District Study Committee
	E-3 Bid Waiver – Global Positioning System (GPS) Tracking Devices
	E-4 Deficit Elimination Plans
	E-5 Agreement to Provide Inspection Services – City of Madison Heights
	E-6 Contract Ratification – Troy Command Officers Association (TCOA) 2008-2011
	E-7 Cost Participation Agreement with Clawson Main Street (Livernois), Broadacre Avenue to Maple Road – Project No. 07.102.5 and 07.502.5
	E-8 Proposal to Require Fees for Preliminary Breath Tests Administered at the Troy Police Desk
	E-9 Agreement of Understanding – The Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development (PUD 7), Southwest Corner of Big Beaver and John R – Section 26

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted
	F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution #10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses – Michigan Municipal League’s Capital Conference 2009
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution #1: Award to Low Bidders – Water System Materials

	F-5 Traffic Committee Recommendations – November 19, 2008
	F-6 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington – Project No. 01.106.5 – Parcel #1 – Sidwell #88-20-15-476-027 – Joan E. Facchini
	F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #33 – Sidwell #88-20-22-276-056 – Douglas P. Blunden and Mary Ann Blunden
	F-8 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Adams Road Site Condominium, East Side of Adams, South of South Boulevard, Section 6 – R-1A
	F-9 Winter Maintenance Agreement, Road Commission for Oakland County
	F-10 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement and Temporary Construction Permit – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #42 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-072 – Hi...
	F-11 Private Agreement for Andrew St. Sanitary Sewer Extension – Project No. 06.405.3
	F-12 License Agreement with St. Joseph Catholic Chaldean Church
	F-13 Allocation of 2009 Tri-Party Program Funds
	F-14 Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions – Vanderpool

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Traffic Committee/Final – August 20, 2008
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – October 1, 2008
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – October 1, 2008
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – November 5, 2008
	Planning Commission/Final – November 11, 2008
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – November 25, 2008

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Police Department – 2008 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of November 2008

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter from St. Alan’s Church to Officer Andy Breidenich and the Troy Police Department Regarding Example and Assistance on Election Day
	Letter to Mayor Schilling from Resident Michelle Musial Applauding the City’s Efforts Regarding the Recycling Program
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from George Barahal Regarding the Services and Treatment Received from Officer Brian Jones
	Letter of Thanks to Carla Vaughan from Jo Giroux Regarding the Leaf Raking Assistance
	Letter of Thanks to Carla Vaughan and Parks and Recreation from Emily Lambert Regarding the Leaf Raking Assistance

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted
	J-5 Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Final Minutes – October 16, 2008
	J-6  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Frank Lawrence v. City of Troy
	J-7  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Community Development Block Grant Information
	J-8  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 2008 Best in Aquatics Award
	J-9  Submittal of the 2008 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 No Closed Session Requested

	RECESSED



